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1JOLLIBEE FOODS CORPORATION

 branding great taste

How do you brand great taste?

A brand is like a person. It is truly unique. Its name clearly reminds of 
some things; to consumers - its benefits, its promise of high quality. 
Branding is about creating that identity.

At Jollibee Foods Corporation, we create and serve great tasting food. 
Always, the food taste must be worthy of the brand name. Through 
concise and catchy taglines, we communicate to consumers the brands’ 
promise of high quality.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

“We achieved a strong 
performance in 2012 and this was a 
result of  both favourable economic 
conditions and the strong initiatives 
of the organization.”
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Four years after the start of the global financial crisis, the large 

economies of the world continued to struggle to achieve sustained 

economic recovery. The United States GDP grew by 2.2%,  slightly 

better than its 1.8% performance in 2011. China continued to do better 

than most countries, with its gross domestic product rising by 7.8%, 

although slower than its 9.8% level in 2011. The Eurozone’s gross 

domestic product fell to -0.6%, a disappointing performance compared 

to the 2011 growth of 1.4%.  Overall global economic growth fell from 

4.0% in 2011 to 3.2% in 2012.  

The Philippine economy, by contrast moved strongly forward.  

Philippine GDP accelerated from 3.7% in 2011 to 6.6% in 2012, 

outpacing our neighbours in Southeast Asia, including Thailand, 

Indonesia, Malaysia, Vietnam and Singapore.   Our country defied the 

global downward trend.

Philippine inflation rate likewise improved, decreasing from 4.6% 

in 2011 to 3.2% in 2012, our lowest inflation rate in five years. The 

Philippine Peso was the best-performing currency in Southeast Asia in 

2012, appreciating by 6.5%. The Philippine Stock Exchange was also the 

best performing equity market in Asia, rising by 33% and reaching new 

record high levels during the year. 

In recognition of the country’s improved economic condition, the 

world’s three largest  credit rating agencies upgraded the Philippine’s 

credit standing to just one notch below investment grade. And as you 

To My Fellow Stockholders,

know, in recent months our country’s credit rating had been raised to 

investment grade, a truly remarkable achievement.

Your company, Jollibee Foods Corporation enjoyed the benefits of 

the healthier Philippine economy. We achieved a strong performance in 

2012 and this was a result of  both favourable economic conditions and 

the strong initiatives of the organization.    

JFC’s Revenues increased by 13.6% to Php71.1 billion in 2012. 

Worldwide System Wide Sales, a measure of all sales to consumers 

both from company-owned and franchised stores, grew by 12.3%. The 

Philippines grew by 10.3%, China by 27.1%, the United States 9.2% and 

Southeast Asia and the Middle East 23.8%. In total, our foreign business 

rose by 21.7%. 

Our system wide sales increase was driven by healthy same store 

sales growth and by the continued expansion of our store network 

which rose by 6.4%.  During the year, we opened 223 new stores 

worldwide; 135 in the Philippines and 88 outside the country. 

A significant portion of our sales growth came from restaurants that 

were already operating prior to 2012, or from same store sales growth. 

And the overwhelming portion of JFC’s same store sales growth in 2012 

came from higher volume resulting from more customers coming into 

the stores.  

Aside from favourable economic conditions, three key factors drove 

our strong same store sales growth.  First was the introduction of 
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new products and the improvement in the taste and quality of our 

existing products. This is at the core of our philosophy and way of 

doing business. We continuously work toward offering our customers 

products that will delight them even more. In 2012, we developed  new 

and improved products in practically all of our brands. 

The second factor is the offering of new products at more affordable 

price points.  We provide our customers the choice to buy lower-priced 

but high quality products to ensure that our offering is within their 

budget. The third factor is the  low inflation rate. The steady cost of 

raw materials allowed us to maintain our prices. These three factors 

combined give our customers better value, delighting them even more 

and enticing them to come and eat at our stores more frequently. 

With our strong sales growth, consolidated operating income grew by 

11.4% to Php4.3 billion and net income attributable to equity holders of  

JFC reached  Php3.7 billion, 15.4%  higher compared to 2011. Earnings 

per share rose by 14.0% to Php3.578.  JFC’s consolidated Return on 

Equity (ROE) improved from 17.6% in 2011 to 18.3% in 2012.  

JFC delivered strong returns to its shareholders with a total 

shareholder return of  15.2% in 2012.  It declared Php2.3 billion of cash 

dividends during the year while the JFC stock price appreciated by 

12.8%, closing at Php102 per share at the end of 2012.  

We maintained a conservative balance sheet with adequate liquidity 

to support our growth model.  Our total assets grew by 8% to Php42.0 

billion driven mainly by the increase in our cash.  Net cash provided 

by operating activities increased by 40.1% in 2012 versus the amount 

made in 2011 due to profit growth and to decline in working capital 

level.  Stockholders’ equity rose by only 8.3% after declaring regular and 

special cash dividends.

Our strong financial position is best illustrated by our ability to 

continuously invest for future growth. We spent a total of Php3.8 billion 

in capital expenditures, mostly for new stores and for the renovation of 

existing stores.  Another significant achievement was the completion of 

the Jollibee Distribution Center, which is one of the biggest distribution 

centers in the Philippines and Asia. The new distribution center serves  

the warehousing and distribution needs of all business units of the JFC 

Group of Companies in the Philippines. 

JFC also concluded a number of  acquisitions in 2012.  In January, 

we completed the acquisition of 50% share of the business of the 

SuperFoods Group.  The SuperFoods Group owns and operates various 

brands, including Highlands Coffee Shops in Vietnam, Highlands Coffee 

Packaged Products, Hard Rock Cafe franchised stores in Macau, 

HongKong and Vietnam and Pho24 Brand and restaurants which have 

presence in Vietnam, Indonesia, Philippines, HongKong, Cambodia     

and Japan. 

 In March, we also completed the acquisition of 55% of Guangxi San 

Pin Wang Food and Beverage Management Company Limited which 
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operates the San Pin Wang beef noodle business in South China.  San 

Pin Wang is a fast food chain serving Chinese cuisine, primarily low-

priced beef noodles.  At the time of the acquisition, it had 34 stores 

located mostly in Nanning City in Guan Xi Province in South China.  

JFC likewise entered into a joint venture agreement with Beeworks, 

Inc. to form a company that will own and operate Jollibee stores in 

Singapore that opened in March, 2013.  We entered into another joint 

venture with Hoppime Ltd., a subsidiary of the WowPrime Group in 

Taiwan to establish a company that will own and operate the 12 Sabu 

brand in the People’s Republic of China, HongKong and Macau.  The 12 

Sabu brand features low-priced hot-pot dishes served in a clean and 

bright dining environment.

While pursuing our goals for 2012, we also made significant 

contribution to our communities through the Jollibee Group Foundation 

(JGF).  The JGF’s thrust is promoting food security in communities.  It  

focuses on three major programs under the Food Security framework.  

For school year 2012-2013, the Busog, Lusog, Talino (BLT) Program, 

the Foundation’s flagship program was implemented in 1,053 public 

schools in 199 cities/municipalities nationwide.  A total of 37,821 

grades 1 and 2 pupils were fed lunch daily for 136 days, bringing the 

total number of BLT pupils covered by the program to over 60,000 since 

its implementation in 2007.

The Farmer Entrepreneurship Program (FEP) continued to provide 

opportunities to small farmers to be direct suppliers, empowering 

them to be more productive thereby gaining profits.  During the year, 

more than 500 small farmers from various provinces benefited from                

this program.

The JGF’s Tree Planting and Nurturing Program helped in the 

reforestation of six hectares of land, helping the communities near the 

critical watershed areas to live a more secured life.

Our Company remains in a very strong and progressive position.  

We have strong brands, a clear and robust strategy, and talented team 

of employees who remain committed to delivering value to all our 

stakeholders in the years ahead.  We look forward to an even stronger 

Philippine economy and a more robust Jollibee Group business in our 

country, in other parts of Asia and other parts of the world.

As we move into the future, we express our deep appreciation to all 

our employees, business partners and shareholders for their continued 

confidence and support.  

Let us all move forward to an even brighter future!

TONY TAN CAKTIONG
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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We shall strive to live up 
to our image as a world-

class Filipino brand that 
exemplifies the best about 

being Filipino.
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A Haven of Happiness for the Filipino Family

campaign with its ever growing network of Jolly 

Family Toy Scouts. 

To cap the year, a Christmas TV Commercial was 

produced showcasing Jollibee’s brand promise 

of being a haven of happiness for the family. The 

commercial earned positive reviews from critics and 

warmed the hearts of many Filipino families. 

As Jollibee gears up for more challenging times 

ahead, it remains true to its brand promise of making 

every member of the family feel truly happy and at 

home. Equally important, Jollibee shall strive to live 

up to its image as a world-class Filipino brand that 

exemplifies the best about being Filipino. 

The year 2012 was a banner year for the flagship 

brand Jollibee as total systemwide sales reached 

P45.2 billion, a 9.4% growth over the previous year. 

At year’s end, there were 780 stores, still more 

than the combined network of all the other major 

multinational fast food chains in the Philippines.

Aside from continuing to bring the langhap-sarap 

experience to more Filipinos across the archipelago, 

Jollibee went extreme in reclaiming value leadership 

and pushing for product superiority. The first was 

brought to life with the Always Affordelicious 

Campaign on its core products—Chickenjoy, 

Yumburger and Jollibee Spaghetti. With the price 

rollback, customers had all the more reasons to have 

more frequent family bonding moments in Jollibee 

stores. 

They also eagerly sampled the new products like 

the Chicken and Mushroom Pasta, Sundae Mix-ins 

Milo Blast, Chocolate and Coffee Floats, Crisscut 

Fries and the Crispy Wings. 

Major retail marketing initiatives such as the shift 

to green packaging materials and the redesign of the 

new stores reinforced brand dominance. The signing 

up of American Idol Season 11 first runner-up Fil-Am 

Jessica Sanchez as Jollibee’s first international brand 

ambassador strengthened the value of our flagship 

product Chickenjoy as a world-class brand.

Mounting the Jollibee Drive-thru Cross Country 

Challenge effectively showcased Jollibee’s widest 

network of Drive-thru stores in the Philippines. 

Likewise, Jollibee Padala (www.jollibeepadala.com), 

enabled Filipinos working abroad to easily order 

Jollibee food for delivery to their family members 

during important family celebrations and milestones. 

To support the Department of Tourism’s “It’s More 

Fun in the Philippines” campaign, the Happy Filipino 

website was launched, coming out with a two-part 

video that went viral featuring Internet sensation 

Bogart the Explorer.  

Jollibee’s award-winning children’s show, Jollitown, 

continued to dominate the ratings during its Sunday 

morning timeslot in ABS-CBN. Its Season 5 theme 

“The Quest for the Lost Values” featured Jollibee 

and friends on a time travelling adventure across 

the country, keeping the lessons closer to home and 

making it more relevant to its young viewers.

Jollibee’s image as a company that upholds positive 

Filipino values was solidified via the Jollibee Family 

Values Awards which garnered more than 1,000 

entries on its second run and the Maaga ang Pasko 
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Home of ‘Everyday Delicious’ Treats 

bun, propelled the double digit growth in its rolling 

base.  Two new stores in Al Khor and Al Attiyah were 

also inaugurated.

After making inroads in Kuwait last February, the 

Jollibee store is currently posting one of the highest 

average daily transaction counts in the Middle East. 

It also targets to open two additional stores next 

year, including one in Farwaniya. 

Finally, for Jollibee USA, improvements in both 

store transaction count and average check were 

recorded this year resulting in higher sales growth.  It 

maintained the store network at 27.

In the coming years, Jollibee will continue its 

strategic and aggressive expansion efforts to attain 

its vision of becoming a truly global brand, a brand 

that will continue to be known far and wide for its 

Everyday Delicious offerings, warm and friendly 

service, and its unique dining experience that makes 

everyone - regardless of nationality - instantly feel 

happy and at home.

Jollibee’s international operations ended on a 

high note in 2012 as consolidated sales of all its 

stores registered an impressive double-digit growth 

compared to the previous year. This remarkable 

growth was primarily driven by the opening of 

15 new stores, bringing Jollibee’s international 

store network to 92 by year-end.  Aside from the 

Philippines, Jollibee is now present in seven foreign 

countries including Vietnam, Brunei, USA, Hong 

Kong, Saudi Arabia, Qatar and Kuwait.

Amid the high inflation resulting in declining 

consumer confidence and weak consumption 

behavior of the Vietnamese, Jollibee Vietnam held 

its ground and opted to focus its efforts on strong 

value campaigns that were much appreciated by its 

customers. The Happy Pocket Meals priced at 25,000 

Vnd and localized rice meal offerings of the Burger 

Steak, Chicken Fillet and Grilled Pork Tenders rice, 

proved to be effective marketing strategies. Eight 

new stores were also opened, bringing Jollibee’s total 

store count in Vietnam to 39 by the end of 2012.  

In contrast, Brunei’s bustling economy propelled 

by strong domestic demand contributed to the 

sustained growth of Jollibee Brunei. Improvements 

in both store transaction count and average 

check were the positive fruits of continuous store 

renovations. New products also boosted bulk order 

sales. Jollibee Brunei is also set to open its very first 

drive-thru store in one of its outlets.  

Jollibee Hong Kong continued to post 

extraordinary growth in 2012, coming from a record 

performance in 2011. Such significant growth 

was stimulated by simple but effective operation 

improvements, focusing on core products as well as 

presenting new Breakfast offerings in-store and via 

Booth express. Jollibee’s Hong Kong Central branch 

is set to be renovated with increased seating capacity 

while the opening of a second store is also being 

considered next year.

For Jollibee Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA), 

food, service and cleanliness (FSC) improvements, 

introduction of new products, strong local marketing 

support as well as the renovation of its outlet 

in Balad contributed significantly to its positive 

performance in 2012. Jollibee has now have eight 

stores in the whole of KSA. 

In Qatar, significant trade area developments 

coupled with the launch of breakfast offerings and 

the introduction of the Chicken Value Box,  consisting 

of 1-piece Chickenjoy, 2-pieces wings, fries and soft 
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 Jollibee is now present in 
seven foreign countries 

including Vietnam, Brunei, 
USA, Hong Kong, Saudi 

Arabia, Qatar and Kuwait.
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A great number of people 
connected with the brand 

through its best-tasting 
pizzas and pastas, better 

value and its continued 
renovations to a new look.
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Better Than Any Other Year

the new look continued to be rolled out to complete 

the relaxing ambience.

Needless to say, 2012 was a long journey, but one 

that was worth all the time and every effort. The 

perfect combination of world-class products, strong 

tri-media efforts, digital media presence and an 

inviting store design enabled Greenwich to become 

the Philippines’ best-tasting pizza and pasta and the 

undisputed Favorite ng Barkada in the country today.

With a brand new year ahead, Greenwich looks 

forward to putting smiles on its guests’ faces with 

more groundbreaking products and improved 

services. Greenwich will continue to give customers 

a bite of excellence each time they step inside the 

store, order for take-out or whenever they call 

Greenwich for delivery.

For Greenwich, 2012 was a year of significant 

growth, both as a brand and as a business. This 

was accomplished by putting its flagship products 

at the forefront through extensive above-the-line 

and below-the-line efforts. These initiatives went 

full blast to communicate the superior taste of its 

flagship pizzas—the Ultimate Special Overload and 

the Ultimate Hawaiian Overload pizzas. The “Better 

Than Any Other” communications campaign was 

the year’s battle cry, which highlighted the results 

of extensive product tests done—that three times 

more people choose Greenwich over any other pizza 

brand. 

Strong product recall was established with 

consistent presence on television, radio, print and 

billboards. A great number of people connected with 

the brand through event sponsorships and product 

samplings.  Fact is, half a million slices of pizzas were 

sampled nationwide allowing people to experience 

the Greenwich difference. 

The year 2012 marked Greenwich’s full immersion 

into the world of social media. The company 

broadened its reach through its Facebook page and 

Twitter account. With strong online campaigns and 

famous personalities posting their love for Greenwich 

products, the brand’s networking sites’ fanbase grew 

by 300% versus 2011. Greenwich even launched 

another groundbreaking product entirely online—the 

Crispy Glazed Chicken—a “new generation” product 

that redefines the market’s lunch craving. 

Greenwich also took an extra mile to improve its 

pasta line. Greenwich continued to tickle the Filipino 

palate by giving what they have always wanted—the 

Spaghetti Supreme—the red spaghetti made richer, 

more flavorful, and loaded with more meat and 

cheese. Spaghetti Supreme was improved to go along 

with Greenwich’s pasta best-seller, the Lasagna 

Supreme.

Greenwich also made its presence felt right in 

customers’ homes through its improved delivery 

service. The Ultimate Green Card, the rewards 

card for frequent home delivery customers, was 

launched. As a result, the brand’s delivery customer 

base increased with Ultimate Green Card users 

contributing significantly to the total delivery sales for 

2012. 

To be able to provide the perfect place for those 

barkada bonding moments, store renovations carrying 
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STRENGTHENING CHINESE ROOTS

in the brand to be identified and distinguished as the 

truly Chinese QSR. 

With the fruitful outcome of these 2012 efforts, 

Chowking is sure to surge forward faster and 

stronger in 2013. The brand continues to improve its 

products, services, and systems to ensure that every 

customer leaves the stores happy and satisfied. As 

Chowking enters another year, it is more than ready 

to dominate the QSR market in the Philippines and 

beyond.

For Chowking, the year 2012 presented the 

daunting task of maintaining its formidable 

presence in the fast food market, especially after 

a strong finish in 2011. To rise to this challenge, 

Chowking went back to its roots to make the brand 

distinct in a market that was getting more and more 

congested with identical products. It was the perfect 

time to strengthen the brand’s Chinese heritage to 

further cement its position as the no. 1 Chinese quick 

service restaurant (QSR).

Chowking looked at all aspects of the business to 

find out where it could reinforce its Chinese image, 

while maintaining its standing in the mainstream 

Philippine market.

Chowking’s primary focus was to improve taste 

and value to attract more customers to the stores 

through its powerhouse products such as the 

Chinese Style Fried Chicken, Chao Fan, and Chow 

Pao. These products proved to be appealing to 

customers in terms of both taste and money value. In 

addition, they emphasized the brand’s Chinese roots, 

exclusive to Chowking and fortifying the brand as a 

top Chinese QSR.

The year 2012 also witnessed Chowking’s Retail 

and Restaurant Systems team working hand in hand 

to improve both front-and back-end operations in 

stores. These efforts were intended to draw more 

customers by enhancing their enjoyment through a 

refurbished store ambiance along with better, faster 

service for an improved overall customer experience. 

Chowking further strengthened its branding 

through its advertising by bringing back recognizable 

and well-known features in its campaigns to tie-in 

with the goal of aligning the brand with its Chinese 

roots. This proved to be a winning formula resulting 
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The brand continues to 
improve its products, services, 

and systems to ensure that 
every customer leaves the 

stores happy and satisfied.
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As Chowking International 
continued to expand around 

the world, it employed 
various initiatives and 

strategies to achieve its 
goals in 2012.
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Building a leading brand 
in the global mainstream arena

Chowking Indonesia bounced back and achieved 

significant sales growth in 2012 after coming from a 

challenging year in 2011.

Growth was primarily driven by a significant increase 

in transaction count as the brand shifted its efforts in 

communicating value to customers. More bundled meals, 

new products and value-for-money-initiatives. Launched 

were the Value Kings that intensified low price campaigns; 

popular Indonesian dishes Mie Goreng and Beef Bacon 

Nasi Goreng; and a breakfast campaign with offerings 

priced within the “sweet spot.” The product outsourcing 

project is also in the final stage, intended to improve cost.

Store operational efficiencies were improved to 

maximize customer turnover by adding more point-of-sale 

(POS), seat caps, enhance kitchen processes and showcase 

more streamlined products in an upgraded menu board.

Chowking Indonesia also started initial legwork on 

its Quality Management Installation to align its FSC 

standards with JFC Corporate Quality Management.

Continuing its focus on carrying out an aggressive store 

expansion and building strong profitable stores in the 

Middle East and the USA in 2013, Chowking International 

plans to open the first of many branches in Saudi Arabia 

and Kuwait and to cover an even wider reach in the USA.

As Chowking International continued to expand 

around the world, it employed various initiatives 

and strategies to achieve its target goals in 2012.

Chowking Middle East (ME) has now reached a 

network of 23 stores strongly positioned in key cities of 

UAE(19), Qatar (3), and Oman (1). 

Chowking opened three additional stores in UAE 

while it also opened its first store in the sultanate of 

Oman in 2012.

We have strong local franchisees, store team and 

partners with established supply chains capable of 

supporting a growing store network. Our franchises are 

driving growth by maximizing the current OFW market 

and opening new restaurant in locations capable of 

reaching out to other nationalities. 

Total store sales in UAE grew by 22.7% and Qatar 

by 10.6% in 2012. This growth is brought about by 

an increase in transaction count due to strong local 

marketing efforts, introduction of new products, 

increase in frequency of visit, and the expanding OFW 

customer base.

Chowking USA in 2012 strengthened its customer 

relations successfully by offering products directly 

adapted from the original recipe that Filipinos already 

knew and loved, such as the Chicharap, Nai Cha, and 

Pancit Canton.

The introduction of unique products in Chowking 

USA’s Rice Meals offerings were also enthusiastically 

welcomed by its customers such as the Orange 

Chicken and the Salt & Pepper Pork with Jalapeno 

slices. In fact, the Rice Meals category became the 

biggest category sales contributor for Chowking USA 

with a 45% sales contribution. Chowking USA also re-

launched the Beef Wonton Noodle Soup in October 

with its first ever TV spot that increased sales volume 

by 65%.

The introduction of a 24-product menu board in 

selected Chowking USA stores bolstered the brand’s 

image and helped make kitchen processes simpler and 

more efficient for customers.

 CK USA also built a strong internal support in 2012 

as the entire team underwent a series of training 

sessions such as Shift Management Effectiveness, 

Food Safety and Cleanliness & Sanitation, Gold 

Standards Review, and FSC Standards and Audit that 

enhanced the capabilities of each employee.

CK USA further expanded its reach when the first 

Chowking store opened in Anaheim, California. By 

yearend, CK USA now had a total of 19 stores.

All these efforts translated to a 2.9% rolling base 

growth for CK USA despite the recession. 



16 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

Another Record-breaking Performance

contributed not only to the successful opening of 

new stores but also to remarkable improvements in 

profits in existing stores.

 All these impressive results earned recognition for 

Red Ribbon as one of the 2012 Top Contributors in 

the JFC community, setting up the company for more 

record-breaking performances in 2013.

Red Ribbon outdid itself in 2012 with another 

record-breaking performance of PhP3.8 Billion 

system-wide sales, ending the year with 21 straight 

months of positive rolling base sales growth.  Both 

store and commissary profits reached an all-time 

high to register the highest company profit in its 

history which was even five times bigger than the 

previous year.

The company launched campaigns that intensified 

the position of its signature products.  Black Forest, 

Butter Mamon, Triple Chocolate Roll, and Ultimate 

Chocolate Cake all registered exceptional volume 

growth of 16%, 47%, 79%, and 195%, respectively.  

Together with the introduction of Marble Slices, and 

8x8 and 12x12 Dedication Cakes plus the value for 

money improvement projects of key round, roll, and 

pastry variants, each of the core categories delivered 

outstanding performances.  Rolls and Squares sales 

volumes grew by 47% and 80%, respectively. Round 

variants had a reversal of category decline while 

Pastries gave the largest volume contribution at 71%.

 All the initiatives on Culture and Core Values, 

Vision and Leadership, Capability and Engagement, 

Profitable Growth, and Rewards and Recognition 

helped create a happier, collaborative, energized, 

and unified team as evidenced by the outstanding 

results in the JFC Employee Engagement Survey 

where Red Ribbon achieved 96% response rate and 

83% Engagement Score—the third highest in the JFC 

organization and significantly above country norms.  

Commissary Efficiency Projects involving automation 

and conveyorization ensured efficient and quality-

consistent manufacturing, resulting in an impressive 

improvement in cake production per manhour in 

each of the commissaries.  Cost consciousness 

became a way of life across the organization which 

allowed for cost improvements in both the stores and 

commissaries leading to right-priced products that 

did not sacrifice profits, margins, and quality.  Main 

Office spending was the lowest in seven years.  The 

strict guarding of store health in terms of format 

effectiveness, and space and manpower productivity 



All these show-stopping 
results earned recognition 

for Red Ribbon as one of 
the 2012 Top Contributors 

in the JFC community, 
setting up the company 

for more record-breaking 
performances as it makes it 

big in 2013.



Red Ribbon refreshed the 
customer experience by 

repositioning the brand 
as the bakeshop for 

everyday occasions.
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Stronger than Ever

machine that increased production efficiency and 

reduced labor cost. In addition, streamlining of its 

product lineup was implemented. Over 450 stock 

keeping units were removed to achieve a focused 

product portfolio that built brand positioning and 

delighted our guests. 

The team’s commitment, focus, and inspired 

execution of RR USA’s new bakeshop positioning, 

high quality products, and excellent service have 

indeed all helped Red Ribbon USA end 2012 with its 

strongest performance in its history.

Although Red Ribbon (RR) USA faced many 

challenges at the beginning of 2012, it still 

registered a strong store sales growth of 6.7%.  

This successful turn-around was achieved by Red 

Ribbon USA by repositioning its brand image from a 

“cakeshop for special occasions” to a “bakeshop for 

everyday.” To execute this new brand positioning, 

it built strong value-for-money flagship products 

that were designed to drive long-term brand 

equity and sustainable sales growth. The Butter 

Mamon campaign highlighted the product’s “melt-

in-your-mouth butter deliciousness” that proved 

to be irresistible to customers, reflecting a volume 

growth of 200% versus the previous year. This 

unprecedented boost was the turning point for Red 

Ribbon USA. 

Another Red Ribbon USA product, the Ultimate 

Chocolate Cake, positioned as “the cake with 

overflowing chocolate taste” with an affordable 

price of $16.99 also became a customer favorite 

contributing incremental sales volume growth of 

21% to the total cake sales category. 

RR USA ended the year with the re-launch of 

Mango Cake as “the cake made with real Philippine 

Mangoes”. During product development, RR USA 

considered using US-sourced mangoes but none 

came close to the taste of our homegrown fruit. 

RR USA put quality first and decided to import the 

mangoes from the Philippines. Giving its customers 

the best possible product paid off – the cake 

delivered an impressive volume growth of 85% 

compared to 2011. 

These three successful flagship product launches, 

combined with the introduction of the Dedication 

Cakes (both Mocha and Chocolate) and four cake 

slice variants (Banana, Moist Chocolate, Classic 

Butter, and Taisan), had brought Red Ribbon USA to 

sustainable, profitable growth.

Red Ribbon also refreshed the customer 

experience by renovating over 50% of its USA stores. 

In these locations, the brand created a bakeshop feel 

that was both inviting and relaxing. The addition of 

bread carts into the store space has helped make 

its products more accessible to customers and the 

shopping experience more interactive.

Red Ribbon also initiated bold programs to simplify 

processes in its stores and commissaries. For its 

Valley Commissary, RR USA invested in a slicing 
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Maintaining Superior Growth

all the more reinforcing YHK’s leadership position          

in China.

 YHK also opened 59 stores in 2012 in different 

parts of China, which helped in addressing the 

everyday needs of over 300,000 Chinese customers 

or over 109.5 million Chinese a year in 47 cities in 

China. By year end, more customers enjoyed YHK’s 

offer of high quality, tasty food, and excellent service.

With YHK’s efforts to reposition its brand image 

and further improve the taste of its products, YHK is 

all geared up to be stronger in 2013.

The year 2012 was a tough year for food retailers 

in China. China’s economy growth rate was 

reported to be at its lowest level since 1999. The cost 

of labor, food, rent and utilities continued to increase, 

which affected the profit rate of many food retailers 

in China. These challenges drove the fast food 

service industry to explore other options to be able 

to survive in this complicated environment.   

Taking bold steps in 2012, Yonghe King (YHK) 

strengthened its image as a brand that offers 

superior value to its customers. In July, YHK 

introduced its Every Day Value Meals, which 

were warmly received by its customers. YHK also 

conducted a full review of its business model and 

repositioned the brand as the Chinese Quick Service 

Restaurant (CQSR) serving everyday delicious, value 

for money, Taiwan-inspired menu.

Together with repositioning the brand image, 

YHK also re-launched its flagship products, Soy 

Milk and Youtiao and those with rice and noodles 

such as Minced Pork Rice, Three Cups Chicken and 

Beef Noodles, improving their taste and portion 

size. Offering RMB15 combination meals, with a 

goal in mind of delivering products with excellent 

value, helped YHK receive positive feedback from its 

customers and become the customers’ preference as 

their favorite CQSR in China.

With these developments, Yonghe King was 

awarded the No.1 CQSR (Chinese Quick Service 

Restaurant) in China given by the China Brand Power 

Index for the second year in a row. YHK also received  

China’s “7 Stars Award,” which recognized YHK’s 

outstanding efforts in ensuring food safety. These 

awards proved that YHK had kept its strong position 

in the quick-service restaurant industry in China. 

In 2012, YHK also celebrated its 17th anniversary 

since it opened its first store in Shanghai in1995. To 

commemorate this occasion and to further build its 

brand image, YHK created the biggest Youtiao in the 

world. The event was witnessed by the “Guinness 

World Record” organization and had ample coverage 

and exposure in both traditional and social media 
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strengthened its 
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HZY continued to 
provide its customers 

with great-tasting food 
of the highest quality at 

affordable prices.
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Strengthening the foundation

daily sales (ADS) of RMB20,000. The five existing 

restaurants that had been remodeled were also 

rewarded by double digit sales growth.

With all these positive developments, HZY brand 

believes that it will maintain its unique identity in 

China’s restaurant industry and consistently deliver  

great value and service to its multitude of customers. 

The solid foundation built in 2012 will enable HZY to 

come out even stronger in 2013.

Hong Zhuang Yuan (HZY) attained significant 

progress for the year 2012. Re-invention and 

change were necessary adjustments that the brand 

did to gain strength and accomplish its goal of being 

known as the only Chinese neighborhood restaurant 

in China that “feels like home,” offering delicious, 

everyday good-value-for-money “comfort food”  

and a delightful, comfortable dining experience.

HZY continued to provide its customers with great 

tasting food of the highest quality at affordable 

prices. HZY positioned itself with the tagline 

“Congee, and Much More,” its first step in evolving 

the brand from a quick-service congee restaurant 

to the Favorite Neighborhood Casual Dining 

Restaurant serving comfort food from China’s 

Northern region. The new concept offers all-day 

dining (Breakfast, Lunch & Dinner), which can be 

enjoyed solo, with friends or with the family.

In addition, HZY strengthened its organization by 

enhancing its product development capability to be 

able to solidify flagship products and produce more 

tasty dishes for the consuming public. Maximizing 

the use of the stores’ Central Kitchen has ensured 

that fresh, tasty and high-quality dishes are 

guaranteed to be served in all HZY stores. These 

enhancements along with excellent personal service 

presented its customers more reasons to visit HZY 

stores anytime of the day.  

In terms of store development, Yang, the new 

model restaurant, was able to hit a monthly net sales 

record of ¥1 Million in August 2012. Two other new 

model restaurants also opened with high average 
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INCREASING THE MOMENTUM TO CONTINUE 
THE TREND OF GROWTH

record gross profit improvement, one of the highest 

net incomes in the brand’s history and a jump in 

market share for Mang Inasal from #6 QSR to #5 

QSR in Metro Manila.

With sights set on getting an ever higher market 

share, Mang Inasal, a brand that is already loved by 

millions will increase its momentum to continue its 

trend of growth in the coming years.

The success of Mang Inasal in 2012 is just the 

beginning of many great milestones to come. 

With its powerhouse team and solid fundamentals, 

Mang Inasal engaged in fundamental brand 

building and dynamic change. It has put in place the 

Masterbrand Strategy—the “10 Commandments” 

of the business, outlining its path for growth for 

the next decade. This year’s reinforcement of the 

10-point strategy significantly strengthened the 

brand like no other year in the past.

On a certain level, branding is about advertising 

and many changes were made on that front. But 

there is so much more to branding than quality 

marketing communication, and Mang Inasal worked 

on it by developing its systems and processes at 

every level within the organization.

The brand experienced remarkable achievements 

in 2012: its overall Food, Service and Cleanliness 

(FSC) ratings improved remarkably; the brand’s site 

selection process took on a new and improved set of 

systems developed from JFC Corporate Real Estate; 

the product development and the commissary 

teams upgraded their standards and manufacturing 

processes; the website was given a face lift; and the 

stores’ merchandising guidelines were provided new 

standards. 

Taking a serious inward look at the organization 

allowed advertising to utilize to its full potential the 

built-in loyal patronage that customers already have 

for the Mang Inasal brand. Q2 and Q3 witnessed 

the introduction of the new product—Dinuguan and 

Puto—while Q4 saw the maximum exposure of Mang 

Inasal’s flagship product—Barbecue Chicken—on 

television, radio and billboards across the country.

The Chicken Inasal, its blockbuster product, 

acquired a new tagline, “Wow Sa Laki, Nuot Sa Sarap,” 

to align it to its distinct advantage of being both 

incredibly big and juicy all the way to its core.

In back-to-back TV campaigns, this message was 

broadcast at unprecedented levels resulting in a 
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Taking a serious inward 
look at the organization 

allowed advertising to 
unleash the full potential 

of the natural love that 
customers already feel 

so strongly for the Mang 
Inasal brand.
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San Pin Wang plans to 
establish thirteen new 

restaurants and aspires to 
make the brand bigger, better 

and certainly a winner.



MOVING UP TO GREATER HEIGHTS
up in the Guangxi Traditional Chinese Medicinal 

University to support the development and 

promotion of traditional Chinese medicine. 

Because of these numerous efforts, San Pin 

Wang was bestowed the “advanced domestic trade 

enterprise” award by the commerce department of 

the Guangxi.

This year, San Pin Wang plans to establish thirteen 

new restaurants and aspires to make the brand 

bigger, better and certainly a winner.

San Pin Wang (SPW) pushed the bar of 

performance to a higher level in 2012 as its 

net sales went up to 14.4% or RMB 128 million 

and net profit increased to a tremendous 178% or     

RMB1.86 million.

This excellent performance can be attributed 

to SPW’s decisiveness and implementation of 

strategies, one of which is based on the principle of 

“sky-land-people.” “Sky” represents quality or setting 

the brand to premium standard and optimizing the 

menu; “land” refers to the customer or satisfying 

their needs and improving the value of the product 

offerings; “people” involves the staff or prioritizing 

and taking care of employees’ needs.

As a response to varying customers’ demand, San 

Pin Wang developed the beef brisket rice noodle, 

a new, low-priced beef noodle that was so well-

received by the consumers that it accounted for 5.1% 

of the overall sales. This new beef noodle variation 

joined other beef noodle favorites -- the beef tendon 

rice noodle and the beef rice noodle -- in the brand’s 

menu to cater to different types of customers with 

different levels of affordability. 

Package realignment of the meals was based on the 

results of studies about customers’ habits resulting in 

perfecting the rice noodle ingredients and increasing 

their level of acceptance among the locals.

San Pin Wang also unveiled seven restaurants in 

2012, which brought the number of stores to forty. 

Wuyixi and Wangxiang, among the new restaurants, 

showed robust followings as they were able to 

winningly attain their average daily sales (ADS) 

standard and thereby earning positive profits.

Mindful of providing customers the best ambience 

when they visit its stores, San Pin Wang focused on 

three measures to improve customer experience: 

(1) utilizing the Jollibee Foods Corporation (JFC) 

model and the setting up of independent quality 

management departments (2) renovating and 

refurbishing two of its old restaurants to be able 

to enhance customers’ dining environment and; (3) 

implementing the kitchen display system to upgrade 

the quality and delivery of its meals.

To address the needs of its employees, San 

Pin Wang implemented the policy of “buying a 

house with interest-free loan.” At present, 32% of 

the brand’s restaurant managers and staff have 

benefited from this welfare policy.

San Pin Wang also took concrete action of its CSR 

programs. This year the “SPW scholarship” was set 
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LAYING THE GROUNDWORK FOR 
BIGGER THINGS AHEAD

with subdued earth colors accentuated by lots of 

decorative greens.   

All these developments in 2012 are just laying 

the groundwork for bigger things ahead for Burger 

King in 2013 and beyond. With consistent quality 

and innovative products, excellent customer service 

and solid manpower, Burger King is set to conquer 

greater heights in the years to come.

BURGER KING was the new kid on the “JFC 

block” in 2012, having been acquired by JFC 

towards the tail-end of 2011. A year after its 

acquisition, Burger King is fully poised to expand 

and make its presence felt in the highly competitive 

Philippine Quick Service Restaurant (QSR) market.

In 2012, Burger King launched a thematic 

campaign, featuring its world-famous flagship 

product -- the Whopper. The campaign generated 

positive awareness for its flame-grilled burgers made 

with 100% imported beef patty. Stoutly supported by 

cable TV ad placements, strategic billboards and eye-

catching merchandising materials in store, Burger 

King, once perceived as an expensive product, vastly 

improved its value for money rating in a span of three 

months.

The year witnessed the rebirth of the flame-grilled 

Angus Steakhouse Burger as one of the premium 

burgers of the brand, made with 100% Angus Beef.  

New variants were also introduced – the Swiss 

Steakhouse and the Streaky Bacon Steakhouse. The 

Whopper was also given an exciting twist with the 

introduction of the Hawaiian Whopper in time for 

the summer season. Meanwhile, the launch of the 

flame-grilled BBQ Cheeseburger provided its loyal 

customers the goodness of flame-grilled burger at 

a much affordable price. The year capped off with 

a “Free Fries Weekend” promo to reward its loyal 

customers with free fries for every burger purchase.

The year 2012 also saw the most number of stores 

opened in Burger King’s recent history. The “Home 

of the Whopper” chain beefed up its store network 

in prime locations, with five (5) restaurant openings 

in 2012 -- La Salle Taft, Emerald Ortigas, Harbor 

Point Subic, Shell SLT and Two E-Com -- bringing the 

official restaurant count to 29 by the end of 2012.  

All the newly-opened restaurants sport a warm 

and welcoming new look, aptly called the “Garden 

Grill” concept, which aims to accentuate the brand’s 

core brand equity of “flame-grilling” as well as a 

taste of American life. The new look features “burger 

theatrics” in the front counter, providing customers a 

view of how the world-famous burgers are prepared 

by its crew upon order. The new design, which will be 

adapted by soon-to-open Burger King restaurants, 

boasts of wooden chairs and big comfy sofas, 
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and innovative products, 
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As JFC customers enjoy their 
meals, they, at the same time, 

are helping improve the lives 
of our communities.
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nationwide. A total of 37,821 grades 1 and 2 pupils 

were fed lunch daily for 136 days bringing the total 

number of BLT pupils covered by the program to 

over 60,000 since its implementation in 2007.  Nine 

out of ten of pupils gained Normal Body Mass Index 

(BMI) level and maintained their normal weight after 

the feeding cycle. As part of its scaling up process, 

the Foundation gathered its partners nationwide 

for the first ever BLT Summit. Dubbed as “Soar High 

Together,” the event was attended by more than 

400 partners with a goal to share best practices, 

discuss common challenges and strengthen the BLT 

Community of Practice.

Changing Lives through 

the Farmer Entrepreneurship Program (FEP)

The FEP harnessed the JFC supply chain by giving 

the opportunities to small farmers to be direct 

suppliers, empowering them to be more productive 

thereby gaining profits.  In 2012, more than 500 

small farmers in Nueva Ecija, Pangasinan, Quezon, 

Ilocos Sur, Tarlac, Agusan del Sur, Davao Oriental, 

and Bukidnon received training and technical 

assistance on production, marketing and finance. 

Farmers’ cooperatives organized in these eight 

areas have successfully supplied onions, calamansi, 

cacao and other vegetables to JFC and other 

institutions. FEP is a program in partnership with the 

Catholic Relief Services and the National Livelihood 

Development Corporation. 

Changing Lives through Tree Planting and 

Nurturing Program 

More than 370 JFC employees from different 

business units participated in the Tree Nurturing 

Project held in Mt. Banahaw in Liliw, Laguna and Ipo 

Watershed in Bulacan. A total of six hectares of land 

was reforested, helping the communities near the 

critical watershed areas to live a more secured life. 

Changing Lives, One Meal at a Time

As JFC customers enjoy their meals, they, at the 

same time, are helping improve the lives of our small 

farmers. BLT coinbanks have been placed in all stores 

nationwide where customers can donate and help 

change lives, one meal at a time. 

changing lives, one meal at a time

As the corporate social responsibility (CSR) arm of 

one of the country’s largest food companies, Jollibee 

Group Foundation (JGF) anchors on the strengths 

of Jollibee Foods Corporation (JFC) in designing 

relevant and sustainable community development 

programs. JGF’s thrust is promoting food security in 

communities. 

Food security is defined as the availability of 

food or having the ability to access food. A family is 

considered food secure when its members live with 

no fear of hunger or starvation. Without food, adults 

struggle to work and children struggle to learn, 

making sustainable development difficult to achieve. 

(World Food Summit, 1996)

While JGF continues to implement various 

programs in education, community development 

and also in disaster response, it  focuses on its three 

major programs under the Food Security framework. 

Changing Lives through the 

Busog, Lusog, Talino (BLT) School Feeding Program

The year 2012 was a year of expansion for the 

Foundation’s flagship program. For school year 

2012-2013, the BLT Program was implemented in 

1,053 public schools in 199 cities/municipalities 
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Selected financial Data
(in P’000, except Number of Stores, Personnel, Ratios, Per Share Data and Outstanding Shares) 
     
FOR THE YEAR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
     
Consolidated Systemwide Sales  58,162,821  63,729,418  70,254,305  82,170,085  92,271,200 
Gross Revenues  43,891,559  47,957,693  53,371,725  62,554,927  71,059,039 
Net Income  2,321,817  2,666,900  3,212,536  3,253,803  3,713,063 
Net Income (Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent)  2,319,088  2,664,623  3,197,794  3,231,667  3,728,151 
Payroll and Benefits  7,242,127  8,433,014  9,215,090  9,956,398  11,054,576 
Personnel  39,599  38,932  41,260  39,162  42,090 
Number of Stores     
          Jollibee*  700  743  784  823  872 
          Chowking*  418  431  438  430  430
          Greenwich  231  226  223  205  202 
          Red Ribbon*  239  242  259  242  244 
          Yonghe King  141  160  200  265  297 
          Delifrance  26  24  -    -    - 
          Manong Pepe’s  9  15  12  -     -
          Hong Zhuang Yuan  38  41  52  52  45 
          Caffe Ti-Amo  -    -    3  -    -
          Mang Inasal  -    -    345  429 465

Burger King                                      -                                      -                                     -  23 29
Chow Fun                                      -                                      -                                     -  3 3
San Pin Wang                                      -                                      -                                     -                                      - 40

*  Domestic and International     
     
AT YEAR-END     
     
Total Assets  27,125,701  29,727,493  33,746,007  38,908,227 41,990,812
Total Property & Equipment  8,274,919  8,350,573  8,770,519  10,557,402 11,059,464
Total Equity  14,139,831  16,285,206  17,681,443  20,222,454 21,893,340
Current Ratio  1.45  1.45  0.99  1.10 0.94
Debt Ratio  0.48  0.45  0.48  0.48 0.48
     
PER SHARE DATA     
     
Basic Earnings Per Share  2.27  2.61  3.12  3.14   3.58
Diluted Earnings Per Share  2.25  2.58  3.08  3.01 3.51
Cash Dividend  0.84  0.85  2.25  1.07 2.20
Book Value  13.81  15.73  17.05  19.47 20.90
     
SHARE INFORMATION     
     
Outstanding Shares (net of Treasury Shares)  1,023,558,148  1,035,010,816  1,036,991,478  1,038,505,893 1,047,412,219
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management’s responsibility for financial STATEMENTS

The management of JOLLIBEE FOODS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES (the Company) is responsible 
for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, including the additional components attached therein, in accordance with 
the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein.  This responsibility includes designing 
and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in 
the circumstances.  

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the 
same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders for the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, has examined the consolidated financial statements of the Company in 
accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its 
opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

Signed under oath by the following:

TONY TAN CAKTIONG
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

 YSMAEL V. BAYSA MARILOU N. SIBAYAN
 Vice-President for Corporate Finance Comptroller
 and Chief Finance Officer 

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
CITY OF PASIG                              )S.S

Before me, a notary public in and for the city named above, personally appeared the following:

Name Competent Evidence of Identity

Tony Tan Caktiong SSS Number:  03-5003942-0

Ysmael V. Baysa SSS Number:  03-4228219-1

Marilou N. Sibayan SSS Number:  03-9964176-9

Who are personally known to me and known to be the same persons who presented the foregoing 
instrument and signed the instrument in my presence, and who took on oath before me as to such 
instrument.

Witness my hand and seal this 3rd day of April 2013.

Doc. No.    272
Page No.     56
Book No.     10
Series of 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Jollibee Foods Corporation
10th Floor, Jollibee Plaza Building
No. 10 Emerald Avenue, Ortigas Centre, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jollibee Foods Corporation and 
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012 
and 2011, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity 
and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Jollibee Foods Corporation and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and their 
financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2012 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ramon D. Dizon
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 46047
SEC Accreditation No. 0077-AR-3 (Group A), 
 February 21, 2013, valid until February 20, 2016
Tax Identification No. 102-085-577
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-17-2012, 
 April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 3669677, January 2, 2013, Makati City

April 11, 2013

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

Phone: (632) 891 0307
Fax: (632) 819 0872
www.sgv.com.ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
 January 25, 2010, valid until December 31, 2012
SEC Accreditation No. 0012 - FR-2 (Group A),
 February 4, 2010, valid until February 3, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 December 31

2012
2011

(As restated - Note 2)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 30 and 31) P8,848,591,584 P6,655,312,875
Receivables (Notes 7, 30 and 31) 2,750,341,491 2,388,617,052
Inventories (Note 8) 2,629,743,477 2,860,103,279
Other current assets (Note 9) 1,394,525,363 1,354,914,695
 Total Current Assets 15,623,201,915 13,258,947,901
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 10, 30 and 31) 128,149,438 120,649,438
Interests in and advances to joint ventures, co-venturers and associate (Note 11) 3,011,501,581 3,188,515
Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 11,059,464,042 10,580,366,696
Investment properties (Note 13) 754,012,771 772,468,616
Goodwill and other intangible asset (Note 14) 8,705,038,888 8,534,640,751
Operating lease receivables (Note 29) 22,560,089 26,838,873
Deferred tax assets (Note 24) 1,030,247,591 967,614,484
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 15, 30 and 31) 1,656,636,144 4,617,032,092
 Total Noncurrent Assets 26,367,610,544 25,622,799,465

P41,990,812,459 P38,881,747,366

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities (Notes 16, 30 and 31) P11,753,066,052 P10,165,594,869
Income tax payable 78,958,189 154,717,083
Short-term debt (Notes 18, 30 and 31)  – 900,000,000
Current portion of:
 Long-term debt (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 4,572,839,927 777,301,991
 Liability for acquisition of businesses (Notes 11, 30 and 31) 166,276,801 104,763,179
 Total Current Liabilities 16,571,140,969 12,102,377,122
Noncurrent Liabilities
Provisions (Note 17) 30,500,639 30,500,639
Noncurrent portion of:
 Long-term debt (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 854,616,489 3,942,742,029
 Liability for acquisition of businesses (Notes 11, 30 and 31) 79,551,944 178,964,787
Derivative liability (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 22,782,819  –
Pension liability (Note 25) 288,436,203 278,674,514
Operating lease payables (Note 29) 1,460,167,999 1,343,261,889
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) 790,275,735 782,772,619
 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,526,331,828 6,556,916,477
 Total Liabilities 20,097,472,797 18,659,293,599
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 30)
Capital stock (Note 19) 1,063,859,559 1,054,953,233
Subscriptions receivable (17,177,884) (17,177,884)
Additional paid-in capital (Note 26) 3,284,139,309 2,914,463,925
Cumulative translation adjustments of foreign subsidiaries (351,379,055) (187,186,852)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial assets (Note 10) 102,626,829 102,626,829
Comprehensive loss on derivative liability (Note 18) (7,087,197)  –
Excess of cost over the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired (Note 19) (542,764,486) (542,764,486)
Retained earnings (Note 19):
 Appropriated for future expansion 5,000,000,000 1,200,000,000
 Unappropriated 12,808,533,096 15,174,359,248

21,340,750,171 19,699,274,013
Less cost of common stock held in treasury (Note 19) 180,511,491 180,511,491

21,160,238,680 19,518,762,522
Non-controlling Interests (Note 11) 733,100,982 703,691,245
 Total Equity 21,893,339,662 20,222,453,767

P41,990,812,459 P38,881,747,366

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

REVENUES
Net sales P67,493,953,521 P59,266,444,340 P50,506,967,113
Royalty, franchise fees and others (Note 20) 3,565,085,633 3,288,482,719 2,864,757,569

71,059,039,154 62,554,927,059 53,371,724,682
COST OF SALES (Note 21) 58,434,020,747 51,403,358,818 43,254,730,460

GROSS PROFIT 12,625,018,407 11,151,568,241 10,116,994,222

EXPENSES 
General and administrative expenses (Note 22) 6,908,802,947 5,939,317,810 5,271,066,845
Advertising and promotions 1,369,719,679 1,310,113,894 1,246,592,522

8,278,522,626 7,249,431,704 6,517,659,367

INTEREST INCOME (EXPENSE) (Note 23)
Interest income 270,114,157 179,763,236 163,081,118
Interest expense (206,012,700) (291,342,791) (193,201,203)

64,101,457 (111,579,555) (30,120,085)

EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS (LOSS) OF  JOINT VENTURES AND AN ASSOCIATE (Note 11) (50,954,378) 299,710 (2,181,411)

OTHER INCOME (Note 23) 503,534,839 566,813,617 618,898,399

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,863,177,699 4,357,670,309 4,185,931,758

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 24)
Current 1,277,160,734 1,187,563,865 1,040,927,979
Deferred (127,045,741) (83,696,480) (67,532,217)

1,150,114,993 1,103,867,385 973,395,762
NET INCOME 3,713,062,706 3,253,802,924 3,212,535,996

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Translation adjustments (169,424,928) 133,206,626 (215,377,701)
Movement of comprehensive loss on derivative liability (Note 18) (13,124,439)  –  –
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets - net (Note 10)  – (4,537,748) 17,259,983

(182,549,367) 128,668,878 (198,117,718)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P3,530,513,339 P3,382,471,802 P3,014,418,278

Net Income Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company (Note 28) P3,728,151,351 P3,231,666,940 P3,197,793,977
Non-controlling interests (15,088,645) 22,135,984 14,742,019

P3,713,062,706 P3,253,802,924 P3,212,535,996

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P3,556,871,951 P3,356,964,985 P2,999,265,317
Non-controlling interests (26,358,612) 25,506,817 15,152,961

P3,530,513,339 P3,382,471,802 P3,014,418,278

Earnings Per Share for Net Income Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 28)
Basic  P3.578  P3.138  P3.118
Diluted  3.514  3.096  P3.077

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 30)

Capital Stock 
(Note 19)

Subscriptions 
Receivable

Additional 
Paid-in Capital 

(Note 26)

Cumulative
Translation 

Adjustments 
of Foreign 

Subsidiaries

Unrealized 
Gain on 

Available-for- 
Sale Financial  

Assets  
(Note 10)

Comprehensive 
Loss on Derivative 

Liability 
(Note 18)

Excess of Cost  
over the  

Carrying Value 
of Non-controlling 
Interests Acquired  

(Note 19)

Retained Earnings (Note 19)
Cost 

of Common
Stock Held in 

Treasury 
(Note 19) Total

Non-controlling 
Interests 

(Notes 2 and 11)

 Total 
 Equity 
 (Note 2)

Appropriated 
for Future 

Expansion Unappropriated
Balances at January 1, 2012 P1,054,953,233 (P17,177,884) P2,914,463,925 (P187,186,852) P102,626,829  P– (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P15,174,359,248 (P180,511,491) P19,518,762,522 P703,691,245 P20,222,453,767
Net income 3,728,151,351 3,728,151,351 (15,088,645) 3,713,062,706
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Translation adjustments  –  –  – (164,192,203)  –  –  –  –  –  – (164,192,203) (5,232,725) (169,424,928)
 Comprehensive loss on derivative liability  –  –  –  –  – (7,087,197)  –  –  –  – (7,087,197) (6,037,242) (13,124,439)
Total comprehensive income (loss)  –  –  – (164,192,203)  – (7,087,197)  –  – 3,728,151,351  – 3,556,871,951 (26,358,612) 3,530,513,339
Movements in other equity accounts
 Issuances of and subscriptions to  

capital stock 8,906,326  – 292,691,011  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 301,597,337  – 301,597,337
 Cost of stock options granted  –  – 76,984,373  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 76,984,373  – 76,984,373
 Cash dividends – P2.20 a share (Note 19)  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – (2,293,977,503)  – (2,293,977,503)  – (2,293,977,503)
 Cash dividends received by non-controlling 

interest  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – (45,000,000) (45,000,000)
 Arising from business combination  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 20,895,511 20,895,511
 Appropriation during the year  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 3,800,000,000 (3,800,000,000)  –  –  –  –
 Additional investments during the year  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 59,148,000 59,148,000
 Arising from incorporation of a subsidiary  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 20,724,838 20,724,838

8,906,326  – 369,675,384  –  –  –  – 3,800,000,000 (6,093,977,503)  – (1,915,395,793) 55,768,349 (1,859,627,444)
Balances at December 31, 2012 P1,063,859,559 (P17,177,884) P3,284,139,309 (P351,379,055) P102,626,829 (P7,087,197) (P542,764,486) P5,000,000,000 P12,808,533,096 (P180,511,491) P21,160,238,680 P733,100,982 P21,893,339,662
Balances at January 1, 2011 P1,053,438,818 (P17,177,884) P2,773,682,164 (P317,022,645) P107,164,577  P– (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P13,042,709,169 (P180,511,491) P17,119,518,222 P561,924,546 P17,681,442,768
Net income 3,231,666,940 3,231,666,940 22,135,984 3,253,802,924
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Translation adjustments  –  –  – 129,835,793  –  –  –  –  –  – 129,835,793 3,370,833 133,206,626
 Unrealized loss on available-for-sale financial 

assets  –  –  –  – (4,537,748)  –  –  –  –  – (4,537,748)  – (4,537,748)
Total comprehensive income (loss)  –  –  – 129,835,793 (4,537,748)  –  –  – 3,231,666,940  – 3,356,964,985 25,506,817 3,382,471,802
Movements in other equity accounts
 Issuances of and subscriptions to  

capital stock 1,514,415  – 67,185,580  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 68,699,995  – 68,699,995
 Cost of stock options granted  –  – 73,596,181  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 73,596,181  – 73,596,181
 Cash dividends – P1.07 a share (Note 19)  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – (1,100,016,861)  – (1,100,016,861)  – (1,100,016,861)
 Arising from business combination  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 73,838,539 73,838,539
 Arising from incorporation of a subsidiary  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 4,000,043 4,000,043
 Additional investments during the year  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 38,421,300 38,421,300

1,514,415  – 140,781,761  –  –  –  –  – (1,100,016,861)  – (957,720,685) 116,259,882 (841,460,803)
Balances at December 31, 2011 P1,054,953,233 (P17,177,884) P2,914,463,925 (P187,186,852) P102,626,829  P– (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P15,174,359,248 (P180,511,491) P19,518,762,522 P703,691,245 P20,222,453,767
Balances at January 1, 2010 P1,051,458,156 (P17,177,884) P2,635,662,843 (P101,234,002) P89,904,594 P– (P543,978,573) P1,200,000,000 P12,147,867,997 (P180,511,491) P16,281,991,640 P3,214,087 P16,285,205,727
Net income  –  –  –  –  – –  –  – 3,197,793,977  – 3,197,793,977 14,742,019 3,212,535,996
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Translation adjustments  –  –  – (215,788,643)  –  –  –  –  –  – (215,788,643) 410,942 (215,377,701)
 Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial 

assets  –  –  –  – 17,259,983  –  –  –  –  – 17,259,983  – 17,259,983
Total comprehensive income (loss)  –  –  – (215,788,643) 17,259,983  –  –  – 3,197,793,977  – 2,999,265,317 15,152,961 3,014,418,278
Movements in other equity accounts
 Issuances of and subscriptions to  

capital stock 1,980,662  – 72,361,459  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 74,342,121  – 74,342,121
 Cost of stock options granted  –  – 65,657,862  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 65,657,862  – 65,657,862
 Cash dividends – P2.25 a share (Note 19)  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – (2,302,952,805)  – (2,302,952,805)  – (2,302,952,805)
 Arising from business combination  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 491,774,405 491,774,405
 Arising from incorporation of a subsidiary  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 54,997,180 54,997,180
 Acquisition of non-controlling interests   –  –  –  –  –  – 1,214,087  –  –  – 1,214,087 (3,214,087) (2,000,000)

1,980,662  – 138,019,321  –  –  – 1,214,087  – (2,302,952,805)  – (2,161,738,735) 543,557,498 (1,618,181,237)
Balances at December 31, 2010 P1,053,438,818 (P17,177,884) P2,773,682,164 (P317,022,645) P107,164,577  P– (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P13,042,709,169 (P180,511,491) P17,119,518,222 P561,924,546 P17,681,442,768

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P4,863,177,699 P4,357,670,309 P4,185,931,758
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12, 13, 21 and 22) 2,705,626,363 2,401,593,897 1,978,005,994
 Loss on disposals and retirements of :

 Property, plant and equipment – net (Note 12) 317,088,159 216,294,908 183,846,481
 Investment properties (Note 13) 1,542,484  –  –
 Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 10)  – 229,360 145,431
 Interest income (Note 23) (270,114,157) (179,763,236) (163,081,118)
 Interest expense (Note 23) 206,012,700 291,342,791 193,201,203
 Deferred rent amortization – net (Note 29) 121,184,894 182,565,058 168,527,509
 Pension expense (Note 25) 100,894,212 157,321,743 156,117,874
 Stock options expense (Note 26) 76,984,373 73,596,181 65,657,862
 Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment;  investment properties and security and other deposits (Note 22) 53,677,361  –  –
 Reversals of impairment on investment properties (Note 13)  –  – (18,234,341)
 Equity in net loss (earnings) of joint ventures (Note 11) 50,954,378 (299,710) 2,181,411
 Net unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) (30,892,981) 4,582,117 (48,944,543)
Income before working capital changes 8,196,135,485 7,505,133,418 6,703,355,521
Decreases (increases) in:
 Receivables (117,193,127) (314,201,325) 82,253,784
 Inventories 243,401,297 (693,934,034) (314,493,616)
 Other current assets 308,051,784 (227,403,532) (133,652,904)
Increases in trade payables and other current liabilities 858,004,807 783,520,729 201,815,255
Net cash generated from operations 9,488,400,246 7,053,115,256 6,539,278,040
Interest received 158,963,809 105,417,626 142,162,966
Contributions to plan assets (Note 25) (46,354,811) (70,977,928) (108,668,770)
Income taxes paid (1,363,045,319) (1,206,994,209) (1,068,556,299)
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,237,963,925 5,880,560,745 5,504,215,937

(Forward)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
 Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) (P3,755,906,880) (P3,700,449,259) (P2,553,449,151)
 Subsidiaries – net of cash acquired (Note 11) (127,585,219) (637,662,433) (2,714,811,144)
 Interest in a joint venture (Note 11) (98,040,000)  –  – 
 Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 10) (7,500,000)  – (3,940,000)

Investment property (Note 13)  – (8,011,386) (30,662,281)
Collection from (advances to) a joint venture (105,179,193) 18,733,666 (18,803,882)
Proceeds from disposals of:
 Property, plant and equipment 41,167,841 31,976,343 96,029,926
 Investment properties 599,048  – 277,200
Recovery from a joint venture (Note 11) 2,403,795  – (5,000,000)
Increase in long-term loan receivable (Note 15)  – (1,753,600,000)  –
Deposit for future business transaction (Note 15)  – (1,096,000,000)  –
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets 166,332,173 (11,750,343) 106,128,447
Net cash used in investing activities (3,883,708,435) (7,156,763,412) (5,124,230,885)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
 Cash dividends (Note 19) (2,274,367,485) (1,196,621,682) (2,556,643,476)
 Short-term debt (Note 18) (900,000,000) (342,030,865) (305,024,016)
 Long-term debt (Note 18) (728,863,892) (2,379,825,785) (53,697,466)

Liability for acquisition of businesses (Note 11) (108,696,000) (178,125,110)  –
Proceeds from:
 Long-term debt (Note 18) 1,700,800,000 3,131,020,350  –
 Issuances of and subscriptions to capital stock 301,597,337 68,699,995 27,886,621
 Short-term debt (Note 18)  – 900,000,000 1,842,030,865
Interest paid (194,335,697) (284,118,329) (189,703,359)
Contributions from non-controlling interests 79,872,838 42,421,343 54,997,180
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (45,000,000)  –  –
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  –  – (2,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,168,992,899) (238,580,083) (1,182,153,651)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,185,262,591 (1,514,782,750) (802,168,599)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,016,118 (393,676) (4,600,496)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,655,312,875 8,170,489,301 8,977,258,396

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Note 6) P8,848,591,584 P6,655,312,875 P8,170,489,301

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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Corporate Information1. 

Jollibee Foods Corporation (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines.  The Parent 
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Jollibee Group”) are involved primarily in 
the development, operation and franchising of Quick Service Restaurants (QSR) under the trade names 
“Jollibee”, “Chowking”, “Greenwich”, “Red Ribbon”, “Yong He King”, “Hong Zhuang Yuan”, “Mang Inasal”, “Burger 
King”, “San Pin Wang” and “12 Hotpot”.  The other activities of the Jollibee Group include manufacturing and 
property leasing in support of the QSR systems and other business activities (see Notes 2 and 5).  

The common shares of the Parent Company were listed and have been traded in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange (PSE) beginning July 14, 1993.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 10th Floor, Jollibee Plaza Building, No. 10 Emerald 
Avenue, Ortigas Centre, Pasig City.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the three years in 
the year ended December 31, 2012 were reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit Committee 
on April 11, 2013.  The same consolidated financial statements were also approved and authorized for 
issuance by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 11, 2013.

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance, Changes in Accounting Policies, Restatement of 2. 
Comparative 2011 Financial Statements and Basis of Consolidation

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Jollibee Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis, 
except for the derivative liability and certain available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, which are measured 
at fair value.  The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent 
Company’s functional and presentation currency under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).  
All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with PFRS.  

Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the 
adoption of the following amendments to existing PFRS and PAS which became effective on   
January 1, 2012.  

PFRS 7 (Amendment), 	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets 
PAS 12 (Amendment), 	 Income Taxes – Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 

The adoption of these amended standards did not have a significant impact on the Jollibee Group’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards  
Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2012
The Jollibee Group will adopt the following revised standards, interpretations and amendments when 
these become effective.  Except as otherwise indicated, the Jollibee Group does not expect the adoption 
of these new and amended standards to have significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Effective in 2013

The new and amended PFRS are effective and to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013 except for PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities, which is to be applied retrospectively and PAS 1, Financial Statements Presentation – Presentation 
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
July 1, 2012.

Amendments to PFRS 7, 	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities
These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related 
arrangements (such as collateral agreements).  The new disclosures are required for all recognized 
financial instruments that are set-off in accordance with PAS 32.  The amendments require entities 
to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum 
quantitative information.  This is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities 
recognized at the end of the reporting period:

The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;a) 
The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the net b) 
amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;c) 
The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that d) 
are not otherwise included in 
(b) above, including:e) 

Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the i. 
offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); andii. 

The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in the above.f ) 

PFRS 10, 	 Consolidated Financial Statements
This standard replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, that 
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements.  It also includes the issues raised 
in Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.  PFRS 10 
establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities.  
The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to 
determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, 
compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27.  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PFRS 11, 	 Joint Arrangements
This standard replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC-13, Jointly controlled Entities - Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers.  PFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly-controlled 
entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation.  Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint 
venture must be accounted for using the equity method.  

PFRS 12, 	 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
This standard includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated 
financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and  
PAS 28.  These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates 
and structured entities.  A number of new disclosures are also required.  

The Jollibee Group expects a more comprehensive disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements about interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates upon adoption.

PFRS 13,	  Fair Value Measurement
This standard establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements.  
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance 
on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.

The Jollibee Group performed a preliminary assessment on the impact of this standard on its financial 
statements, but on the said assessment, the impact is expected to be immaterial.

Revised PAS 19, 	 Employee Benefits
The amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor 
mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-
wording.  The revised standard also requires new disclosures such as, among others, a sensitivity 
analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, information on asset-liability matching strategies, 
duration of the defined benefit obligation, and disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk.  
Once effective, the Jollibee Group has to apply the amendments retroactively to the earliest period 
presented.

The Jollibee Group reviewed its existing employee benefits and determined that the amended 
standard has significant impact on its accounting for retirement benefits.  The Jollibee Group obtained 
the services of an external actuary to compute for the impact of the standard to its consolidated 
financial statements upon adoption.  The effects are detailed below:

 As at  As at
 December 31,  January 1,
 2012  2012

Increase (decrease) in:
Statement of Financial Position
Pension liability P267,203,511 (P288,455,466)
Deferred tax asset (80,161,053) 86,536,640
Remeasurements on defined benefit plan - net of deferred 

tax (219,212,904) 157,137,717
Retained earnings 32,170,447 44,781,109

For the year ended December 31
2012 2011

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Pension expense P18,015,232 (P35,550,158)
Provision for deferred income tax (5,404,570) 10,665,047
Net income (12,610,662) 24,885,111
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans -  
 net of deferred income tax (219,212,904) 157,137,717
Total comprehensive income (231,823,566) (182,022,828)

Revised PAS 27, 	 Separate Financial Statements
As a consequence of the new PFRS 10 and PFRS 12, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting 
for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements.   

Revised PAS 28, 	 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
As a consequence of the new PFRS 11 and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in 
Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in 
joint ventures in addition to associates.    

PAS 1, 	 Financial Statements Presentation - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
The amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income.  
Items that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, 
upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be 
reclassified. 

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20,	  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining activity during 
the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”) and provides guidance on the 
recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the stripping activity asset.  
This new interpretation is not relevant to the Jollibee Group.

Improvements to Standards

The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to 
PFRS.  The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and are 
applied retrospectively.

PFRS 1, 	 First-time Adoption of PFRS
The amendments clarify that an entity that has stopped applying PFRS may choose to either:  
(a) re-apply PFRS 1, even if the entity applied PFRS 1 in a previous reporting period; or (b) apply PFRS 
retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors, in order to resume reporting under PFRS.  The amendments also clarify that, upon adoption of 
PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs in accordance with its previous generally accepted 
accounting principles, may carry forward, without any adjustment, the amount previously capitalized 
in its opening statement of financial position at the date of transition.  Subsequent to the adoption of 
PFRS, borrowing costs are recognized in accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs.
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PAS 1, 	 Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the Requirements for Comparative 
Information
The amendment requires an entity to present a: (a) comparative information in the related notes to 
the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum 
required comparative period; and (b) opening statement of financial position when an entity changes 
its accounting policies, makes retrospective restatements or makes reclassifications, and that change 
has a material effect on the statement of financial position.  The opening statement will be at the 
beginning of the preceding period.  

PAS 16, 	 Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing Equipment
The amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be 
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and 
equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise.  

PAS 32, 	 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of Distribution to Holders of Equity Instruments
The amendment clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to 
transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, Income 
Taxes.  

PAS 34, 	 Interim Financial Reporting - Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information for Total Assets 
and Liabilities
The amendment clarifies the requirements in PAS 34 relating to segment information for total assets 
and liabilities for each reportable segment to enhance consistency with the requirement in PFRS 8, 
Operating Segments. 

Effective in 2014

The amendments to PFRS are effective and to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2014 except for Amendments to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities, which is to be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to PFRS 10, 	 Consolidated Financial Statements - Investment Entities
The amendments require a parent that is an investment entity to measure its investments in particular 
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss instead of consolidating them.  New disclosure 
requirements relating to investment entities were added in PFRS 12 and PAS 27.  

Amendments to PFRS 12, 	 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Investment Entities
The amendments require a parent that is an investment entity to disclose information about 
significant judgments and assumptions made in determining that it is an investment entity, as well 
as and any changes thereto.  A parent that is an investment entity is also required to disclose certain 
information on unconsolidated subsidiaries, which are accounted for at fair value through profit or 
loss.  

Amendments to PAS 27, 	 Separate Financial Statements - Investment Entities
The amendments require a parent that is an investment entity and does not consolidate its 
subsidiaries in accordance with the exceptions of PFRS 10, to present separate financial statements 
as its only financial statements.  

Amendments to PAS 32, 	 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities
These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-
off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as 
central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.  
While the amendment is expected not to have any impact on the Company’s net assets, any changes 
in offsetting is expected to impact leverage ratios and regulatory capital requirements.

Effective in 2015

PFRS 9, 	 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
PFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement, and applies to the classification and measurement of financial assets 
and financial liabilities as defined in PAS 39.  The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2015.  In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets 
will be addressed with the completion of this project.  

The Jollibee Group has made an evaluation of the impact of the adoption of this standard and 
decided not to early adopt PFRS 9 in 2012, ahead of its effectivity date on January 1, 2015, therefore, 
the Jollibee Group’s financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2012 do not 
reflect the impact of the said standard.

Only financial assets and liabilities will be affected by the standard and based on this evaluation, loans 
and receivables (consisting of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, receivable from retirement 
fund, advances to employees, security and other deposits, and employee car plan receivables), AFS 
financial assets and financial liabilities (consisting of trade payables and other current liabilities, due 
to related parties, short-term and long-term debt, and liability for acquisition of a business), which are 
carried at amortized cost will not be significantly affected.  Upon adoption, these financial instruments 
shall continue to be carried at their amortized cost, thus, will have no significant financial impact to 
the Jollibee Group’s financial position and performance.  For the Jollibee Group’s AFS investments 
which are composed of shares in public utility companies carried at fair value, the Jollibee Group 
plans to classify these items at fair value through other comprehensive income and will continue to 
measure these investments at fair value to be presented in other comprehensive income, thus, this 
has no significant financial impact to financial position and performance.  

The Jollibee Group shall conduct another impact evaluation in 2013 using the financial statements 
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Restatement of Comparative 2011 Financial Statements
On May 27, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Tokyo Teriyaki Corporation (TTC), 
entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Fortune Capital Corporation, owner and operator of all 
Chowking stores in the US as the master licensee therein, to purchase the latter’s property and equipment, 
inventories and security deposits of its twenty (20) existing stores.  The purchase consideration amounted 
to P693.3 million.
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In 2012, the valuation of the acquired assets was completed resulting to the recognition of an increase in 
the fair market value of property and equipment and deferred tax liability and a corresponding reduction 
in the amount of liability for acquisition of business and goodwill as follows (see Note 14):

 Increase
 (Decrease)

Property and equipment P22,964,900
Deferred tax liabilities 6,889,470
Liability for acquisition of businesses (33,369,323)
Goodwill (49,444,753)

In accordance with PFRS 3, the Jollibee Group restated its comparative 2011 financial statements to reflect 
the results of the valuation of the assets as if the information existed as of the acquisition date.  

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Jollibee Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.  The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company, using 
consistent accounting policies.  All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting 
from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of comprehensive income and net assets not held by the 
Jollibee Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income 
and within equity in the consolidated statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable 
to equity holders of the Parent Company.  Acquisition of non-controlling interests is accounted for using 
the entity concept method, whereby the difference between the cost of acquisition and the carrying value 
of the non-controlling interests acquired is recognized as a direct deduction from the equity section of the 
consolidated statements of financial position as “Excess of cost over the carrying value of non-controlling 
interests acquired”.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if these result in a deficit 
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction.  If the Jollibee Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;	
derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;	
derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;	
recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;	
recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;	
recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;	
reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other 	
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following 
wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries:

Country of
Incorporation

Principal 
Activities

Percentage of 
Ownership

2012       2011      2010
Fresh N’ Famous Foods, Inc. (Fresh N’ Famous) - Philippines Food service 100 100 100
 Chowking Food Corporation USA United States of 

America (USA) Holding company 100 100 100
Zenith Foods Corporation (Zenith) Philippines Food service 100 100 100
Freemont Foods Corporation Philippines Food service 100 100 100
RRB Holdings, Inc. (RRBHI): Philippines Holding company 100 100 100
 Red Ribbon Bakeshop, Inc. (RRBI) Philippines Food service 100 100 100
 Red Ribbon Bakeshop, Inc. USA (RRBI USA) USA Food service 100 100 100
Mang Inasal Philippines, Inc. (Mang Inasal) Philippines Food service 70 70 70
Grandworth Resources Corporation (Grandworth): Philippines Leasing 100 100 100
 Adgraphix, Inc. (Adgraphix) Philippines Digital printing 100 100 100
 IConnect Multimedia Network, Inc. (IConnect) Philippines Advertising 60 60 60
 JC Properties & Ventures Co. Philippines Inactive 50 50 –
Honeybee Foods Corporation (Honeybee): USA Food service 100 100 100
 Tokyo Teriyaki Corporation (TTC) USA Food service 100 100 100
Jollibee Worldwide Pte. Ltd. (JWPL): Singapore Holding company 100 100 100
 Regional Operating Headquarters of JWPL (JWS) Philippines Accounting, Human 

Resources & 
Logistic Services

100 100 100

 Golden Plate Pte. Ltd. (GPPL) Singapore Holding company 100 100 100
  Golden Beeworks Pte. Ltd. Singapore Food service 60 – –
 Beijing New Hongzhuangyuan Food and Beverage  

Management Co., Ltd. (Hong Zhuang Yuan) People’s Republic  
of China (PRC) Food service 100 100 100

 Southsea Binaries Ltd. (Southsea) British Virgin  
Island (BVI) Holding company 100 100 100

 Shanghai Yong He King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Beijing Yong He King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Shenzhen Yong He King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Hangzhou Yongtong Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Hangzhou Yonghe Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Guangxi San Pin Wang Food and Beverage 
               Management Company Limited (San Pin Wang)

PRC Food service 55 – –

 Wuhan Yonghe King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Tianjin Yong He King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Jollibee Foods Processing Pte. Ltd. (JFPPL) - Singapore Holding company 70 70 70
  Jollibee Foods Processing Co. Ltd. (Anhui) PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Kuai Le Feng Food & Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.(a) PRC Dormant 100 100 100
 JSF Investments Pte. Ltd. (JSF) Singapore Holding company 99 99 –
 Chow Fun Holdings LLC (Chow Fun) USA Food service 81 81 14
 Jollibee (China) Food & Beverage Management Co.   
  Ltd. (formerly Shanghai Chunlv Co. Ltd.)

PRC Management 
company 100 100 100

 Jollibee International (BVI) Ltd. (JIBL): BVI Holding company 100 100 100
  Jollibee Vietnam Corporation Ltd. Vietnam Food service 100 100 100
  PT Chowking Indonesia Indonesia Food service 100 100 100
  PT Jollibee Indonesia (b) Indonesia Dormant 100 100 100
  Jollibee (Hong Kong) Limited (b) Hong Kong Dormant 85 85 85
          Hanover Holdings Limited (Hanover) (b) Hong Kong Dormant 100 100 100
  Belmont Enterprises Ventures Limited (Belmont): BVI Holding company 100 100 100
          Shanghai Belmont Enterprises Management and 

Adviser Co., Ltd. (SBEMAC)
PRC Business 

management 
service 100 100 100

(Forward)
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Country of
Incorporation

Principal 
Activities

Percentage of 
Ownership

2012       2011      2010
  Yong He Holdings Co., Ltd.: BVI Holding company 100 100 100
           Centenary Ventures Limited BVI Holding company 100 100 100
           Colossus Global Limited BVI Dormant 100 100 100
           Granite Management Limited BVI Dormant 100 100 100
           Cosmic Resources Limited BVI Dormant 100 100 100
  All Great Resources Limited: BVI Dormant 100 100 100
           Eastpower Resources Limited BVI Dormant 100 100 100
           Eaglerock Development Limited BVI Dormant 100 100 100
Chanceux, Inc. - Philippines Holding company 100 100 –
 BK Titans, Inc. - Philippines Holding company 54 54 –
  PFN Holdings, Corp. - Philippines Holding company 99 99 –
          Perf Restaurants, Inc. (Perf ) (c) Philippines Food Service 100 100 –
Donut Magic Phils., Inc.(d) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Ice Cream Copenhagen Phils., Inc.(d) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Mary’s Foods Corporation (d) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
QSR Builders, Inc. Philippines Inactive 100 100 100
Jollibee USA USA Dormant 100 100 100

Kuai Le Feng Food and Beverage (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (PRC) was deregistered on March 29, 2013.(a) 
BVI dormant entities are for dissolution which will take effect in 2013.(b) 
Perf Restaurants, Inc. also holds shares in Perf Trinoma and Perf MOA.(c) 
On June 18, 2004, the stockholders of the Jollibee Group approved the Plan of Merger of the three dormant companies.  (d) 
The application is pending approval from the SEC as at December 31, 2012.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies3. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the 
date of acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition.  The Jollibee Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated 
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of an instrument.  In 
the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, 
is done using trade date accounting.  A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset 
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by 
regulation or convention in the market place concerned.

Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement.  Interest, dividends, gains or losses relating to financial instruments or a component that 
is financial liability are reported as expense or income.  Distribution to holders of financial instruments 
classified as equity is charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax benefits.

Initial Recognition and Measurement.  Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is 
the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability).  Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments are included in the 
initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Jollibee Group classifies its financial instruments in the following 
categories: financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
(HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, other financial liabilities and derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the instruments 
are acquired and as liabilities were incurred whether they are quoted in an active market.  Management 
determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed and 
appropriate, re-evaluates this classification at every reporting date.

Determination of Fair Value.  The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at reporting date 
is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price 
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.  When current bid and ask prices are not 
available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as 
there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison 
to similar instruments for which observable market prices exist, option pricing models and other relevant 
valuation models.

Determination of Amortized Cost.  The amortized cost of financial instruments is computed using the 
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.  The calculation takes into account any 
premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are integral part of the 
effective interest.

“Day 1” Difference.  Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose 
variables include only data from observable market, the Jollibee Group recognizes the difference between 
the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition 
as some other type of asset or liability.  In cases where unobservable data is used, the difference between 
the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become 
observable or when the instrument is derecognized.  For each transaction, the Jollibee Group determines 
the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPL.  Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held-for-trading and financial assets 
designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition.  

Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near 
term.  Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets may be designated as at FVPL at initial recognition if the following criteria are met:

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise 	
arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; 

the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their performance evaluated 	
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or 

the financial asset contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not 	
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be separately 
recorded.
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The Jollibee Group has no financial assets at FVPL as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

Loans and Receivables.  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  They are not entered into with the intention of immediate 
or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets or financial assets at FVPL.  After initial 
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment in value.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets when the Jollibee Group expects to realize or collect 
the asset within 12 months from the reporting date.  Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Jollibee Group’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, long-term loan receivable and security and 
other deposits are classified under this category.

HTM Investments.  Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity 
are classified as HTM when there is a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  Financial assets 
intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this category.  HTM investments are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost.  This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus 
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method 
of any difference between the initially recognized amount and the maturity amount less allowance for 
impairment.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognized or 
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.  Assets under this category are classified as current 
assets if maturity is within 12 months from reporting date and as noncurrent assets if maturity date is more 
than a year from reporting date.

The Jollibee Group has no HTM investments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

AFS Financial Assets.  AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are designated in this 
category or are not classified in any of the other categories.  AFS financial assets include equity and debt 
securities.  Equity investments classified as AFS are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite 
period of time and are neither classified as held-for-trading nor designated as at FVPL.  Debt securities are 
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to 
needs of liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized gains 
or losses recognized as “Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets - net” account in other 
comprehensive income until the financial asset is derecognized or determined to be impaired at which 
time the accumulated gains or losses previously reported in other comprehensive income are included in 
profit or loss.  If the fair value cannot be measured reliably, AFS financial assets are measured at cost, being 
the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment, less any impairment in value.  
All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of investment. 

Assets under this category are classified as current assets if expected to be realized within 12 months from 
reporting date and as noncurrent assets.  Otherwise, these are classified as non-current assets.

The Jollibee Group’s investments in shares of public utility companies are classified under this category as 
of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at FVPL.  Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities that are held-for-trading 
and financial liabilities designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 
term.  Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognized in profit or loss.

The Jollibee Group has no financial liability classified under this category as of December 31, 2012 and 
2011.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting.  The Jollibee Group uses currency swaps to manage 
its foreign exchange and interest rate risk exposures on its United States dollar (USD) denominated variable 
rate loan.  Accruals of interest on the receive- and pay-legs of the cross-currency swap are recorded as 
interest expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative 
contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value.  Derivatives are carried as assets when 
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.  Any gains or losses arising from 
changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to profit 
or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, derivatives can be designated as cash flow hedges or fair value 
hedges, depending on the type of risk exposure.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Jollibee Group formally designates and documents the hedge 
relationship to which the Jollibee Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management 
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.  The documentation includes identification of the 
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the 
entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the 
hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.  Such hedges are expected to be 
highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing 
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods 
for which they were designated. 

The Jollibee Group accounts for its cross-currency swaps as cash flow hedges of foreign exchange and 
interest rate exposure on its outstanding floating rate US-denominated loan of PERF (see Note 18).

Cash Flow Hedge.  Cash flow hedges are hedges on the exposure to variability of cash flows that are 
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset, liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction and could affect profit or loss.  The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and directly in equity, while the 
ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or 
loss, such as when hedged financial income or expense is recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase 
occurs.  Where the hedged item is the cost of a nonfinancial asset or liability, the amounts taken to equity 
are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability.
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If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in equity are 
transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.  If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, 
terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, 
amounts previously recognized in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction occurs.  If the 
related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is recognized in the profit or loss.

Other Financial Liabilities.  This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading or 
not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability where the substance of the contractual 
arrangements results in the Jollibee Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial 
asset to the holder, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with the holder under conditions 
that are potentially unfavorable to the Jollibee Group.  These include liabilities arising from operations or 
borrowings.

Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortized cost, 
taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method of amortization (or accretion) 
for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.  Gains and losses are 
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the amortization 
process.

This category includes long-term debt (including current portion), liability for acquisition of businesses 
(including current portion) and trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding local and other taxes 
and unearned revenue from gift certificates).

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are 
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting 
from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability 
component on the date of issue.

Debt Issue Costs
Debt issue costs are deducted against long-term debt and are amortized over the terms of the related 
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Jollibee Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset (an incurred loss event) and that the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of the financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.  Objective evidence of 
impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant 
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables.  The Jollibee Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
individually for financial assets that are individually significant or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant.  If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually 
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.  
Factors considered in individual assessment are payment history, past-due status and term, development 
affecting companies and specific issues with respect to the accounts.  The collective assessment would 

require the Jollibee Group to group its receivables based on the credit risk characteristics (customer type, 
payment history, past-due status and term) of the customers.  Changes in circumstances may cause 
future assessment of credit risk to be materially different from current assessments, which could require 
an increase or decrease in the allowance account.  The Jollibee Group also considers factors, such as, the 
type of assets, the financial condition or near term prospect of the related company or account, and the 
intent and ability to hold on the assets long enough to allow any anticipated recovery.  Assets that are 
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognized, 
are not included in the collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the 
amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted 
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition).  If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of loss is recognized in profit or loss under “General and administrative expenses” 
account.  Interest income continues to be recognized based on the original effective interest rate of the 
asset.  Loans and receivables, together with the associated allowance, are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery.  

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.  
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that carrying 
value of asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 

Quoted AFS Equity Investments.  In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, an 
objective evidence of impairment would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of 
the investments below its cost.  ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment 
and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.  When there is 
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss which is measured as the difference between the acquisition 
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized 
in other comprehensive income under “Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets”, is 
removed from equity and recognized in the profit or loss.  Impairment losses on equity investments are 
not reversed through profit or loss; increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly as other 
comprehensive income.

Unquoted AFS Equity Investments.  If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred 
in an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably 
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted 
equity instrument, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a 
similar financial asset.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets.  A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;(a) 
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the Jollibee Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation (b) 
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

the Jollibee Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either  (c) 
(i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Jollibee Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has entered into 
a “pass-through” arrangement, and neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Jollibee Group’s 
continuing involvement in the asset.  In that case, the Jollibee Group also recognizes an associated liability.  
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Jollibee Group has retained.  

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of the consideration that the 
Jollibee Group could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities.  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged, cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference 
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.  

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Costs are accounted for as follows:

Processed inventories - First-in, first-out basis.  Cost includes 
direct materials, labor and a proportion of 
manufacturing overhead costs based on 
normal operating capacity.

Food supplies, packaging, store and other supplies, 
and novelty items 

- Purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis.

Net realizable value of processed inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

Net realizable value of food supplies, packaging, store and other supplies is the current replacement cost.

Net realizable value of novelty items is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization and any accumulated impairment in value.  Such cost includes the cost of replacing part 
of property, plant and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and 
excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing.  Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties and 
taxes and any other costs directly attributable in bringing the asset to its working condition and location 
for its intended use.  Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into 
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to income in the year in which the costs 
are incurred.  In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant 
and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as 
additional costs of property, plant and equipment. 

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful 
lives of the assets:

Land improvements  5 years
Plant, buildings, condominium units and improvements  5–40 years
Leasehold rights and improvements  2–10 years or term of the lease, 

whichever is shorter
Office, store and food processing equipment  2–15 years
Furniture and fixtures  3–5 years
Transportation equipment  3–5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, if any, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method of the assets are reviewed 
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial period. 

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, 
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  Fully depreciated assets are 
retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further depreciation is credited or charged 
to profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost less any impairment 
in value.  This includes the cost of construction and other direct costs.  Cost also includes interest on 
borrowed funds incurred during the construction period.  Construction in progress is not depreciated until 
such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further 
depreciation and amortization is credited or charged to profit or loss.
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Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of land and buildings and building improvements held by the Jollibee 
Group for capital appreciation and rental purposes.  Investment properties, except land, are carried at cost, 
including transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value.  
Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is 
incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment 
property.  Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value.

The depreciation of buildings and building improvements are calculated on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets which are five (5) to twenty (20) years.

The residual values, if any, useful lives and method of depreciation and amortization of the assets are 
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Investment property is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  Any 
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or loss in 
the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers to investment property are made only when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of 
owner-occupation, or commencement of an operating lease to another party.  Transfers from investment 
property are made only when there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation 
or commencement of development with a view to sell.

Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.  Applying the acquisition 
method requires the (a) determination whether the Jollibee Group will be identified as the acquirer,  
(b) determination of the acquisition date, (c) recognition and measurement of the identifiable assets 
acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and (d) recognition and 
measurement of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the (a) consideration transferred by the Jollibee 
Group, measured at acquisition-date fair value, (b) amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
and (c) acquisition-date fair value of the Jollibee Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree 
in a business combination achieved in stages.  Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in 
“General and administrative expenses” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Initial Measurement of Non-controlling Interest.  For each business combination, the Jollibee Group measures 
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree using the proportionate share of the acquiree’s  identifiable 
net assets.

Business Combination Achieved in Stages.  In a business combination achieved in stages, the Jollibee 
Group remeasures its previously held equity interests in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and 
recognizes the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss.

Contingent Consideration or Earn-out.  Any contingent consideration or earn-out to be transferred by the 
Jollibee Group will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition-date.  Subsequent changes to the fair 
value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized either 
in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.  If the contingent consideration is classified 
as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill

Initial Measurement of Goodwill or Gain on a Bargain Purchase.  Goodwill is initially measured by the 
Jollibee Group at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.  If 
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 
recognized in profit or loss as gain on a bargain purchase.  Before recognizing a gain on a bargain purchase, 
the Jollibee Group determines whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the 
liabilities assumed and recognize any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that review. 

Subsequent Measurement of Goodwill.  Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Impairment Testing of Goodwill.  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business 
combination is, from the acquisition-date, allocated to each of the Jollibee Group’s cash-generating units 
(CGU), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective 
of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units or groups of units.  Each unit 
or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated: 

represents the lowest level within the Jollibee Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal 	
management purposes; and 

is not larger than an operating segment as defined in PFRS 8, 	 Operating Segments, before 
aggregation.

Frequency of Impairment Testing.  Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Jollibee 
Group tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

Allocation of Impairment Loss.  An impairment loss is recognized for a CGU if the recoverable amount of the 
unit or group of units is less than the carrying amount of the unit or group of units.  The impairment loss 
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit or group of units first to reduce the 
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU or group of units and then to the other assets of the unit 
or group of units pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or group of units.

Measurement Period.  If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the 
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Jollibee Group reports in its consolidated financial 
statements provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.  The measurement 
period ends as soon as the Jollibee Group receives the information it was seeking about facts and 
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition-date or learns that more information is not obtainable.  
The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition-date.

Intangible Assets
The cost of trademarks acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.  
The Jollibee Group assessed the useful life of the trademarks to be indefinite because based on an analysis 
of all of the relevant factors; there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to 
generate cash inflows for the Jollibee Group.

Trademarks and brand names with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment 
annually either individually or at the CGU level.  The useful life of an intangible asset is assessed as indefinite 
if it is expected to contribute net cash inflows indefinitely and is reviewed annually to determine whether 
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the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.  If not, the change in the useful life assessment 
from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Interests in and Advances to Joint Ventures, Co-venturers and Associate

Interests in and Advances to Joint Ventures and Co-venturers.  This account consists of interests in and 
advances to joint ventures and co-venturers.

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties (venturers) undertake an 
economic activity that is subject to joint control.  Joint control exists only when the strategic financial 
and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the venturers.  A jointly 
controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a company, partnership or other 
entity to engage in economic activity that the Jollibee Group jointly controls with its fellow venturer.

The Jollibee Group has interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities accounted for using 
the equity method based on the percentage share of ownership and capitalization.  Interests in joint 
ventures are accounted for under the equity method from the date the joint control is obtained.   

Under the equity method, the interests in joint ventures are carried in the consolidated statements of 
financial position at cost plus the Jollibee Group’s share in post-acquisition changes in the net assets of 
the joint ventures and associate, less any impairment in value.  Goodwill relating to the joint ventures is 
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized.  The consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income include the Jollibee Group’s share in the financial performance of the joint 
ventures.  

When the Jollibee Group’s share of losses in the joint ventures equals or exceeds its interest, including any 
other unsecured receivables, the Jollibee Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.  Where there has been a change recognized 
directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Jollibee Group recognizes its share in any changes and 
discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

The reporting dates of the Parent Company and the joint ventures are identical and the latter’s accounting 
policies conform to those used by the Parent Company for like transactions and events in similar 
circumstances.  Unrealized gains arising from transactions with the joint ventures are eliminated to the 
extent of the Jollibee Group’s interests in the joint ventures against the related investments.  Unrealized 
losses are eliminated similarly but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment in the asset 
transferred.

The Jollibee Group ceases to use the equity method of accounting on the date from which it no longer 
has joint control, or significant influence in the joint ventures and associate or when the interest becomes 
held for sale.

Upon loss of joint control, the Jollibee Group measures and recognizes its remaining investment at its fair 
value.  Any difference between the carrying amount of the former jointly controlled entities upon loss of 
joint control, the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit 
or loss.  When the remaining interest in joint ventures constitutes significant influence, it is accounted for 
as interest in an associate.

Interest in an Associate.  This account consists of investment in an associate.  An associate is an entity in 
which the Jollibee Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Jollibee Group’s investment in an associate are accounted for using the equity method.  An associate 
is an entity in which the Jollibee Group has significant influence.  

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statements of 
financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Jollibee Group’s share of net assets of the 
associate.  Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is 
neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income reflect the share of the financial performance 
of the associate.  When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the 
Jollibee Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated 
statements of changes in equity.  Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the 
Jollibee Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The Jollibee Group’s share in profit (loss) of the associate is shown on the face of the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income as “Equity in net earnings (loss) of joint ventures and associate”, 
which is the profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Jollibee Group.  
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Jollibee 
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Jollibee Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize 
an additional impairment loss on its investment in an associate.  The Jollibee Group determines at each 
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in associates are impaired.  
If this is the case, the Jollibee Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the 
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the “Equity in net 
earnings (loss) of joint ventures and an associate” account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Jollibee Group measures and recognizes any 
retaining investment at its fair value.  Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon 
loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is 
recognized in profit or loss. 

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying values of interests in and advances to joint ventures, co-venturers and associate, property, plant 
and equipment, investment properties, goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment 
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  If any 
such indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or 
CGU are written down to their recoverable amounts.  The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of 
fair value less costs to sell or value in use.  The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the 
sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less costs of disposal.  
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.  Impairment losses are recognized in profit 
or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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For nonfinancial assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether 
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have 
decreased.  If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case, the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss.  After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in 
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value on a systematic basis 
over its remaining useful life.

Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital.  Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.  
Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a 
deduction from proceeds, net of tax.  Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par 
value, if any, are recognized as additional paid-in capital.

Retained Earnings and Dividend on Capital Stock of the Parent Company.  The amount included in retained 
earnings includes profit attributable to the Parent Company’s equity holders and reduced by dividends on 
capital stock.  Dividends on capital stock are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they 
are approved by the shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries.  Dividends for the year that 
are approved after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting period.

Treasury Shares.  Acquisitions of treasury shares are recorded at cost.  The total cost of treasury shares is 
shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as a deduction from the total equity.  Upon 
re-issuance or resale of the treasury shares, cost of common stock held in treasury account is credited for 
the cost of the treasury shares determined using the simple average method.  Gain on sale is credited to 
additional paid-in capital.  Losses are charged against additional paid-in capital but only to the extent of 
previous gain from original issuance, sale or retirement for the same class of stock.  Otherwise, losses are 
charged to retained earnings.

Subscriptions Receivable.  Subscriptions receivable represents common stock subscribed and issued by the 
Company but payment from the shareholders has not yet been received.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Jollibee Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, sales taxes and 
duties.  The Jollibee Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine 
if it is acting as principal or agent.  The Jollibee Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of 
its revenue arrangements. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goods.  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have passed to the customers, which is normally upon delivery.  Sales returns and 
sales discounts are deducted from sales to arrive at net sales shown in profit or loss. 

Royalty Fees.  Revenue from royalty fees is recognized as the royalty accrues based on certain percentages 
of the franchisees’ net sales.

Franchise Fees.  Revenue from franchise fees is recognized when all services or conditions relating to a 
transaction have been substantially performed.  

Service Fees.  Revenue is recognized in the period in which the service has been rendered.

Dividend Income.  Dividend income is recognized when the Jollibee Group’s right as a shareholder to 
receive the payment is established.  

Rent Income.  Rent income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.  
For income tax reporting, rent income is continued to be recognized on the basis of the terms of the lease 
agreements.

Interest Income.  Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective 
yield on the asset.

Cost and Expenses
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of 
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than 
those relating to distributions to equity participants.  Cost and expenses included under “Cost of sales” 
and “General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are 
recognized as incurred.

Advertising and promotions expenses include costs incurred for advertising schemes and promotional 
activities for new products.  The amount of expenses incurred by the Company is reduced by the network 
advertising and promotional costs reimbursed by the Company’s franchisees and subsidiaries.

Pension Benefits
The Jollibee Group has a number of funded, non-contributory pension plans, administered by trustees, 
covering the permanent employees of the Parent Company and its Philippine-based subsidiaries.  The 
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit 
actuarial valuation method.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net 
cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for the plans at the end of the previous reporting year 
exceeds 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date.  
These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees 
participating in the plans.

Past service cost, if any, is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested.  If the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of, or 
changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

Pension liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and actuarial gains 
and losses not recognized, and reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and the fair value of plan 
assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.  If such aggregate is negative, the asset is 
measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses 
and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from 
the plans or reductions in the future contributions to the plans. 
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If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service 
cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or 
reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current period and past service 
cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that they exceed any reduction in the 
present value of those economic benefits.  If there is no change or an increase in the present value of the 
economic benefits, the entire net actuarial loss of the current period and past service cost of the current 
period are recognized immediately.  Similarly, net actuarial gain of the current period after the deduction 
of past service cost of the current period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic 
benefits stated above are recognized immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative 
unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits 
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in the future contributions to the plans.  If 
there is no change or a decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial 
gain of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are recognized 
immediately.

The Jollibee Group also participates in various government defined contribution schemes for the PRC-based 
and USA-based subsidiaries.  Under these schemes, pension benefits of existing and retired employees are 
guaranteed by the local pension benefit plan, and each subsidiary has no further obligations beyond the 
annual contribution.

Share-based Payments
The Jollibee Group has stock option plans granting its management and employees an option to purchase 
a fixed number of shares of stock at a stated price during a specified period (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of the options granted to the Jollibee Group’s management and employees that becomes vested 
is recognized in profit or loss over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are 
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant management and employees become fully entitled to 
the award (“vesting date”).

The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.  The cumulative expense 
recognized for the share-based transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the 
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Jollibee Group’s best estimate of the number of 
equity instruments that will ultimately vest.  The charge or credit in profit or loss or the investment account 
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as of the beginning and end of 
that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is 
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the market 
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of a share-based award are modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognized as if the 
terms had not been modified.  In addition, an expense is recognized for any modification, which increases 
the total fair value of the share-based payment agreement, or is otherwise beneficial to the management 
and employee as measured at the date of modification.  

Where a share-based award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and 
any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.  However, if a new award is 
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, 
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if there were a modification of the original award.

Research and Development Costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred.  Development cost incurred on an individual project is capitalized 
when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured.  Any expenditure capitalized is 
amortized in line with the expected future sales from the related project. 

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
agreement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Jollibee Group as Lessee.  Leases which do not transfer to the Jollibee Group substantially all the risks 
and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are 
recognized as expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Associated costs, such 
as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred. 

Jollibee Group as Lessor.  Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.  Rent income from operating leases is recognized 
as income in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over 
the lease term on the same bases as rent income.  Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned. 

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Jollibee Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  If 
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, 
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.  Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.  Each entity in the Jollibee Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional 
currency.  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated 
using the closing rate of exchange at reporting date.  All differences are recognized in profit or loss.  Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. 

The functional currencies of the Jollibee Group’s foreign operations are US dollar (US$), PRC renminbi 
(RMB), Indonesia rupiah, Vietnam dong and Hong Kong dollar.  As of the reporting date, the assets and 
liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of the Parent Company at 
the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date while the income and expense accounts are translated 
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.  The resulting translation differences are included in 
the consolidated statements of changes in equity under the account “Cumulative translation adjustments 
of foreign subsidiaries” and in other comprehensive income.  On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the 
accumulated exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.
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Taxes

Current Tax.  Current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected 
to be paid to the tax authority.  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.

Deferred Tax.  Deferred tax is provided using balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences 
at reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of 
unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income 
tax (RCIT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of excess of 
MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 	
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and 	
interest in a joint venture, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that 
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax assets to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
assets to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability 	
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transactions, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest 	
in a joint venture, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

Value Added Tax.  Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of tax, except:

where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 	
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the expense item as applicable; and

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included. 	

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of “Other 
current assets” or “Trade payables and other current liabilities” accounts in the consolidated statements of 
financial position.

Earnings per Share (EPS) Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of the 
Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, after 
considering the retroactive effect of stock dividend declaration, if any.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of the 
Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, 
adjusted for any potential common shares resulting from the assumed exercise of outstanding stock 
options.  Outstanding stock options will have dilutive effect under the treasury stock method only when 
the average market price of the underlying common share during the period exceeds the exercise price 
of the option.

Where the EPS effect of the shares to be issued to management and employees under the stock option 
plan would be anti-dilutive, the basic and diluted EPS would be stated at the same amount.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed unless 
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent assets are 
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

Business Segments
The Jollibee Group is organized and managed separately according to the nature of operations and 
geographical locations of businesses.  The three major operating businesses of the Jollibee Group are 
food service, franchising and leasing while geographical segments are segregated to Philippine businesses 
and international businesses.  These operating and geographical businesses are the basis upon which the 
Jollibee Group reports its primary segment information presented in Note 5.

Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Jollibee Group’s financial position at 
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the Jollibee Group’s consolidated financial statements.  
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial 
statements when material.
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions4. 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts on the consolidated financial statements 
and related notes at the end of the reporting period.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Jollibee Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional Currency.  Management has determined that the functional and presentation currency of the Parent 
Company and its Philippine-based subsidiaries is the Philippine peso, being the currency of the primary 
environment in which the Parent Company and its major subsidiaries operate.  The functional currencies 
of its foreign operations are determined as the currency in the country where the subsidiary operates.  For 
consolidation purposes, the foreign subsidiaries’ balances are translated to Philippine peso which is the Parent 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Operating Lease Commitments - Jollibee Group as Lessee.  The Jollibee Group has entered into commercial 
property leases for its QSR and offices as a lessee.  Management has determined, based on an evaluation of 
the terms and condition of the arrangements that all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of these 
properties, which the Jollibee Group leases under operating lease arrangements, remain with the lessors.  
Accordingly, the leases are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent expense amounted to P5,895.9 million, P5,131.8 million and P4,092.8 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively (see Notes 21, 22 and 29).

Operating Lease Commitments - Jollibee Group as Lessor.  The Jollibee Group has entered into commercial 
property leases on its investment property portfolio and various sublease agreements.  Management has 
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the Jollibee Group 
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the properties which are leased out.  Accordingly, 
the leases are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to P93.6 million, P88.4 million and P88.6 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively 
(see Notes 13, 20 and 29).

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets - Significant or Prolonged Decline in Fair Value and Calculation of Impairment 
Loss.  The Jollibee Group determines that an AFS financial asset is impaired when there has been a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost.  The Jollibee Group determines that a decline in fair 
value of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline and a decline for a period of 
more than 12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline.  This determination of what is significant 
or prolonged requires judgment.  In making this judgment, the Jollibee Group evaluates, among other 
factors, the normal volatility in price.  In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence 
of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance. 

To compute for the impairment of AFS equity instruments, the Jollibee Group expands its analysis to consider 
changes in the investee’s industry and sector performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in 
technology, and other factors that affect the recoverability of the Jollibee Group’s investments. 

For unquoted equity shares, the Jollibee Group estimates the expected future cash flows from the investment 
and calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the present value of expected future cash 
flows from the investment and its acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income.

There were no provisions for impairment loss on AFS financial assets in 2012, 2011 and 2010.  The carrying 
amount of AFS financial assets amounted to P128.1 million and P120.6 million as of December 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at reporting date that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment Loss on Receivables.  The Jollibee Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level 
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of allowance is evaluated on 
the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts.  These factors include, but are not limited to, 
the length of the Jollibee Group’s relationship with the customers and counterparties, average age of accounts 
and collection experience.  The Jollibee Group performs a regular review of the age and status of these 
accounts, designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment and provide the appropriate 
allowance for impairment losses.  The review is done quarterly and annually using a combination of specific 
and collective assessments.  The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the 
Jollibee Group made different judgments or utilized different methodologies.  An increase in allowance 
account would increase general and administrative expenses and decrease current and noncurrent assets.

Provision for impairment loss on receivables in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to P98.1 million,  
P35.4 million and P50.3 million, respectively, resulting from specific and collective assessments.   
The carrying amount of receivables amounted to P2,750.3 million and P2,388.6 million as of  
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 7).

Net Realizable Value of Inventories.  The Jollibee Group writes down inventories to net realizable value, 
through the use of an allowance account, whenever the net realizable value of inventories becomes 
lower than the cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other 
causes.  

The estimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the 
estimates are made of the amounts the inventories are expected to be realized.  These estimates take into 
consideration fluctuations of prices or costs directly relating to events occurring after reporting date to the 
extent that such events confirm conditions existing at reporting date.  The allowance account is reviewed 
on a regular basis to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records. 

The Jollibee Group assessed that the net realizable value for some inventories is lower than cost, hence, it 
recognized provision for inventory obsolescence amounting to P42.2 million, P19.5 million and P5.9 million 
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 22).  The Jollibee Group wrote-off allowance for inventory 
obsolescence amounting to P4.4 million, P70.0 million and nil in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The 
carrying amount of inventories amounted to P2,629.7 million and P2,860.1 million as of December 31, 2012 
and 2011, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties.  The Jollibee Group 
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties based on the period 
over which the property, plant and equipment and investment properties are expected to be available for 
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use and on the collective assessment of the industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience 
with similar assets.  The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties 
are reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear 
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits in the use of property, plant 
and equipment and investment properties.  However, it is possible that future financial performance 
could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in the factors 
mentioned above.  The amount and timing of recording the depreciation and amortization for any period  
would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.  A reduction in the estimated useful lives 
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties would increase the recorded depreciation 
and amortization and decrease noncurrent assets.

There was no change in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment 
properties in 2012 and 2011.  

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.  The Jollibee Group determines whether goodwill and other 
intangible assets with indefinite useful life is impaired at least on an annual basis or more frequently if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.  This requires an estimation of 
the value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.  Estimating the value in use requires the Jollibee 
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a suitable 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.  

Management has determined that goodwill and other intangible assets are not impaired.  The carrying 
amount of goodwill and other intangible assets amounted to P8,705.0 million and P8,534.6 million as of  
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 14).

Estimating the Fair Values of Acquiree’s Identifiable Assets and Liabilities.  Where the fair values of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets and liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, the Jollibee Group determined the fair 
values using internal valuation techniques and generally accepted valuation approaches.  The inputs to these 
valuation approaches are taken from historical experience and observable markets where possible, but where 
this is not feasible, estimates are used in establishing fair values.  The estimates may include discount rates and 
assumptions used in cash flow projections. 

In 2012, the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired from San Pin Wang amounted to P46.4 million 
(see Note 11).

In 2011, the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired from Mang Inasal, BK Group, Chowking US 
Operations and Chow Fun amounted to P1,707.1 millions, P111.5 million, P276.1 million and P17.2 million, 
respectively (see Note 11).

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties.  The Jollibee Group performs impairment 
review of property, plant and equipment and investment properties when certain impairment indicators are 
present.  Determining the fair value of assets, which requires the determination of future cash flows expected 
to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Jollibee Group 
to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial statements.  Future 
events could cause the Jollibee Group to conclude that the assets are impaired.  Any resulting impairment loss 
could have a material adverse impact on the Jollibee Group’s financial position and performance.

Provision for impairment loss amounted to P50.7 million and nil in 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The 
aggregate carrying values of property, plant and equipment and investment properties amounted 
to P11,813.5 million and P11,352.8 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Notes 12 
and 13). 

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets.  The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date is reviewed 
and reduced to the extent that there are no longer sufficient taxable profits available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax assets to be utilized.  The Jollibee Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on 
deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of excess of MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO is based 
on the forecasted taxable income.  This forecast is based on past results and future expectations on revenue 
and expenses.  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets amounted to P1,030.2 million and P967.6 million as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 24).  

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation.  The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number 
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.  These assumptions 
include, among others, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and rate of salary increase.  Actual 
results that differ from the Jollibee Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods 
and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.

The assumption on the expected return on plan assets is determined on a uniform basis, taking into 
consideration the long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term investment 
returns.

The Jollibee Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.  It is the interest rate that 
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to 
settle the pension obligations.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Jollibee Group considers the 
interest rates on government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, 
and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the relate  pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.

While Jollibee Group’s assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual experience 
or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect pension and other pension obligations.

The carrying amount of pension liability amounted to P288.4 million and P278.7 million as of  
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  Unrecognized net actuarial gains (losses) amounted to P206.6 
million and (P293.8 million) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 25).

Share-based Payments.  The Parent Company measures the cost of its equity-settled transactions with 
management and employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.  
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate 
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.  The estimate also requires 
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share 
option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about these inputs.  The fair value of the share 
option is being determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.  The expected life of the stock 
options is based on the expected exercise behavior of the stock option holders and is not necessarily indicative 
of the exercise patterns that may occur.  The volatility is based on the average historical price volatility which 
may be different from the expected volatility of the shares of the Parent Company.  

Total expense arising from share-based payment recognized by the Jollibee Group amounted to 
P77.0 million, P73.6 million and P65.7 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Notes 22 and 26).
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities.  The Jollibee Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments.  The significant components of fair 
value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates, volatility rates).  The amount of changes in fair value would differ if different valuation methodologies 
and assumptions are utilized.  Any changes in the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would 
directly affect profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 31.

Contingent Consideration or Earn-out. The Jollibee Group has an existing joint venture agreement with 
contingent consideration or earn-out provisions.  This requires the estimation of payout associated with the 
probability-weighted discounted cash flow model, taking into consideration the specific conditions outlined 
in the purchase agreement that must be met to satisfy the contingency.  Based on management’s assessment, 
there was no additional consideration to be recognized as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (see Note 11).

Provisions.  The Jollibee Group recognizes a provision for an obligation resulting from a past event when it has 
assessed that it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  These assessments are made based on available 
evidence, including the opinion of experts.  Future events and developments may result in changes in these 
assessments which may impact the financial condition and results of operations.

There were no additional provisions recorded in 2012 and 2011.  Total outstanding provisions for  
legal claims and restructuring costs amounted to P30.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011  
(see Note 17).

Contingencies.  The Jollibee Group is currently involved in litigations, claims and disputes which are normal 
to its business.  The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed 
in consultation with the Jollibee Group’s legal counsels and based upon an analysis of potential results.  
Except for those legal claims provided under Note 17, management believes that the ultimate liability, if 
any, with respect to the other litigations, claims and disputes will not materially affect the financial position 
and performance of the Jollibee Group. 

Segment Information5. 

For management purposes, the Jollibee Group is organized into segments based on the nature of the 
products and services offered and geographical locations.  The Executive Management Committee 
monitors the operating results of its segments separately for resource allocation and performance 
assessment.  Segment results are evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently 
with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Business Segments
The Jollibee Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature 
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets. 

The food service segment is involved in the operations of QSR and the manufacture of food 	
products to be sold to Jollibee Group-owned and franchised QSR outlets.

The franchising segment is involved in the franchising of the Jollibee Group’s QSR store concepts.	

The leasing segment leases store sites mainly to the Jollibee Group’s independent franchisees. 	

The following tables present certain information on revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and other 
segment information of the different business segments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012:

2012
 Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenues from external 

customers P67,751,942 P3,143,620 P163,477  P– P71,059,039
Inter-segment revenues 21,173,546 559,947 1,889,953 (23,623,446)  – 
Segment revenues 88,925,488 3,703,567 2,053,430 (23,623,446) 71,059,039
Segment expenses (87,601,981) (559,947) (2,120,384) 23,623,446 (66,658,866)
Impairment losses on 

property, plant and 
equipment, investment 
properties and security 
deposits (53,677)  –  –  – (53,677)

Equity in net earnings (loss) of 
joint ventures and an 
associate (50,954)  –  –  – (50,954)

Other segment income 488,029  – 15,506  – 503,535
Segment result P1,706,905 P3,143,620 (P51,448)  P– 4,799,077
Interest income 270,114
Interest expense (206,013)
Income before income tax 4,863,178 
Provision for income tax (1,150,115) 
Net income P3,713,063
Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets P40,516,074  P– P444,490  P– P40,960,564
Deferred tax assets 1,011,965  – 18,283  – 1,030,248 

Consolidated assets P41,528,039  P– P462,773  P– P41,990,812
Segment liabilities 13,677,760  P– P123,023  P– P13,800,783
Deferred tax liabilities 786,811  – 3,465  – 790,276
Long-term debt - including 

current portion 5,427,456  –  –  – 5,427,456
Income tax payable 77,361  – 1,597  – 78,958
Consolidated liabilities P19,969,388  P– P128,085  P– P20,097,473
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P3,755,907  P–  P–  P– P3,755,907
Depreciation and amortization 2,700,694  – 4,942  – 2,705,636

2011
 Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenue from external 

customers P59,513,806 P2,893,497 P147,624  P– P62,554,927
Inter-segment revenue 8,331,488 448,801 1,000,582 (9,780,871)  –
Segment revenue 67,845,294 3,342,298 1,148,206 (9,780,871) 62,554,927
Segment expenses (66,763,505) (448,801) (1,221,356) 9,780,871 (58,652,791)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of 

a joint venture 299  –  –  – 299
(Forward)
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Geographical Segments
The Jollibee Group’s geographical segments are based on the location of the assets producing revenues 
in the Philippines and in other locations (which includes PRC and the U.S.).  Sales to external customers 
disclosed in the geographical segments are based on the geographical location of the customers.

Majority of the Jollibee Group’s revenues were generated from the Philippines, which is the Jollibee Group’s 
country of domicile.

The Jollibee Group does not have a single external customer which revenue amounts to 10% or more of 
the Jollibee Group’s revenues.

The following table presents revenues, segment assets and capital expenditures of the Jollibee Group’s 
geographical segments:

Philippines International Eliminations Consolidated
(In Thousands)

2012
Revenues P55,680,452 P15,668,586 (P289,999) P71,059,039
Segment assets 26,317,863 14,642,701 – 40,960,564
Capital expenditures 2,250,655 1,505,252 – 3,755,907
2011
Revenues 50,235,281 12,475,708 (156,062) 62,554,927
Segment assets 24,440,521 13,473,612 – 37,914,133
Capital expenditures 2,263,819 1,444,642 – 3,708,461
2010
Revenues 43,525,283 9,956,400 (109,958) 53,371,725
Segment assets 23,510,189 9,315,678 – 32,825,867
Capital expenditures 1,584,893 999,218 – 2,584,111

Cash and Cash Equivalents6. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Cash on hand P194,069,517 P169,886,592
Cash in banks 3,289,593,582 2,315,131,475
Short-term deposits 5,364,928,485 4,170,294,808

P8,848,591,584 P6,655,312,875

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective savings or special demand deposit rates.  

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate 
cash requirements of the Jollibee Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to P159.9 million,  
P101.1 million and P138.1 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 23).

2011
 Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Consolidated

Other segment income P 557,656  P– P9,159  P– P566,815
Segment result P1,639,744 P2,893,497 (P63,991)  P– 4,469,250
Interest income 179,763
Interest expense (291,343)
Income before income tax 4,357,670
Provision for income tax (1,103,867)
Net income P3,253,803

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets P37,533,050  P– P381,083  P– P37,914,133 
Deferred tax assets 947,884  – 19,730  – 967,614

Consolidated assets P38,480,934  P– P400,813  P– P38,881,747 

Segment liabilities P13,012,672  P– (P10,912)  P– P13,001,760 
Deferred tax liabilities 778,428  – 4,345  – 782,773 
Long-term debt - including 

current portion 4,720,044  –  –  – 4,720,044
Income tax payable 153,606  – 1,111  – 154,717
Consolidated liabilities P18,664,750  P– (P5,456)  P– P18,659,294 

Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P3,708,461  P–  P–  P– P3,708,461
Depreciation and amortization 2,393,467  – 8,127  – 2,401,594

2010
 Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenue from external 

customers P50,726,553 P2,478,141 P167,031  – P53,371,725
Inter-segment revenue 14,670,445 519,205 957,085 (16,146,735)  –
Segment revenue 65,396,998 2,997,346 1,124,116 (16,146,735) 53,371,725
Segment expenses (64,262,293) (519,205) (1,139,808) 16,146,735 (49,774,571) 
Equity in net earnings (loss) of 

a joint venture (2,181)  –  –  – (2,181)
Other segment income 619,128  – 1,951  – 621,079
Segment result P1,751,652 P2,478,141 (P13,741)  P– 4,216,052
Interest income P163,081
Interest expense (193,201)
Income before income tax 4,185,932
Provision for income tax (973,396)
Net income P3,212,536

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets P32,461,107  P– P364,761  P– P32,825,868
Deferred tax assets 878,654  – 41,485  – 920,139
Consolidated assets P33,339,761  P– P406,246  P– P33,746,007

Segment liabilities P12,566,756  P– P168,961  P– P12,735,717
Deferred tax liabilities 760,320  – 8,061  – 768,381
Long-term debt - including 

current portion 2,392,714  –  –  – 2,392,714
Income tax payable 166,154  – 1,598  – 167,752
Consolidated liabilities P15,885,944  P– P178,620  P– P16,064,564
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P2,584,111  P–  P–  P– P2,584,111
Depreciation and amortization 1,972,717  – 5,289  – 1,978,006
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Receivables7. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Trade P2,714,763,623 P2,250,407,136
Less allowance for impairment loss 260,138,120 164,744,992

2,454,625,503 2,085,662,144
Receivable from retirement fund 130,494,012 137,745,214
Advances to employees 95,502,388 100,368,090
Current portion of employee car plan receivables 50,300,588 43,901,365
Others 19,419,000 20,940,239

P2,750,341,491 P2,388,617,052

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on a 30-60 days term.

Receivable from retirement fund represents retirement benefits advanced by the Jollibee Group to 
employees which are expected to be collected from the retirement fund within the next financial year.

Advances to employees, current portion of employee car plan receivables and other receivables are 
expected to be collected within the next financial year. 

The movements in the allowance for impairment loss for trade receivables as of December 31 are as 
follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P164,744,992 P136,082,073
Provisions (Note 22) 98,068,162 35,354,094
Recovery (Note 22) (508,671) (1,711,028)
Write-offs (1,113,709) (5,000,000)
Translation adjustments (1,052,654) 19,853
Balance at end of year P260,138,120 P164,744,992

The provisions in 2012 and 2011 resulted from specific and collective impairment assessments performed 
by the Jollibee Group.

Inventories 8. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011
At cost:
 Food supplies and processed inventories P2,498,077,691 P2,659,794,971
 Packaging, store and other supplies 118,104,894 176,813,937

2,616,182,585 2,836,608,908
At net realizable value - 
 Novelty items 13,560,892 23,494,371
Total inventories at lower of cost and net  

realizable value P2,629,743,477 P2,860,103,279

The cost of novelty items carried at net realizable value amounted to P20.8 million and P46.2 million as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The movements in the allowance for inventory obsolescence as of December 31 are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P22,731,966 P86,644,301
Provisions (Note 22) 2,154,527 19,476,323
Reversals (Note 22) (13,316,722) (13,378,752)
Write-offs (4,370,891) (70,009,906)
Balance at end of year P7,198,880 P22,731,966

Other Current Assets9. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Deposits to suppliers and others P567,340,190 P653,903,361
Prepaid expenses:
 Rent 421,171,321 364,942,365
 Taxes 184,878,704 112,741,258
 Insurance and other prepayments 145,314,639 170,509,345
Supplies 75,820,509 52,818,366

P1,394,525,363 P1,354,914,695

Deposits to suppliers and others are generally applied to purchase of inventories and availment of services 
within the next financial year.

Prepaid expenses and supplies are charged to operations in the next financial year as the related expenses 
are incurred.

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets10. 

This account consists of unquoted investments in shares of public utility companies amounting to 
P128.1 million and P120.6 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The movements on the carrying value of AFS financial assets are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P120,649,438 P176,283,046
Additions 7,500,000  –
Reclassification – (50,866,500)
Fair value changes – (4,537,748)
Write-offs – (229,360)
Balance at end of year P128,149,438 P120,649,438

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there is no change in the unrealized gain on AFS financial assets 
amounting to P102.6 million.

Reclassification out of AFS in 2011 pertains to previously held equity interest in Chow Fun Holdings which 
was increased to 80.55% ownership (see Note 11).
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Business Combinations, Incorporation of New Subsidiaries, and Interests in and Advances to Joint 11. 
Ventures, Co-venturers and Associate

Acquisition in 2012

Business Combination through Acquisition of Equity Shares

San Pin Wang.  On March 9, 2012, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL, completed its acquisition of 55% 
of Guangxi San Pin Wang Food and Beverage Management Company Limited (“San Pin Wang”)  
which operates the San Pin Wang beef noodle business in South China for a total acquisition cost 
of RMB30 million (P195.9 million).  The Jollibee Group paid RMB20 million (P135.1 million) as of  
December 31, 2012.  The remaining RMB10 million (P67.6 million) was paid in March 2013.  The remaining 
45% is held by Guangxi Zong Kai Food Beverage Investment Company Limited (“GZK”).

Subsuequent to the acquisition date, the Jollibee Group and GZK contributed additional investments 
amounting to P74.6 million and P59.3 million, respectively.

The primary reason for the acquisition of San Pin Wang is to expand the Jollibee Group’s chain of QSRs and 
to serve high-quality but affordable noodles to urban areas in China.

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition were 
as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents P7,525,090
Receivables 2,894,103 
Inventories 13,041,495
Other current assets 31,336,869
Property, plant and equipment (see Note 12) 71,613,166
Other noncurrent assets 13,891,399
Total identifiable assets acquired 140,302,122
Less:
 Trade payables and other current liabilities 93,867,653
Net identifiable assets acquired P46,434,469

Goodwill acquired in the business combination was determined as follows:

Fair value of consideration transferred:
 Cash P135,110,309
 Liability 60,826,786
Total 195,937,095
Non-controlling interests’ share in the net assets acquired 20,895,511
Aggregate amount 216,832,606
Less acquisition - date fair value of net assets acquired 46,434,469
Goodwill (Note 14) P170,398,137

Goodwill pertains to the value of expected synergy arising from the business combination.

The fair value of acquired receivables approximates their carrying value.  No impairment loss was 
provided on these receivables.

The net cash outflow on the acquisition is as follows:

Cash paid on acquisition P135,110,309
Less cash acquired from subsidiary 7,525,090

P127,585,219

San Pin Wang contributed P709.6 million and P6.5 million from the date of acquisition to  
December 31, 2012 to the consolidated revenue and net income for the period, respectively.  If the business 
combination had taken place at the beginning of 2012, consolidated revenue and net income for the year 
would have been P71,212.6 million and P3,712.2 million, respectively. 

Acquisitions prior to 2012

Business Combination through Acquisition of Equity Shares

Burger King.  On September 30, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, acquired a majority 
ownership of the firm that operates Burger King in the Philippines.  The Parent Company invested P65.5 
million to purchase 54% equity interest in BKTitans, Inc., owner of PERF Restaurants, Inc. (or collectively 
the BK Group), the sole franchisee of the Burger King Brand in the Philippines.

The Jollibee Group’s primary reason for the business combination is to gain presence in the premium price 
segment of the hamburger category in the fast food market.

Mang Inasal.  On November 22, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, acquired 70% of the 
issued and outstanding shares of Mang Inasal from Injap Investments, Inc. (the seller), owner and operator 
of Mang Inasal restaurant business in the Philippines, for a total acquisition cost of P2,976.2 million.  The 
Jollibee Group paid P2,700.0 million as of December 31, 2010.  The present value of the remaining 10% of 
the purchase price amounting to P276.2 million is payable over a 3-year period until 2013.  Such amount 
was withheld as assurance for indemnification against the seller’s representations and warranties.  The first 
half of the remaining liability was paid in 2011 while the second installment was paid in 2012.

The Jollibee Group’s primary reason for the business combination is to grow Mang Inasal’s sales from 
existing stores through application of the Jollibee Group’s knowledge of consumers and available recipes 
and products, continued expansion of Mang Inasal’s store network, cost improvement on its raw materials 
and operational efficiency by applying the Jollibee Group’s technology and scale.

Mang Inasal contributed P432.2 million and P49.1 million from the date of acquisition to  
December 31, 2010 to the consolidated revenue and net income for the period, respectively.  If the business 
combination had taken place at the beginning of 2010, consolidated revenue and net income for the year 
would have been P55,751.2 million and P3,392.4 million, respectively. 

Business Combination through Purchase of Assets

Chowking US operations.  On May 27, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, 
TTC, entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Fortune Capital Corporation, owner and operator 
of all Chowking stores in the US as the master licensee therein, to purchase the latter’s property and 
equipment, inventories and security deposits of its twenty (20) existing stores.  The purchase consideration 
amounted to P693.3 million.  The Jollibee Group paid P520.0 million of the total consideration as of  
December 31, 2011.  The balance shall be paid over the next five (5) years. 
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In May 2012, P33.7 million (US$0.8 million) of the outstanding balance was paid.

With this acquisition, the Jollibee Group will be poised to take a more active role to further the growth of 
the Chowking business in the USA.

Business Combination Achieved in Stages

Jinja Bar and Bistro.  On March 31, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, JWPL, 
acquired from Aspen Partners, LLC 2,400 shares of Chow Fun Holdings, LLC (“Chow Fun”) for US$3.2 million 
(P139.6 million), bringing up its equity share in Chow Fun to 80.55%.  The Jollibee Group (through JWPL) 
previously held 13.89% equity share in Chow Fun.  Chow Fun is the developer and owner of Jinja Bar and 
Bistro in New Mexico, USA.

The carrying amount of the previously held equity interest in Chow Fun was presented as part of AFS 
financial assets in 2010.  Prior to the business combination, the previously held equity interest was 
remeasured at the acquisition-date fair value resulting to a loss amounting to P12.8 million which was 
recognized in the statements of comprehensive income under “General and administrative expenses” 
account in 2011 (see Note 22). 

The Jollibee Group’s objective in this venture is to enhance its capability in developing Asian food restaurant 
concepts for the mainstream consumers in the United States as part of its long-term strategy.

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Mang Inasal, BK Group, 
Chowking US Operations, and Chow Fun as at the dates of acquisitions were as follows: 

Mang Inasal BK Group

Chowking US 
Operations

(As restated - 
Note 2) Chow Fun

Cash and cash equivalents P132,213,023 P17,071,231 P– P4,870,336
Receivables 113,733,554 5,951,921 – 331,325
Inventories 126,423,715 13,302,567 14,515,550 3,883,969
Other current assets 557,888 3,245,199 – 3,073,027
Property, plant and equipment* 263,083,640 222,303,494 262,106,940 105,912,607
Trademark 2,004,255,942 – – –
Deferred tax assets – 3,323,559 – –
Other noncurrent assets 26,086,618 50,269,948 6,322,410 –
Total identifiable assets acquired 2,666,354,380 315,467,919 282,944,900 118,071,264
Less:

Trade payables and other current             
liabilities  271,381,354 168,691,196 – 23,760,278

 Long-term liabilities – – – 77,128,142
 Income tax payable 59,145,715 1,102,058 – –
 Deferred tax liabilities 628,717,866 30,976,291 6,889,470 –
 Pension liability (Note 25) – 3,199,600 – –
Total identifiable liabilities assumed 959,244,935 203,969,145 6,889,470 100,888,420
Net identifiable assets acquired P1,707,109,445 P111,498,774 P276,055,430 P17,182,844
* The carrying amount of Mang Inasal and BK Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to 

P 171.6 million and P 119.9 million at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill acquired in the business combinations was determined as follows:

Mang Inasal BK Group

Chowking US 
Operations

(As restated - 
Note 2)

Chow Fun

Fair value of consideration 
transferred:

 Cash P2,700,000,000 P– P519,960,000 P139,644,000
 Advances – 65,454,545 – –
 Liability 276,243,250 – 139,950,677 –
Total 2,976,243,250 65,454,545 659,910,677 139,644,000
Non-controlling interests’ share in 

the net assets acquired 512,132,834 51,289,436 – 3,340,345
Previously held equity interests 

(13.89%) – – – 29,092,500
Aggregate amount 3,488,376,084 116,743,981 659,910,677 172,076,845
Less acquisition - date fair value 

of net assets acquired 1,707,109,445 111,498,774 276,055,430 17,182,844
Goodwill P1,781,266,639 P5,245,207 P383,855,247 P154,894,001

Advances were made to the BK Group prior to its acquisition in 2011.

The net cash outflows on the acquisitions are as follows:
2011 2010

Cash paid
 Mang Inasal  P– P2,700,000,000
 BK Group  –  –
 Chowking US Operations 519,960,000  –
 Chow Fun 139,644,000  –

659,604,000 2,700,000,000
Less cash acquired from subsidiary
 Mang Inasal  P– P132,213,023
 BK Group 17,071,231  –
 Chowking US Operations  –  –
 Chow Fun 4,870,336  –

21,941,567 132,213,023
P654,733,664 P2,567,786,977
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The BK Group, Chowking US Operations, and Chow Fun contributed P719.4 million and P23.6 million from 
the date of acquisition to December 31, 2011 to the consolidated revenue and net income for the period, 
respectively.  If the business combinations had taken place at the beginning of 2011, consolidated revenue 
and net income for the year would have been P63,170.9 million and P3,262.1 million, respectively. The 
rollforward analysis of the liability for acquisition of businesses follows:

 San Pin Wang

 Chowking US 
 Operations
 (Note 2)  Mang Inasal

 Hangzhou 
Yonghe Total

Balance at January 1, 2011  P–  P– P279,783,543 P31,665,403 P311,448,946
Accretion  –  – 11,953,746  – 11,953,746
Additions  – 139,950,657  –  – 139,950,657
Settlements  –  – (146,459,707) (31,665,403) (178,125,110)
Acquisition price adjustment  –  – (3,540,293)  – (3,540,293)
Translation adjustments  – 2,040,000  –  – 2,040,000
Balance at December 31, 2011  – 141,990,657 141,737,289  – 283,727,946
Additions 60,826,786 –  –  – 60,826,786
Accretion 5,391,461 10,298,401 5,554,978  – 21,244,840
Settlements  – (33,696,000) (75,000,000) – (108,696,000)
Translation adjustments (2,439,259) (8,835,568) –  – (11,274,827)
Balance at December 31, 2012 P63,778,988 P109,757,490 P72,292,267  P– P245,828,745

Incorporation of New Subsidiaries
Golden Beeworks Pte. Ltd. (Golden Beeworks).  On May 16, 2012, the Jollibee Group, through GPPL, entered 
into an agreement to form Golden Beeworks together with Beeworks, Inc. (“Beeworks”), to own and operate 
Jollibee stores in Singapore.  Under the agreement, the parties will establish Golden Beeworks in Singapore 
which will be owned 60% by GPPL and 40% by Beeworks.  GPPL will have full management control of the 
company, while leveraging on Beework’s experience, reputation and network to establish the “Jollibee” 
brand in Singapore.  The initial funding for Golden Beeworks is US$1 million.  Golden Beeworks was 
incorporated on July 19, 2012 but has not yet started its commercial operation as of December 31, 2012. 

As of December 31, 2012, capital contributions of the Jollibee Group to Beeworks amounted to  
P31.2 million.

JFPPL.  On July 27, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL, signed an agreement with Hua Xia Harvest 
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (Hua Xia Harvest), a Singapore-based company, to undertake food manufacturing 
operations to supply products to food service businesses primarily to entities within the Jollibee Group.  
Under the terms of the agreement, the Jollibee Group and Hua Xia Harvest formed JFPPL in Singapore 
which is 70% owned by the Jollibee Group and 30% owned by Hua Xia Harvest.  JFPPL started commercial 
operation in the last quarter of 2011.

Interests in and Advances to Joint Ventures, Co-venturers and Associate

 2012 2011
Interests in and advances to SuperFoods joint 

ventures and co-venturers P2,891,167,600  P–
Interest in joint venture - Wowprime 98,040,000  –
Interest in joint venture - Coffeetap  – 3,188,515
 2,989,207,600 3,188,515
Interest in an associate 22,293,981  –

P3,011,501,581 P3,188,515

Wowprime.  On August 22, 2012, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL and GPPL, entered into an agreement with 
Hoppime Ltd., a subsidiary of Wowprime Corporation of Taiwan (Wowprime) and some key executives of 

Wowprime, to establish a joint venture entity to own and operate the 12 Hotpot brand in the People’s Republic 
of China, Hong Kong and Macau.  The “12 Hotpot” restaurant is known in Taiwan for its low-priced hot dishes.

The joint venture entity, incorporated as WJ Investments Limited (WJ), is 48% owned by the Jollibee Group 
and 48% by Wowprime’s subsidiary and executives.  The remaining 4% is owned by certain individuals with 
experience in the retail sector in China.  Through their subsidiaries, Jollibee Group and Wowprime will share 
equal control and management of WJ.  The expected investment from Jollibee Group for the period 2012 
to 2015 is equivalent to approximately US$8 million.

The Jollibee Group has invested US$2.4 million (P98.0 million) as of December 31, 2012.  No stores were 
opened in 2012.

SuperFoods Group.  On January 20, 2012, upon fulfillment of certain legal and regulatory requirements in 
Vietnam, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL, acquired effective ownership of 50% share in the business of 
the SuperFoods Group through formation of joint ventures. This consists of a 49% share in SF Vung Tau 
Joint Stock Company, organized in Vietnam, and a 60% share in Blue Sky Holding Limited in Hongkong (the 
SuperFoods Holding Companies). The formation of joint ventures is an implementation of the Framework 
Agreement made on May 20, 2011 between the Jollibee Group, through JWPL and its partner, Viet Thai 
International Joint Stock Company and Viet Thai International Company limited (collectively, SuperFoods 
Group).  The Framework Agreement provided for the Jollibee Group to contribute a total of US$25 million 
to gain 50% effective ownership of the joint ventures.  Loans and deposits were made to SuperFoods 
Group and co-venturers prior to the formation of the joint ventures in 2012 (see Note 15).

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the preliminary consideration for the 50% share in SuperFoods 
Group amounted to a cash payment of US$25 million in 2011.

The Supplemental Agreement further provides the following formula that might result in additional 
payment on the part of JWPL in 2016:

The actual EBITDA results of SuperFoods Group multiplied by specified multiples reduced by its (a) 
net debt and multiplied by 30% weight  recognized for the First Portion Measurement Period 
(January 1-December 31, 2012) and the actual EBITDA results of SuperFoods Group multiplied 
by specified multiples reduced by its net debt and multiplied by 20% weight recognized for the 
Second Portion Measurement Period (for July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016); the resulting amount of 
which will be compared with:

The aggregate balance of ‘Interests in the joint ventures’ and ‘Advances to joint ventures and  (b) 
co-venturers’ and accrued interests as of June 30, 2016.  

If the resulting amount of the above formula is positive (contingent consideration):

The co-venturers shall sell its 1 share in JSF Investments to JWPL for a purchase price equal to the (i) 
Loan to co-ventureres and accrued interests (the Outstanding Balance) and the proceeds shall 
be used by the co-venturers to repay the Loan; and
The contingent consideration is payable in cash to the co-venturers.(ii) 

If the result of the above formula is negative (negative earnout):
The co-venturers shall still sell its 1 share in JSF Investments to JWPL at US$1.00;(i) 
The co-venturers shall repay the loan if the consolidated EBITDA of the SuperFoods Holding (ii) 
Companies for the Second Portion Measurement Period is:

above US$25.0 million, the Outstanding Balance shall be deemed paid;a. 
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US$25.0 million or below, JSF Investments shall have the right to acquire such b. 
number of shares in the SuperFoods Holding Companies as would satisfy the 
repayment of the Outstanding Balances;
negative as a result of which the Outstanding Balance cannot be fully satisfied even c. 
if JSF Investments acquires 100% of the co-venturers’ shares in SuperFoods Holding 
Companies, the deficiency shall be paid to JSF Investments in cash.  The co-
venturers shall have a period of 6 months from the last day of the Second Portion 
Measurement Period within which to repay the Outstanding Balance in cash, before 
JSF Investments may exercise its option to be paid with shares of SuperFoods 
Holding Companies.  If JSF Investments exercises its option to be paid in shares of 
SuperFoods Holding Companies, the co-venturers shall, within a 6 month period 
from JSF Investments’ exercise of its option, have the right to acquire additional 
equity in SuperFoods Holding Companies to the extent required to restore the 
ownership interest of the co-venturers and JSF Investments to the proportion prior 
to exercise of the option; provided that the co-venturers’ acquisition of additional 
equity shall be at the same valuation applied to JSF Investments.

JWPL shall be required to pay the co-venturers an additional amount based upon achieving a positive 
amount resulting from the above formula.  Based on management’s assessment using the above earn-out 
formula, no additional consideration needs to be recognized as of January 20, 2012 and as of December 31, 
2012.  The resulting amount is a negative earn-out, as a result of inputs for the Second Portion Measurement 
on EBITDA, computed using a probability-weighted discounted cash flow model.  

Loans and deposits made to SuperFoods Group prior to its formation in 2012 was presented as advances 
to SuperFoods Group under “Other noncurrent asssets” in 2011 (see Note 15).

The details of Jollibee Group’s interests in SuperFoods joint venture and advances to co-venturers as of 
December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Interest in a joint venture - cost P1,086,562,975
Equity in net loss for the year (72,463,639)

1,014,099,336
Advances to the joint ventures and co-venturer:
Balance at beginning of year (Note 15) 2,903,505,390
Reclassification (Note 15) (1,086,562,975)
Additions 105,179,193
Accrual of interest 84,322,262
Translation adjustments (129,375,606)
Balance at end of year 1,877,068,264

P2,891,167,600

The aggregate amounts as of December 31, 2012 related to the Jollibee Group’s 50% interest in 
SuperFoods Group follow:
Current assets P364,076,454
Noncurrent assets 1,754,029,008
Total assets 2,118,105,462

Total liabilities 828,490,870

Income 1,443,108,084
Expenses (1,588,035,362)
Net loss (P144,927,278)

Coffeetap Corporation (Coffeetap).  On May 4, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, entered 
into a joint venture agreement with its partners to become the master franchisee in the Philippines of 
“Caffe Ti-Amo”, a Korean restaurant brand offering coffee and gelato (Italian ice cream) in a casual dining 
format.  The joint venture entity, incorporated as Coffeetap Corporation, is 50%-owned by the Jollibee 
Group and 50%-owned by its partners, with an initial capitalization of P10.0 million.

On November 30, 2011, Coffeetap sold its assets to CaféFrance Corporation with cash proceeds of 
P20.8 million.  The Company also terminated its franchise agreement with Caffe Ti-Amo Korea on the same 
date.  The dissolution plans for Coffeetap has been formally approved by the BOD on June 26, 2012.  As at 
June 30, 2012, the Company distributed the original capital to its stockholders, net of deficit, amounting 
to P4.7 million.

Accordingly, the Company has changed its basis of accounting from the going concern basis to the 
liquidation basis whereby as at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 assets are presented at estimated 
realizable values and all liabilities at estimated settlement amounts.

Interest in an Associate

The Jollibee Group, through JIBL, has 33% ownership over Entrek (B) SDN BHD (Entrek), a company that 
operates Jollibee stores in Brunei.  As of December 31, 2011, the Jollibee Group’s investment in Entrek 
is carried at nil due to its equity share in the previous losses of Entrek.  As of and for the period ended 
December 31, 2012, the Jollibee Group recognized its investment in the associate and equity in net 
earnings amounting to P22.3 million coming from Entrek’s improved operations.

The details of the Jollibee Group’s interest in an associate as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as 
follows:

2012 2011
Interests in an associate - cost P16,660,000 P16,660,000
Cumulative equity in net loss:
 Balance at beginning of year (16,660,000) (16,660,000)
 Equity in net earnings during the year 22,293,981  –
 Balance at end of year 5,633,981  –

P22,293,981  P–

Cessation of Operations of Manong Pepe Karinderia
On April 9, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fresh N’ Famous, discontinued 
the operations of its Manong Pepe Karinderia business unit.  The move is part of the Jollibee Group’s plan 
to concentrate resources in building larger QSR businesses.  The cessation of operation of Manong Pepe 
Karinderia did not have a material impact on the Jollibee Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

Sale of Delifrance Business Unit’s Assets
Fresh N’ Famous terminated its franchise agreement with Delifrance Asia Limited effective  
December 31, 2010.  Assets of Delifrance Business Unit were sold to CaféFrance Corporation on 
December 31, 2010 with cash proceeds of P110.3 million.  The termination of the franchise agreement is  
part of the management’s intention to concentrate its resources in building larger QSR businesses.
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Property, Plant and Equipment12. 

The rollforward analysis of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
2012

 Land and 
 Land 
 Improvements

 Plant, 
 Buildings,  
 Condominium 
 Units and  
 Improvements

 Leasehold 
 Rights and  

Improvements

 Office, Store 
 and Food 
 Processing 
 Equipment

 Furniture and 
 Fixtures

 Transportation 
 Equipment

 Construction 
 in Progress  Total

(In Thousands)

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P679,254 P966,833 P11,203,440 P9,210,906 P877,229 P404,697 P672,799 P24,015,158
Additions 2,000 760,670 1,343,646 1,106,655 97,220 38,084 407,632 3,755,907
Arising from business combination (Note 11)  – 2,906 39,122 41,801 5,833 1,742 2,275 93,679
Retirements and disposals  – (38,316) (1,069,962) (445,367) (43,004) (38,025) (12,377) (1,647,051)
Reclassifications (Note 13) (15,773) (7,304) 395,729 360,364 (1,969) (41,087) (713,556) (23,596)
Translation adjustments (3,687) (6,128) (228,055) (84,222) (11,442) (3,436) (64,019) (400,989)
Balance at end of year 661,794 1,678,661 11,683,920 10,190,137 923,867 361,975 292,754 25,793,108
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 7,220 699,836 5,566,671 6,330,640 583,019 247,405  – 13,434,791
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 143 48,535 1,369,815 1,105,570 123,007 45,344  – 2,692,414
Arising from business combination (Note 11)  – 277 6,960 12,684 1,510 634  – 22,065
Retirements and disposals  – (10,434) (864,279) (347,909) (36,303) (29,869)  – (1,288,794)
Reclassifications (177) (65,043) 78,511 (3,767) (1,222) (8,302)  –  –
Translation adjustments  – (4,637) (93,265) (51,425) (4,465) (2,540)  – (156,332)
Balance at end of year 7,186 668,534 6,064,413 7,045,793 665,546 252,672  – 14,704,144
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning of year  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –
Impairment loss during the year (Note 22)  –  –  – 29,500  –  –  – 29,500
Balance at end of year  –  –  – 29,500  –  –  – 29,500
Net Book Value P654,608 P1,010,127 P5,619,507 P3,114,844 P258,321 P109,303 P292,754 P11,059,464

2011 (As restated - Note 2)

 Land and 
 Land 
 Improvements

 Plant, 
 Buildings,  
 Condominium 
 Units and  
 Improvements

 Leasehold 
  Rights and 

Improvements

 Office, Store 
 and Food 
 Processing 
 Equipment

 Furniture and 
 Fixtures

 Transportation 
 Equipment

 Construction 
 in Progress  Total

(In Thousands)

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P657,165 P996,048 P9,126,262 P8,604,349 P611,650 P364,786 P205,466 P20,565,726
Additions  – 3,675 1,520,970 1,078,019 171,422 75,017 851,346 3,700,449
Arising from business combination (Note 11) 21,826  – 571,204 334,979 158,214 6,018 7,234 1,099,475
Retirements and disposals (278) (36,698) (433,903) (873,487) (69,066) (42,364) (7,185) (1,462,981)
Reclassifications (Note 13) 541 2,359 337,400 44,583 6,017 (18) (386,678) 4,204
Translation adjustments  – 1,449 81,507 22,463 (1,008) 1,258 2,616 108,285
Balance at end of year 679,254 966,833 11,203,440 9,210,906 877,229 404,697 672,799 24,015,158
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 6,674 680,629 4,568,886 5,843,478 456,008 239,532  – 11,795,207
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 820 42,698 1,162,513 1,032,343 106,122 42,821  – 2,387,317
Arising from business combination (Note 11)  –  – 92,995 244,748 74,495 5,443  – 417,681
Retirements and disposals (274) (23,627) (295,297) (801,120) (53,213) (41,178)  – (1,214,709)
Translation adjustments  – 136 37,574 11,191 (393) 787  – 49,295
Balance at end of year 7,220 699,836 5,566,671 6,330,640 583,019 247,405  – 13,434,791
Net Book Value P672,034 P266,997 P5,636,769 P2,880,266 P294,210 P157,292 P672,799 P10,580,367
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The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use amounted to P5,809.3 million as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

Loss on disposals and retirements of property, plant and equipment amounted to P317.1 million,  
P216.3 million and P183.8 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Construction in progress account mainly pertains to costs incurred for ongoing construction of  plant, 
properties and soon-to-open stores.

Investment Properties13. 

The rollforward analysis of this account follows:
2012

 Land

 Buildings 
 and Building 
 Improvements  Total

(In Thousands)
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P692,858 P333,654 P1,026,512
Additions  –  –  –
Retirements and disposals (1,999) (4,264) (6,263)
Translation adjustments  – (6,304) (6,304)
Reclassifications (Note 12) 23,596  – 23,596
Balance at end of year 714,455 323,086 1,037,541
Accumulated Depreciation and 

Amortization
Balance at beginning of year  – 228,773 228,773
Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22)  – 13,212 13,212
Retirements and disposals  – (4,121) (4,121)
Translation adjustments  – (783) (783)
Reclassifications (Note 12)  –  –  –
Balance at end of year  – 237,081 237,081
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning and end of year 25,270  – 25,270
Additions (Note 22) 21,177  – 21,177
Balance at end of year 46,447  – 46,447
Net Book Value P668,008 P86,005 P754,013

2011

 Land

 Buildings 
 and Building 
 Improvements  Total

(In Thousands)
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P684,853 P331,959 P1,016,812
Additions 8,005 6 8,011
Translation adjustments – 5,893 5,893
Reclassifications (Note 12) – (4,204) (4,204)
Balance at end of year 692,858 333,654 1,026,512

(Forward)

2011

 Land

 Buildings 
 and Building 
 Improvements  Total

(In Thousands)
Accumulated Depreciation and 

Amortization
Balance at beginning of year P– P213,822 P213,822
Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22) – 14,277 14,277
Translation adjustments – 674 674
Balance at end of year – 228,773 228,773
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning and end of year 25,270  – 25,270
Net Book Value P667,588 P104,881 P772,469

The accumulated impairment loss provided in the value of land amounting to P46.4 million and 
P25.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively, represents the excess of the carrying values 
over the estimated recoverable amounts of non-income-generating investment properties, which is its 
estimated fair value less costs to sell. 

The cost of fully depreciated buildings still being leased out by the Jollibee Group amounted to  
P202.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The Jollibee Group’s investment properties have aggregate fair values P1,334.2 million as determined by 
independent appraisers in 2011.  The management does not expect a significant change in the fair value 
in 2012. 

In determining the fair value of the investment properties, the independent appraisers used the market 
data approach which considered the local market conditions, the extent, character and utility of the 
property, sales and holding prices of similar parcels of land and the highest and best use of the investment 
properties.  The fair value represents the amount at which the assets can be exchanged between a 
knowledgeable, willing seller and a knowledgeable, willing buyer in an arm’s-length transaction at the 
date of valuation in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

Rent income derived from income-generating properties amounted to P32.0 million, P56.8 million and 
P63.5 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Notes 20 and 29).  

Direct operating costs relating to the investment properties that generated rent income recognized under 
“Cost of sales” and “General and administrative expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive 
income amounted to P21.5 million, P26.5 million and P17.3 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

No investment properties as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 have been pledged as security or collateral 
for the Company’s debts (see Note 18).
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset14. 

This account consists of goodwill and trademark acquired through business combinations related to the 
following food restaurants:

 2012
 2011 
 (As restated - Note 2)

Goodwill:
 Hong Zhuang Yuan P2,497,252,906 P2,497,252,906
 Mang Inasal (see Note 11) 1,781,266,639 1,781,266,639
 Red Ribbon Bakeshop:
     Philippine operations 737,939,101 737,939,101
     US operations 434,651,055 434,651,055
      Yong He King:
 Yong He King 429,016,109 429,016,109
 Hangzhou Yonghe 106,264,544 106,264,544
 Chowking US operations (see Note 11) 383,855,247 383,855,247
 San Pin Wang (see Note 11) 170,398,137  –
 Jinja Bar & Bistro (see Note 11) 154,894,001 154,894,001
 Burger King Group (see Note 11) 5,245,207 5,245,207
Total goodwill 6,700,782,946 6,530,384,809
Trademark -
 Mang Inasal (see Note 11) 2,004,255,942 2,004,255,942
Goodwill and other intangible asset P8,705,038,888 P8,534,640,751

The rollforward analysis of goodwill follows:

 2012
 2011 
 (As restated - Note 2)

Balance at beginning of year P6,530,384,809 P5,986,390,354
Additions 170,398,137 543,994,455
Balance at end of year P6,700,782,946 P6,530,384,809

Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset
Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to nine (9) CGUs, which are 
subsidiaries of the Parent Company, owned directly or indirectly.  The recoverable amounts of the CGUs 
have been determined based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections from financial 
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions which vary per geographical 
location:

CGUs
Geographical 

Location
Pre-tax 

Discount Rate
Long-term

Growth Rate
Hong Zhuang Yuan PRC 12.02% 8.5%
Mang Inasal Philippines 12.84% 5.0%
Red Ribbon Bakeshop:
 Philippine operations Philippines 13.28% 5.0%
 US operations USA 13.48% 3.0%
Yong He King PRC 12.02% 8.5%
Chowking US operations USA 12.50% 3.0%
Jinja Bar & Bistro USA 12.50% 3.0%
Burger King Philippines 12.88% 5.0%
San Pin Wang PRC 12.36% 8.5%

Key assumptions with respect to the calculation of value in use of the cash-generating units as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 on which management had based its cash flow projection to undertake 
impairment testing of goodwill are as follows:

Discount rates - discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each a) 
CGU, regarding the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets which have not 
been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.  The discount rate calculation is based on the specific 
circumstances of the Jollibee Group and its CGUs and derived from its weighted average cost of 
capital (WACC).  The WACC takes into account both debt and equity.  The cost of equity is derived 
using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM).  The cost of debt is based on the interest bearing 
borrowings the Jollibee Group is obliged to service.  CGU-specific risk is incorporated by applying 
individual beta factors.  The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market 
data.

Long-term growth rates - rates are determined with consideration of historical and projected results, b) 
as well as the economic environment in which the CGUs operate.

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) margin - is based on the c) 
most recent value achieved in the year preceding the start of the budget period, and adjusted for 
planned efficiency improvement, if any.

No impairment loss was recognized for each of the three years in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Other Noncurrent Assets15. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Security and other deposits - net (Notes 30 and 31) P1,161,089,780 P1,069,719,992
Noncurrent portion of:
 Rent and other long-term prepayments 225,658,848 219,830,829
 Employee car plan receivables (Notes 30 and 31) 93,029,410 92,835,860
Deferred rent expense 68,937,730 63,566,673
Deferred compensation 13,866,716 15,598,069
Advances to SuperFoods Group (Note 11)  – 2,903,505,390
Other assets 94,053,660 251,975,279

P1,656,636,144 P4,617,032,092

Advances to SuperFoods Group
On May 20, 2011, the Parent Company, through JWPL, signed a Framework Agreement with Viet Thai 
International Joint Stock Company and Viet Thai International Company Limited (collectively “SuperFoods 
Group”) to establish jointly controlled entities that will own and operate a portfolio of restaurants in various 
territories including Vietnam, Hongkong, Macau and Southern China.  SuperFoods Group owns and 
operates various brands including Highlands Coffee Shops and Hard Rock Café franchised-stores in Macau, 
Hong Kong and Vietnam and Pho 24 brand.
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In accordance with the Framework Agreement, JWPL, through its 99%-owned subsidiary JSF, extended 
loans to the Superfoods Group with the details as follows:

Loan to co-venturers
Loan to the owners of the SuperFoods Group amounting to US$35.0 million (P1,436.8 million), extended 
on June 30, 2011, is payable in June 2016.  The loan bears interest of 5% per annum payable in lump sum 
also in June 2016.  The loan is agreed to be used for general corporate purposes.  Total interest from this 
loan amounted to P75.1 million and P43.3 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The US$35 million loan is 
secured by a mortgage by the co-venturers of all their shares in SuperFoods Holding Companies.

Deposits for formation of joint ventures
As of December 31, 2011, the formation of the joint ventures in Vietnam and Hong Kong are in process 
pending fulfillment of certain legal and regulatory requirements.  JSF advanced a total amount of 
US$25.0 million (P1,086.6 million) to gain 50% effective ownership of the joint ventures.  Before the 
formation of the joint ventures, the deposits are treated as advances bearing interests of 5% per annum.  
Total interest from these deposits amounted to P5.2 million.  On January 20, 2012, the formation of 
these joint ventures was completed.

Loan to Blue Sky
On June 10, 2011, a loan was extended to Blue Sky Holdings Limited (Blue Sky), the Hong Kong-based 
joint venture, amounting to US$5.0 million (P219.2 million) payable in June 2013.  The loan bears interest 
of 5% per annum payable also in June 2013.  Total interest from this loan amounted to P10.7 million and 
P6.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

On May 7, 2012, an additional loan was extended to Blue Sky amounting to US$2.5 million (P102.6 million) 
payable in May 2013.  The loan bears interest of 5% per annum payable also in May 2013.  Total interest from 
this loan amounted to P3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The carrying amount of these loans, deposits and advances, including accrued interests were reclassified 
to “Interests in and advances to joint ventures, co-venturers and associate” account in 2012.

Security and Other Deposits
Security and other deposits represent deposits for operating leases entered into by the Jollibee Group as 
lessee, including returnable containers and other deposits.  The security deposits are recoverable from the 
lessors at the end of the lease term.  These are presented at amortized cost.  The discount rates used range 
from 2% to 22% in 2012 and 2011.  The difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the 
notional amount of the security deposits is charged to “Deferred rent expense” account and amortized on 
straight-line basis over the lease terms.  

Accretion of interest on financial assets amounted to P21.6 million, P24.1 million and P22.2 million in 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 23).

The allowance for impairment loss for security and other deposits amounted to P3.0 million and nil as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities16. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Trade P4,717,064,438 P4,727,839,645
Accruals for:
 Local and other taxes 1,534,231,068 1,218,775,444
 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 1,304,409,208 994,079,595
 Advertising and promotions 741,335,875 583,427,974
 Rent 456,127,663 375,760,995
 Utilities 340,883,386 205,784,551
 Freight 169,388,956 112,605,492
 Store operations, corporate events and others 1,440,107,859 1,336,924,567
Deposits 600,180,289 300,922,559
Unearned revenue from gift certificates 75,881,257 95,225,956
Dividends payable 26,173,052 6,563,034
Other current liabilities 347,283,001 207,685,057

P11,753,066,052 P10,165,594,869

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 30-day term.

Accruals, deposits, dividends payable and other current liabilities are expected to be settled within the 
next financial year. 

Unearned revenue from gift certificates will be recognized as revenue as the gift certificates are 
redeemed.

Provisions17. 

The Jollibee Group has outstanding provisions amounting to P30.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and 
2011, consisting of provisions for legal claims and restructuring costs. 

Provisions for legal claims which amounted to P29.3 million include estimates of legal services, settlement 
amounts and other costs of claims made against the Jollibee Group.  Other information on the claims 
are not disclosed as this may prejudice the Jollibee Group’s position on such claims.  The Jollibee Group’s 
management, after consultation with its legal counsel, believes that the provisions are sufficient to meet 
the costs related to the claims.

The provision for restructuring costs amounting to P1.2 million relates to the Jollibee Group’s Cost 
Improvement Program to improve the quality of services and reduce the costs of backroom operations for 
its various QSR systems.
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Short-term and Long-term Debts18. 

Short-term Debt
Short-term debt as of December 31, 2011 consists of unsecured short-term bank loan of the Parent 
Company with an interest rate of 2.63%.  This loan was paid in full, including accrued interest, on 
April 17, 2012.

Short-term debt amounted to nil and P900.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  
Interest expense recognized on short-term debt amounted to P14.8 million, P78.9 million and P9.5 million 
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 23).

Long-term Debt
The details of the Jollibee Group’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
USD-denominated:
 Loan 1 P1,231,500,000 P1,753,600,000 
 Loan 2 916,998,808 1,304,591,970
 Loan 3 287,350,000  –
 Loan 4 533,650,000  –
 Loan 5 821,000,000  –
 Loan 6 1,058,211 19,973,021
PHP-denominated:
 Loan 7 1,496,329,397 1,492,650,649
 Loan 8 139,570,000 149,228,380

5,427,456,416 4,720,044,020
Less current portion 4,572,839,927 777,301,991

P854,616,489 P3,942,742,029

USD-denominated loans of JWPL.  Loan 1 consists of a 3-year unsecured loan acquired from a local bank on 
April 29, 2011 amounting to US$40.0 million (or P1,712.0 million) with a fixed interest rate of 2.53%.  The 
principal is payable in 4 semi-annual installments commencing on October 29, 2012 up to April 28, 2014, 
the date of maturity.

Loan 2 consists of a 3-year unsecured loan acquired from a foreign bank on May 9, 2011 amounting to 
US$30.0 million (or P1,287.9 million) with a fixed interest rate of 2.72%.  The principal is payable in 4 semi-
annual installments commencing on November 9, 2012 up to May 8, 2014, the date of maturity.

The loan agreements above provide certain restrictions and requirements principally with respect  
to maintenance of required financial ratios and material change in ownership or control.  As at  
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Jollibee Group is in compliance with the terms of its loan covenants.

Loans 3, 4 and 5 availed by JWPL amounting to US$7.0 million (P287.4 million), US$13.0 million (P533.7 million), 
and US$20.0 million (P821.0 million), respectively consist of three loans obtained from a local bank with a 
recalibrated fixed interest rate of 2.55% each on March 1, March 9 and May 29, 2012, respectively.  The loans 
have a term of 2 years and will originally mature on February 28, March 7 and May 28, 2014, respectively.  
However, the loans were preterminated by the Jollibee Group and paid in full, including accrued interest, in 
February 2013.

USD-denominated loan of RRBI USA.  Loan 6 consists of a 5-year unsecured loan acquired from a foreign bank 
in December 2007 amounting to US$1.9 million with an interest rate of 6.50%.  The principal is payable in 
60 monthly installments commencing on January 1, 2008 up to January 1, 2013, the date of maturity.  The 
loan was fully paid in January 2013.

PHP-denominated loan of the Parent Company.  Loan 7 resulted from the combination of extended unsecured 
short-term debts as of December 16, 2011 consisting of P700.0 million and P800.0 million loans to form a 
single long-term loan due on December 16, 2013.  The fixed interest rate on the loan is 3.9% payable on 
a quarterly basis.

PHP-denominated loan of Perf Restaurants, Inc.  Loan 8 was originally a five-year unsecured  
US$-denominated loan availed on December 20, 2011 by Perf Restaurants, Inc. (Perf).  On the same day, the 
loan of US$3.4 million was converted to P149.2 million bearing fixed interest rate of 5.32% per annum.

Derivative and hedging activities on Loan 8
In 2012, Loan 8 was converted into a deliverable cross-currency swap transaction to hedge in full  
the foreign currency risk and interest rate risk on its floating rate.  Under the cross-currency swap,   
Perf received at inception PHP notional amount of P149.2 million and paid US$ notional amount of  
US$3.4 million based on the PHP/US$ spot reference rate of P43.87.  At every interest payment date, the 
Company will receive variable interest based on 3-month US LIBOR plus spread and will pay fix interest rate.  
At maturity date, the Company will receive US$ notional amount of US$3.4 million and pay PHP notional 
amount of P149.2 million.  The US$ receipts from the cross-currency swap correspond with the expected 
interest fixed principal amount due on the hedged loan.  Similar with the hedged loan, the cross-currency 
swap is non-amortizing and will mature on December 21, 2016.

Effectively, the cross-currency swap transformed the floating rate US$ loan into a fixed rate PHP loan.  

Hedge effectiveness results
Since the critical terms of the hedged loan and cross-currency swap matched, the hedge was assessed to 
be highly effective.  As such, there was no ineffectiveness recognized in the profit or loss for the period 
ending December 31, 2012 and 2011.  

The movement in fair value of cash flow hedge presented in equity under other comprehensive loss 
follows:

Balance at beginning of year  P–
Changes in fair value of the cash flow hedge 22,782,820
Foreign exchange revaluation (9,658,381)
Balance at end of year 13,124,439
Non-controlling interests’ share (6,037,242)

P7,087,197

The foreign exchange revaluation of the hedged loan amounting to P9.7 million was recognized in other 
comprehensive loss on derivative liability.

Debt Covenants

Jollibee Group’s loans, through its subsidiary Perf, contain certain restrictive covenants and requirements 
with respect to the following:

Maintenance of the following ratios for the duration of the loan agreements: (1) minimum debt (a) 
service coverage of 1.5:1; and (2) maximum debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and 
amortization (EBITDA) of 4:1.

Restrictions on changes in ownership structure; incurrence of any additional loans with term of (b) 
more than one year; repayment of intercompany borrowings from the Parent Company except 
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those agreed upon signing of this Facility Agreement; investing or entering into any business 
substantially different from the business in which Perf is presently engaged; and enter into merger 
or consolidation, except where Perf is the surviving corporation, and Parent Company remains as the 
majority beneficial owner of the surviving corporation.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, Perf is in compliance with the terms of the loan agreement.  

As of December 31, long-term debt consists of the following:

2012 2011
Principal P5,437,753,211 P4,738,001,401
Unamortized debt issue cost (10,296,795) (17,957,381)
 P5,427,456,416 P4,720,044,020

The movements in unamortized debt issue cost in 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P17,957,381 P7,085,160
Additions  – 18,108,030
Amortization (7,660,586) (7,235,809)
Balance at end of year P10,296,795 P17,957,381

Interest expense recognized on long-term debt amounted to P171.1 million, P193.7 million and P180.6 million 
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 23).

Equity19. 
 
 a.  Capital Stock

The movements in the number of shares follow:

2012 2011
Authorized - P1 par value 1,450,000,000 1,450,000,000
Issued:
 Balance at beginning of year 1,052,943,936 1,051,429,521
 Issuances 8,906,326 1,514,415
 Balance at end of year 1,061,850,262 1,052,943,936

Subscribed:
 Balance at beginning of year 2,009,297 2,009,297
 Subscriptions 8,906,326 1,514,415
 Issuances (8,906,326) (1,514,415)
 Balance at end of year 2,009,297 2,009,297

1,063,859,559 1,054,953,233

On February 15, 1993, the SEC approved the increase of the Parent Company’s authorized capital 
stock from 6.6 million shares, with a par value of P10 per share, to 750.0 million shares, with a par value 
of P1 per share, for the Parent Company’s initial public offering (IPO).  The offer price of the shares for 
such IPO ranged from P7.50 to P10.50 per share.  

The total number of shareholders is 3,325 and 3,437 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

b.  Treasury Shares

The cost of common stock held in treasury of P180.5 million consists of 16,447,340 shares as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

c.  Excess of Cost over the Carrying Value of Non-controlling Interests Acquired

The amount of excess of cost over the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, recognized as part of “Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the 
Parent Company” section in the consolidated statements of financial position resulted from the 
following acquisitions of non-controlling interests:

20% of Greenwich in 2006 P168,257,659
15% of Belmont in 2007 375,720,914
40% of Adgraphix in 2010 (1,214,087)

P542,764,486

d.  Retained Earnings

The Jollibee Group has a Cash Dividend Policy of declaring one-third of its net income for the year as 
cash dividends.  It uses best estimate of its net income as basis for declaring cash dividends.  Actual 
cash dividends per share declared as a percentage of the EPS are 61.5%, 34.1% and 72.2% in 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively.

An important part of the Jollibee Group’s growth strategy is the acquisition of new businesses in 
the Philippines and abroad.  Examples were acquisitions of 85% of Yonghe King in 2004 in PRC 
(P1,200.0 million), 100% of Red Ribbon in 2005 (P1,700.0 million), the remaining 20% minority share in 
Greenwich in 2007 (P384.0 million), the remaining 15% share of Yonghe King in 2007 (P413.7 million), 
100% of Hong Zhuang Yuan restaurant chain in PRC in 2008 (P2,600.0 million), 70% of Mang Inasal 
in 2010 (P2,979.8 million), 100% of Chowking US Operations in 2011 (P659.9 million), 55% of San Pin 
Wang (P195.9 million) and 48% of WJ Investments Limited (P98.0 million) in 2012.

The Jollibee Group plans to continue to make substantial acquisitions in the coming years.  The 
Jollibee Group uses its cash generated from operations to finance these acquisitions and capital 
expenditures.  These limit the amount of cash dividends that it can declare and pay making the level 
of the Retained Earnings higher than the paid-up capital stock.  

In support of the Jollibee Group’s strategy, the BOD approved the appropriation of additional 
P3,800.0 million for future expansion on February 15, 2012 for the Parent Company.  The details of the 
appropriation include:

Projects Timeline
Amount

(in millions)
Acquisition of Businesses 2013 - 2018 P5,000.0

The retained earnings of the Parent Company is restricted to the extent of P5,180.5 million and 
P1,380.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The 2012 appropriation consists of 
appropriation for future expansion and cost of common stock held in treasury amounting to P5,000.0 
and P180.5 million, respectively while the 2011 appropriation consists of appropriation for future 
expansion and cost of common stock held in treasury amounting to P1,200.0 and P180.5 million, 
respectively.
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Consolidated retained earnings include undeclared retained earnings of subsidiaries amounting 
to P685.4 million and P593.2 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The Parent 
Company’s retained earnings available for dividend declaration, computed based on the guidelines 
provided in SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, amounted to P11,617.3 million and P14,166.5 million 
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Parent Company’s cash dividend declarations for 2012, 2011 and 2010 follow:

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date
Cash Dividend per 

Share
Total Cash Dividends 

Declared
2012
April 12 May 9 May 31 P0.58 P602,206,230
November 12 December 3 December 19 1.00 1,044,303,255
November 12 December 3 December 19 0.62 647,468,018

P2.20 P2,293,977,503

2011
April 13 May 5 May 31 P0.50 P513,586,071
November 4 November 22 December 16 0.57 586,430,790

P1.07 P1,100,016,861

2010
April 12 May 7 June 3 P0.43 P439,332,609
April 12 May 7 June 3 1.00 1,021,703,742
November 10 November 25 December 21 0.82 841,916,455

P2.25 P2,302,952,806

Royalty, Franchise Fees and Others20. 

The Company has existing Royalty and Franchise Agreements with certain subsidiaries and independent 
franchisees for the latter to operate QSR outlets under the “Jollibee” concept and trade name.  In 
consideration thereof, the franchisees agree to pay franchise fees and monthly royalty fees equivalent to a 
certain percentage of the franchisees’ net sales.  

The franchisees and subsidiaries also reimburse the Company a share in the network advertising and 
promotional activities based on certain percentages of the former’s net sales.  This account consists of:

2012 2011 2010
Royalty fees P3,103,707,056 P2,832,972,317 P2,435,145,967
Franchise fees 108,902,005 128,673,840 110,777,580
Rent income (Note 29) 93,552,079 88,362,582 88,587,881
Service fees 69,925,324 59,261,700 78,443,482
Other revenues 188,999,169 179,212,280 151,802,659

P3,565,085,633 P3,288,482,719 P2,864,757,569

Cost of Sales21. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011 2010
Cost of inventories P33,898,232,334 P29,809,091,674 P24,900,006,693
Personnel costs:
 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 7,771,959,348 6,896,745,053 6,515,788,872
 Pension expense (Note 25) 56,450,965 82,500,195 78,542,800
Rent (Note 29) 5,499,468,204 4,830,622,917 3,903,657,688
Electricity and other utilities 3,245,101,747 2,738,766,887 2,491,684,514
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12 and 

13) 2,477,433,446 2,188,138,252 1,801,293,696
Supplies 1,712,100,856 1,438,771,466 1,244,811,120
Contracted services and professional fees 1,237, 433,220 1,034,756,176 783,696,936
Repairs and maintenance 666,242,481 605,944,943 515,366,896
Security and janitorial 294,667,278 295,104,115 243,980,998
Communication 119,488,497 109,814,775 104,033,676
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 31,015,693 27,245,491 22,066,898
Others 1,424,426,678 1,345,856,874 649,799,673

P58,434,020,747 P51,403,358,818 P43,254,730,460

General and Administrative Expenses22. 

This account consists of:

2012 2011 2010
Personnel costs:
 Salaries, wages and employee benefits P3,104,737,878 P2,828,734,808 P2,477,525,828
 Pension expense (Note 25) 44,443,247 74,821,548 77,575,074
 Stock options expense (Note 26) 76,984,373 73,596,182 65,657,862
Taxes and licenses 793,134,792 722,967,654 625,572,401
Rent (Note 29) 396,384,343 301,131,941 189,141,489
Transportation and travel 299,910,571 289,157,362 250,493,661
Professional fees 268,376,135 292,142,725 326,009,405
Depreciation and amortization 

(Notes 12 and 13) 228,192,916 213,455,645 176,712,298
Impairment in value of:
 Receivables and inventories (Notes 7 and 8) 86,397,297 39,740,636 56,255,685
 Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 29,500,000  –  –
 Investment properties (Note 13) 21,177,361  –  –
 Security and other deposits (Note 15) 3,000,000  –  –
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 105,401,780 109,224,257 84,790,392
Communication 87,824,802 80,021,816 65,940,549
Training 71,311,451 40,349,256 47,662,662
Donations 68,199,176 37,125,360 26,668,997
Supplies 59,372,615 60,553,898 46,652,158
Electricity and other utilities 58,686,416 57,143,954 52,076,181
Contracted services 49,912,515 37,878,401 34,570,979
Repairs and maintenance 43,774,873 49,141,586 35,286,344
Security and janitorial 22,168,913 26,209,649 35,886,424
Insurance 10,284,642 15,357,507 5,643,678
Corporate events and others 979,626,851 590,563,624 590,944,778

P6,908,802,947 P5,939,317,810 P5,271,066,845
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Interest Income (Expense) and Other Income23. 

2012 2011 2010
Interest income:
 Cash and cash equivalents:
 Cash in banks P14,216,627 P14,079,032 P19,426,990
 Short-term deposits 145,680,630 87,044,606 118,650,729
 Accretion of interest on financial assets 

(Note 15) 21,613,453 24,062,575 22,219,843
 Loan and advances 88,603,447 54,577,023 2,783,556

P270,114,157 P179,763,236 P163,081,118

Interest expense:
 Long-term debt (Note 18) (P171,059,541) (P193,702,854) (P180,594,225)

Short-term debt (Note 18) (14,799,129) (78,916,052) (9,502,363)
Accretion of interest on    

 financial liabilities (20,154,030) (18,723,885) (3,104,615)
(206,012,700) (P291,342,791) (P193,201,203)

Other income:
 Write-off of other liabilities P292,136,540 P409,556,985 P331,926,520
 Rebates and suppliers’ incentives 76,099,289 103,475,060 42,113,542
 Charges to franchisees 43,898,382 34,672,903 17,677,407
 Pre-termination of operating leases 43,765,252 11,335,719 28,610,502
 Foreign exchange gain (loss) (25,371,670) (63,571,440) 37,086,479
 Penalties and charges 16,063,313 16,135,487 11,060,166
 Insurance claims 12,170,251 16,589,565 9,143,868
 Other rentals 6,977,700 9,881,900 7,814,942
 Gain on asset sale  –  – 106,006,901
 Miscellaneous income 37,795,782 28,737,438 27,458,072

P503,534,839 P566,813,617 P618,898,399

Income Taxes24. 

The Jollibee Group’s provision for current income tax consists of the following:

2012 2011 2010
Final tax withheld on:
 Royalty and franchise fee income P691,731,651 P566,346,862 P535,435,633
 Interest income 28,094,896 17,314,010 20,458,463
RCIT:
 With itemized deduction 401,169,566 447,091,709 341,920,182
 With optional standard deduction 156,164,621 126,619,231 107,504,110
MCIT  – 30,192,053 35,609,591

P1,277,160,734 P1,187,563,865 P1,040,927,979

On December 18, 2008, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations No. 16-2008, which implemented the 
provisions of Republic Act 9504 (R.A. 9504) on Optional Standard Deduction (OSD).  This regulation allowed 
both individuals and corporate taxpayers to use OSD in computing for taxable income.  Corporations may 
elect a standard deduction equivalent to 40% of gross income, as provided by law, in lieu of the itemized 
allowed deductions. 

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, Zenith, Grandworth and RRBHI, wholly-owned 
subsidiaries, elected to use OSD in computing for their taxable income.  In 2010, only ZFC elected to use 
OSD.  The total tax benefit from the availment of OSD amounted to P47.8 million, P43.8 million and P35.7 
million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The components of the Jollibee Group’s recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities follow:

2012

2011 
(As restated - 

Note 2)
Deferred tax assets:
 Operating lease payables P401,437,097 P375,501,157
 NOLCO:

 PRC-based entities 275,552,028 178,380,252
 Philippine-based entities 43,966,714 88,474,713

 Pension liability and other benefits 97,631,104 93,269,607
 Allowance for impairment loss on receivables 51,966,719 40,497,598
 Unamortized past service costs 50,233,543 58,718,821
 Unrealized foreign exchange loss 32,085,931 1,622,647
 Unaccreted discount on security deposits and   

 employee car plan receivables 23,593,436 25,835,415
 Accumulated impairment loss in value of property,   

 plant and equipment, investment properties, and  
 other nonfinancial assets 23,359,590 14,883,112

 Excess of MCIT over RCIT 12,127,543 67,210,194
 Provisions for legal claims and restructuring costs 9,150,192 9,150,192
 Allowance for inventory obsolescence 2,159,664 6,819,589
 Others 6,984,030 7,251,187

1,030,247,591 967,614,484
Deferred tax liabilities:
 Excess of fair value over book value of identifiable assets  

 of acquired businesses 718,144,665 734,158,249
 Deferred rent expense 17,886,026 18,689,914
 Prepaid rent 22,416,209 16,683,538
 Operating lease receivables 3,149,598 4,210,150
 Unrealized foreign exchange gain 20,969,532 252,068
 Others 7,709,705 8,778,700

790,275,735 782,772,619
Deferred tax assets – net P239,971,856 P184,841,865

The rollforward analysis of the account follows:

2012
2011

(As restated – Note 2)
Balance at beginning of year P184,841,865 P151,758,133
Provisions 127,045,741 83,696,480
Application of excess of MCIT over RCIT (62,011,755)  –
Movement arising from business combination (Note 11)  – (61,983,286)
Translation adjustments (9,903,995) 11,370,538

P239,971,856 P184,841,865
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The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets of BK Group in 2012 are as follows:

NOLCO P11,318,615
Other comprehensive loss 3,958,446
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 4,962

P15,282,023

OSD
The availment of the OSD method also affected the recognition of several deferred tax assets and liabilities.  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, for which the related income and expense are not considered in 
determining gross income for income tax purposes, are not recognized.  This is because the manner by 
which the Jollibee Group expects to recover or settle the underlying assets and liabilities, for which the 
deferred tax assets and liabilities were initially recognized, would not result to any future tax consequence 
under the OSD method.  Meanwhile, deferred tax assets and liabilities, for which the related income and 
expense are considered in determining gross income for income tax purposes, are recognized only to 
the extent of their future tax consequence under OSD method.  Hence, the tax base of these deferred tax 
assets and liabilities is reduced by the 40% allowable deduction provided for under the OSD method.

Accordingly, the Jollibee Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities, which were not recognized due to the 
use of the OSD method in future years, are as follows:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
 Allowance for impairment losses on: 

 Investment properties P10,334,189 P3,980,982
 Receivables 3,963,705 3,963,705
          Other noncurrent assets 1,641,000 1,641,000

 Operating lease payables 15,634,527 12,798,357
 Pension liability 1,737,049 1,696,689
 Unamortized past service costs 749,019 790,318
 Unaccreted discount on financial instruments 426,256 250,180
 Unrealized foreign exchange loss 4,735 4,056
 Others 152,376 185,968

34,642,856 25,311,255

2012 2011
Deferred tax liabilities:
 Operating lease receivables P7,820,394 P2,251,507
 Deferred rent expense 339,514 380,088
 Others 339,000 345,778

8,498,908 2,977,373
P26,143,948 P22,333,882

As of December 31, 2012, NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT of the Philippine-based entities that can 
be claimed as deductions from taxable income and income tax due, respectively, are as follows:

Year Incurred/Paid
Carry Forward 
Benefit Up to  NOLCO

 Excess of MCIT 
 over RCIT

2012 December 31, 2015 P79,364,066 P7,099,048 
2011 December 31, 2014 15,632,140 3,468,224
2010 December 31, 2013 51,559,507 1,560,271

P146,555,713 P12,127,543

The PRC enterprise income tax law provides that income tax rates are unified at 25%.  As of December 31, 2012, 
NOLCO of the PRC-based entities that can be claimed as deductions from taxable income are as follows:

Year Incurred
Carry Forward 
Benefit Up to Tax Losses

Deferred Tax 
 at 25%

2012 December 31, 2017 P626,622,226 P156,655,557
2011 December 31, 2016 182,968,705 45,742,176
2010 December 31, 2015 106,315,191 26,578,798
2009 December 31, 2014 130,182,545 32,545,636
2008 December 31, 2013 56,119,443 14,029,861

P1,102,208,110 P275,552,028

The following are the movements in deferred tax assets on NOLCO of the PRC-based entities:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P178,380,252 P174,770,129
Additions 156,655,557 73,275,766
Expired (37,731,948) (2,412,380)
Write-off (13,893,801) (73,363,383)
Translation adjustments (7,858,032) 4,859,496
Increase in effective tax rate  – 1,250,624
Balance at end of year P275,552,028 P178,380,252

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax rates to provision for 
income tax as shown in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Provision for income tax at statutory 

income tax rates P1,458,953,310 P1,307,301,093 P1,255,779,527
Income tax effects of:
 Effect of different tax rate for 
  royalty and franchise fees  

 and interest income (359,171,819) (292,576,022) (279,194,311)
 Expired/written off NOLCO and
  excess of MCIT over RCIT 51,625,749 83,661,073 11,959,542
 Difference between OSD and 
  itemized deductions (47,781,922) (43,785,314) (35,690,321)
 Nondeductible expenses 27,788,407 38,688,395 25,168,148
 Unrecorded tax losses of 
  BK Group 11,323,577 –            –  

Net movement in unrecognized   
DTA (4,138,108)   18,125,689  4,208,193

 Others 11,515,799 (7,547,529) (8,835,016)
P1,150,114,993 P1,103,867,385 P973,395,762

Pension Costs25. 

Defined Benefit Plan
The Parent Company and certain Philippine-based subsidiaries have funded, independently administered, 
non-contributory defined benefit plans covering all permanent and regular employees with benefits 
based on years of service and latest compensation.  The assets of the Jollibee Group’s retirement plans are 
managed by a trustee bank.
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The following tables summarize the components of net pension expense recognized in the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income and the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated 
statements of financial position for the plans.

Net Pension Expense

2012 2011 2010
Current service cost P99,916,987 P103,419,805 P91,496,560
Interest cost 107,904,046 152,865,858 135,969,783
Expected return on plan assets (88,943,512) (96,084,188) (71,412,182)
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) (17,983,309) (2,879,732) 63,713

P100,894,212 P157,321,743 P156,117,874

Pension Liability

2012 2011
Present value of defined benefit obligation P1,896,964,592 P1,301,088,666
Fair value of plan assets (1,401,957,417) (1,316,251,463)
Present value of underfunded (overfunded) obligation 495,007,175 (15,162,797)
Unrecognized net actuarial gains (loss) (206,570,972) 293,837,311

P288,436,203 P278,674,514

The movements in the present value of benefit obligation are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P1,301,088,666 P1,364,744,185
Interest cost 107,904,046 152,865,858
Current service cost 99,916,987 103,419,805
Arising from business combination (Note 11)  – 3,199,600
Actual benefits paid:
 Out of plan assets (133,300,505) (103,908,857)
 Out of Jollibee Group’s funds (44,777,712) (22,958,089)
Net actuarial loss (gain): 
 Due to experience adjustments 371,011,197 (559,592,159)
 Due to change in assumptions 195,121,913 363,318,323
Balance at end of year P1,896,964,592 P1,301,088,666

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P1,316,251,463 P1,201,052,350
Expected return on plan assets 88,943,512 96,084,188
Contributions 46,354,811 70,977,928
Actual benefits paid (133,300,505) (103,908,857)
Actuarial gain on plan assets 83,708,136 52,045,854
Balance at end of year P1,401,957,417 P1,316,251,463

Actual return on plan assets P172,651,648 P148,130,042

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the assets of the 
retirement plans:

2012 2011
Carrying 
Amount Fair Value

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents P993,931,235 P993,931,235 P916,611,093 P916,611,093
Investments in equity securities 332,567,871 332,567,871 255,630,660 255,630,660
Investments in government 

securities, bonds and 
other debt instruments 58,002,779 58,002,779 126,981,644 126,981,644

Others 17,455,532 17,455,532 17,028,066 17,028,066
P1,401,957,417 P1,401,957,417 P1,316,251,463 P1,316,251,463

The retirement plans’ assets and investments consist of the following: 

Cash and cash equivalents include regular savings and time deposits.	

Investments in equity securities consist of listed equity securities including investment in equity 	
securities of the Parent Company for certain retirement plans of the Jollibee Group (see Note 27).

Investments in government securities consist of retail treasury bonds that bear interest ranging from 	
5.50% to 7.38% and have maturities from August 2020 to October 2037; and fixed-income treasury 
notes that bear interest ranging from 4.42% to 9.91% and have maturities from February 2015 to 
August 2037.

Investments in debt and other securities consist of long-term corporate bonds, which bear interest 	
ranging from 6.30% to 7.75% and have maturities ranging from 2012 to 2037.

Other financial assets held by the Jollibee Group’s retirement plans are primarily accrued interest 	
income on cash and cash equivalents, debt instruments and other securities.

The Jollibee Group expects to contribute in 2013 an amount equivalent to the underfunded defined 
benefit obligation based on 2012 actuarial valuation.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing 
on that date, applicable to the period within which the obligation is expected to be settled.  The latest 
actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan is as of December 31, 2012.  

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the principal actuarial assumptions used to determine pension benefits 
obligations are as follow:

2012 2011
Discount rate 5.70%–6.30% 6.50%–7.20%
Salary increase rate 7.00%–7.50% 5.00%–7.50%
Rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 5.00%–7.00%
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The amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Defined benefit obligation P1,896,964,592 P1,301,088,666 P1,364,744,185 P1,213,954,564 P985,573,966
Plan assets 1,401,957,417 1,316,251,463 1,201,052,350 973,263,844 531,760,226
Deficit (surplus) P495,007,175 (P15,162,797) P163,691,835 P240,690,720 P453,813,740

Experience adjustments on:
 Plan obligation (P371,011,197) P559,592,159 (P36,832,650) (P62,252,853)  P–
 Plan assets 83,708,136 52,045,854 151,659,394 47,163,376 (34,311,708)

Defined Contribution Plan
The employees of the PRC-domiciled and USA-based subsidiaries of the Jollibee Group are members of 
a state-managed pension benefit scheme operated by the national governments.  These subsidiaries are 
required to contribute a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the pension benefit scheme to fund 
the benefits.  The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the pension benefit scheme is to 
make the specified contributions.

The contributions made to the scheme and recognized as part of other employee benefits amounted to 
P280.2 million, P121.2 million and P94.9 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Stock Option Plans26. 

Senior Management Stock Option and Incentive Plan
On December 17, 2002, the SEC approved the exemption requested by the Jollibee Group on the 
registration requirements of the 101,500,000 options underlying the Parent Company’s common shares 
to be issued pursuant to the Jollibee Group’s Senior Management Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 
Plan).  The Plan covers selected key members of management of the Jollibee Group, certain subsidiaries 
and designated affiliated entities.  

The Plan is divided into two programs, namely, the Management Stock Option Program (MSOP) and the 
Executive Long-term Incentive Program (ELTIP).  The MSOP provides a yearly stock option grant program 
based on company and individual performance while the ELTIP provides stock ownership as an incentive 
to reinforce entrepreneurial and long-term ownership behavior of executive participants.

MSOP.  The MSOP is a yearly stock option grant program open to members of the corporate management 
committee of the Jollibee Group and members of the management committee, key talents and designated 
consultants of some of the business units.

Each MSOP cycle refers to the period commencing on the MSOP grant date and ending on the last day of 
the MSOP exercise period.  Vesting is conditional on the employment of the employee-participants to the 
Jollibee Group within the vesting period.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options 
granted on each anniversary of the MSOP grant date until the third anniversary.

The exercise price of the stock options is determined by the Jollibee Group with reference to prevailing 
market prices over the three months immediately preceding the date of grant for the 1st up to the 7th 
MSOP cycle.  Starting with the 8th MSOP cycle, the exercise price of the option is determined by the Jollibee 
Group with reference to the market closing price as at date of grant.  

The contractual term of each option is seven years.  The Jollibee Group does not pay cash as a form of 
settlement.

On July 1, 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Jollibee Group granted 2,385,000 options under the 1st 
MSOP cycle to eligible participants.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options granted 
on each anniversary date which will start after a year from the MSOP grant date.  One-third of the options 
granted, or 795,000 options, vested and exercised starting July 1, 2005. Unexercised options expired on  
June 30, 2012.  On July 1, 2005 to 2012, the Compensation Committee granted series of MSOP grants under 
the 2nd to 9th MSOP cycle to eligible participants.  The options vest similar to the 1st MSOP cycle. 

The movements in the number of stock options outstanding and related weighted average exercise prices 
(WAEP) are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Total options granted as at end of year 29,808,694 P53.07 26,790,664 P46.89 23,273,694 P40.39

Outstanding at beginning of year 17,505,395 P52.39 15,904,997 P43.46 15,911,282 P39.43
Options granted during the year 3,018,030 107.90 3,516,970 89.90 3,172,744 57.77
Options exercised during the year (3,375,915) 41.80 (1,507,813) 43.07 (2,730,984) 36.78
Options forfeited during the year (359,454) 80.52 (408,759) 62.03 (448,045) 42.36
Outstanding at end of year 16,788,056 P63.90 17,505,395 P52.39 15,904,997 P43.46

Exercisable at end of year 10,367,798 P45.83 10,424,829 P40.10 8,234,603 P37.86

The average share price is P103.41, P85.48 and P71.74 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The weighted 
average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 
2010 is 4.66 years, 4.88 years and 5.31 years, respectively.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 is P23.43, P23.67 and 
P22.77, respectively.  The fair value of share options as at the date of grant is estimated using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into account, the terms and conditions upon which the options were 
granted.  The option style used for this plan is the American style because this option plan allows exercise 
before the maturity date.  The inputs to the model used for the options granted on the dates of grant for 
each MSOP cycle are shown below:

MSOP  
Cycle

Year of 
Grant

Dividend 
Yield

Expected 
Volatility

Risk-free  
Interest Rate

Expected 
 Life of the 

Option

Stock Price  
on Grant  

Date
Exercise 

Price
1st 2004 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5-7 years P24.00 P20.00
2nd 2005 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5-7 years 29.00 27.50
3rd 2006 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5-7 years 35.00 32.32
4th 2007 1.70% 28.06% 6.41% 3-4 years 52.50 50.77
5th 2008 1.80% 26.79% 8.38% 3-4 years 34.00 39.85
6th 2009 2.00% 30.37% 5.28% 3-4 years 48.00 45.45
7th 2010 2.00% 29.72% 5.25% 3-4 years 70.00 57.77
8th 2011 2.00% 34.53% 4.18% 3-4 years 89.90 89.90
9th 2012 2.00% 28.72% 3.50% 3-4 years 107.90 107.90

The expected life of the stock options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not 
necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.  The expected volatility reflects the assumption 
that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which 
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. 
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ELTIP.  The ELTIP entitlement is given to members of the corporate management committee.  

Each ELTIP cycle refers to the period commencing on the ELTIP entitlement date and ending on the 
last day of the ELTIP exercise period.  Actual grant and vesting is conditional upon achievement of the 
Jollibee Group’s minimum medium to long-term goals and individual targets in a given period, and the 
employment of the employee-participants to the Jollibee Group within the vesting period.  If the goals are 
achieved, the options will be granted.  Starting with the 3rd ELTIP cycle, a percentage of the options to be 
granted are based on the percentage of growth in annual earnings per share such that 100%, 50% or 25% 
of the options granted when percentage of growth in annual earnings per share are 12% and above, 10% 
to less than 12% or 8% to less than 10%, respectively.

The exercise price of the stock options is determined by the Jollibee Group with reference to prevailing 
market prices over the three months immediately preceding the date of entitlement.

The contractual term of each option is five years.  The Jollibee Group does not pay cash as a form of 
settlement.  Starting with the 3rd ELTIP cycle, the exercise price of the option is determined by the Jollibee 
Group with reference to the closing market price as of the date of grant.

On July 1, 2004, the Compensation Committee gave an entitlement of 22,750,000 options under the  
1st ELTIP cycle to eligible participants.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options 
granted from the start of the grant date and on each anniversary of the ELTIP grant date.  One-third of 
the options granted, or 7,583,333 options, vested and exercised starting July 1, 2007. Unexercised options 
expired on June 30, 2012.  On July 1, 2008 and October 19, 2012, a total entitlement of 20,399,999 and 
23,600,000 options was given to eligible participants under the 2nd and 3rd ELTIP cycle, respectively.

The movements in the number of stock options outstanding for the 2nd and 3rd ELTIP cycles and related 
WAEP for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 follow:

2012 2011 2010
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Total options given  

as of end of year 66,499,999 P55.94 43,149,999 P29.38 42,399,999 P29.20

Outstanding at beginning of year 27,674,569 P32.52 30,661,735 P32.72 33,387,498 P31.53
Options granted during the year 23,600,000 105.00 750,000 39.85 250,000 39.85
Options exercised during the year (12,962,905) 24.19 (787,166) 20.00 (2,975,763) 20.00
Options forfeited during the year (499,999) 39.85 (2,950,000) 39.85 – –
Outstanding at end of year 37,811,665 P80.51 27,674,569 P32.52 30,661,735 P32.72

Exercisable at end of year 7,411,665 P39.85 10,224,570 P20.00 11,011,736 P20.00

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as of 2012, 2011 and 
2010 is 5.68 years, 3.02 years and 3.74 years, respectively.

The fair value of stock options granted is P23.43 and P7.26 in 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The fair value of 
share options as at the date of grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into 
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.  The option style used for this 

plan is the American style because this option plan allows exercise before the maturity date.  The inputs to 
the model used for the options granted on the dates of grant for each ELTIP cycle are shown below:

ELTIP 
Cycle

Year  
of Grant

Dividend 
yield

Expected 
volatility

Risk-free 
interest rate

Expected 
 life of  

the option

Stock price  
on grant  

date
Exercise 

price
1st 2004 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5 years P24.00 P20.00
2nd 2008 1.80% 26.79% 8.38% 3-4 years 34.00 39.85
3rd 2012 2.00% 28.74% 3.60% 3-4 years 105.00 105.00

The expected life of the stock options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not 
necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.  The expected volatility reflects the assumption 
that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which 
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The cost of the stock options expense charged to operations under “General and administrative expenses” 
account amounted to P77.0 million, P73.6 million and P65.7 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Related Party Transactions27. 

The Jollibee Group has transactions within and among the consolidated entities and related parties.  A 
related party is an entity that has the ability to control or exercise significant influence, directly or indirectly, 
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  Transactions between members of the 
Jollibee Group and the related balances are eliminated at consolidation and are no longer included in the 
disclosures.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Jollibee Group
The aggregate compensation and benefits to key management personnel of the Jollibee Group in 2012, 
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Salaries and short-term benefits P243,239,599 P391,620,377 P389,010,761
Stock options expense (Note 26) 76,984,373 73,596,182 65,657,862
Net pension expense from defined benefit plan 13,442,416 28,897,958 23,822,756
Employee car plan and other long-term 

benefits 14,385,260 25,322,690 23,818,817
P348,051,648 P519,437,207 P502,310,196

Transactions with the Retirement Plans
As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, certain retirement funds of the Jollibee Group 
include investment in equity securities of the Parent Company with details as follows:

2012 2011
Number of shares 782,130 2,234,737
Cost P25,598,922 P73,185,976
Market value 79,777,260 202,131,962
Unrealized gain P54,178,338 P128,945,986
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Earnings Per Share28. 

Basic and diluted EPS are computed as follows:

2012 2011 2010
(a) Net income attributable to the equity holders of 

the Parent Company P3,728,151,351 P3,231,666,940 P3,197,793,977

(b) Weighted average number of shares - basic 1,041,923,753 1,029,743,055 1,025,590,715
 Weighted average number of shares 

outstanding under the stock option plan 33,470,157 21,979,743 22,434,043
 Weighted average number of shares that would 

have been purchased at fair market value (14,521,214) (7,827,084) (8,649,309)
(c) Adjusted weighted average shares - diluted 1,060,872,696 1,043,895,714 1,039,375,449

EPS:
 Basic (a/b)  P3.578  P3.138  P3.118
 Diluted (a/c)  3.514  3.096  3.077

There were no anti-dilutive options outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Commitments and Contingencies29. 

Operating lease commitments - Jollibee Group as lesseea. 

The Jollibee Group has various operating lease commitments for QSR outlets and offices.  The 
noncancellable periods of the leases range from 3 to 20 years, mostly containing renewal options.  
Some of the leases contain escalation clauses.  The lease contracts on certain sales outlets provide 
for the payment of additional rentals based on certain percentages of sales of the outlets.  Rent 
payments in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounted to P5,779.0 million, 
P4,955.5 million and P3,936.0 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The future minimum lease payments for the noncancellable periods of the operating leases follows:

2012 2011
Within one year P2,391,671,677 P2,407,191,659
After one year but not more than five years 7,953,687,706 8,699,820,241
More than five years 5,965,097,801 5,546,484,166

P16,310,457,184 P16,653,496,066

The difference of rent expense recognized under the straight-line method and the rent amounts 
due in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounting to P116.9 million and  
P176.3 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, are charged to “Operating lease payables” account 
in the consolidated statements of financial position.  Rent expense recognized on a straight-line 
basis amounted to P5,895.9 million, P5,131.8 million and P4,092.8 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively (see Notes 21 and 22).

Operating lease commitments - Jollibee Group as lessorb. 

The Jollibee Group entered into commercial property leases for its investment property units and 
various sublease agreements.  Noncancellable periods of the leases range from 3 to 20 years, mostly 

containing renewal options.  All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rent charges 
on an annual basis based on prevailing market conditions.  Rent income in accordance with the 
terms of the lease agreements amounted to P97.8 million, P94.6 million and P100.3 million in 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively.

The future minimum rent receivables for the noncancellable periods of the operating leases follows:

2012 2011
Within one year P25,350,190 P25,856,500
After one year but not more than five years 41,607,749 66,466,637
More than five years 2,314,149  –

P69,272,088 P92,323,137

The difference of rent income recognized under the straight-line method and the rent amounts in 
accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounting to P4.2 million and P6.2 million in 2012 
and 2011, respectively, are included under “Operating lease receivables” account in the consolidated 
statements of financial position.  Rent income recognized on a straight-line basis amounted to  
P93.6 million, P88.4 million and P88.6 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 20).

Contingenciesc. 

The Jollibee Group is involved in litigations, claims and disputes which are normal to its business, 
except for the legal claims provided in Note 17.  Management believes that the ultimate liability, 
if any, with respect to these litigations, claims and disputes will not materially affect the financial 
position and financial performance of the Jollibee Group.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies30. 

The Jollibee Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and 
investing activities.  The Jollibee Group’s risk management policies focus on actively securing the Jollibee 
Group’s short-term to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.  The 
Jollibee Group does not actively engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

The Jollibee Group’s principal financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade 
payables and other current liabilities (excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue 
from gift certificates) and short-term and long-term debts.  The main purpose of these financial instruments 
is to raise financing for the Jollibee Group’s operations.  The Jollibee Group has other financial assets and 
liabilities such as other non-trade receivables, long-term loan receivable, security and other deposits, AFS 
financial assets and liability for acquisition of businesses which arise from the Jollibee Group’s current 
operations.  The main risks arising from the Jollibee Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, 
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Jollibee Group’s BOD and management review and agree on the policies for managing each of these 
risks as summarized below.

Equity Price Risk
The Jollibee Group is not exposed to significant equity price risk on its investment in quoted equity 
securities consisting of investment in club shares and shares of public utility companies.
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Interest Rate Risk
The Jollibee Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as majority of its interest-bearing short-
term and long-term debts bear fixed interest rates.

The Jollibee Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to Perf’s long-term debt with 
floating interest rates.  Floating rate financial instruments are subject to cash flow interest rate risk.  The 
Company’s interest rate exposure management policy centers on reducing the Company’s overall 
interest expense and exposure to changes in the interest rates.  

To manage the interest rate risk related to the Company’s long-term debt, the Company uses a derivative 
instrument to fix the interest rate over the term of the debt (see Note 18).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with 
all other variables held constant, of the Company’s equity as of December 31, 2012.  The impact on the 
Company’s equity is due to changes in the fair value of cross-currency swaps designated as cash flow 
hedges.

Increase/Decrease  
in Basis Points Equity

USD +100 (9,209)
- 100 5,699

PHP +100 (378,029)
- 100 233,944

Foreign Currency Risk
The Jollibee Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the Parent Company’s investments 
outside the Philippines, which are mainly in PRC and USA.  While the foreign businesses have been rapidly 
growing, the net assets of foreign businesses account for only 15.57% and 10.44% of the consolidated net 
assets of the Jollibee Group as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  Therefore, the total exposure 
to foreign exchange risk of the Jollibee Group is still not significant.

The Jollibee Group also has transactional foreign currency exposures.  Such exposure arises from the 
Jollibee Group’s Philippine operations’ cash and cash equivalents, receivables and long-term debt in 
foreign currencies.

The following table shows the Jollibee Group’s Philippine operations’ foreign currency-denominated 
monetary assets and liabilities and their peso equivalents as of December 31:

2012 2011
USD  RMB  PHP Equivalent USD RMB  PHP Equivalent

Assets
Cash and cash 

equivalents 2,193,789 8,072 90,108,394 1,624,507 8,067 71,274,453
Receivables 228,184  – 9,366,953 140,089  – 6,141,502
Long-term debt (3,400,000)  – (139,570,000) (3,400,000)  – (149,056,000)
Net exposure (978,027) 8,072 (40,094,653) (1,635,404) 8,067 (71,640,045)

Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis
The Jollibee Group has recognized in its profit or loss, foreign currency exchange gain (loss) included under 
“Other income” account which amounted to (P25.4 million), (P63.6 million) and P37.1 million on its net 
foreign currency-denominated assets in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 23).  This resulted 
from the movements of the Philippine peso against the USD and RMB as shown in the following table:

 Peso to
USD RMB

December 31, 2012 P41.05 P6.61
December 31, 2011 43.84 6.95

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and RMB to 
Philippine peso exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Jollibee Group’s income before 
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) as of December 31:

2012 2011
Appreciation (Depreciation) 

of P against Foreign Currency
Effect on Income 

Before Income Tax
Effect on Income 

Before Income Tax
(In Thousands)

USD
P1.50 (P1,467) (P2,453)
(1.50) 1,467 2,453
1.00 (978) (1,635)
(1.00) 978 1,635

RMB
0.95 (7.7) (7.7)
(0.95)  7.7  7.7
0.63 (5.1) (5.1)
(0.63)  5.1  5.1

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or a counterparty fails to fulfill its contractual obligations to the Jollibee 
Group.  This includes risk of non-payment by borrowers and issuers, failed settlement of transactions and 
default on outstanding contracts. 

The Jollibee Group has a very strict credit policy.  Its credit transactions are only with franchisees that have 
gone through rigorous screening before granting them the franchise.  The credit terms are very short, 
deposits and advance payments are also required before rendering the service or delivering the goods, 
thus, mitigating the possibility of non-collection.  In cases of defaults of debtors, the exposure is contained 
as transactions that will increase the exposure of the Jollibee Group are not permitted.

Credit Risk Exposure and Concentration.  The Jollibee Group has no significant concentration of credit risk 
with counterparty since it has short credit terms to franchisees, which it implements consistently.  In 
addition, the Jollibee Group’s franchisee profile is such that no single franchisee accounts for more than 
5% of the total systemwide sales of the Jollibee Group.

With respect to credit risk arising from financial assets of the Jollibee Group, the Jollibee Group’s exposure 
to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying 
amount of these instruments.
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Credit Quality.  The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial assets that are neither past due 
nor impaired, based on the Jollibee Group’s credit rating system as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012
Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due or 

ImpairedTotal A B C
(In Millions)

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash

on hand) P8,654.5 P8,654.5 P– P– P–
Receivables:
 Trade 2,714.8 1,280.9 367.7 39.5 1,026.7
 Employee car plan receivables* 143.3 143.3 – – –

 Receivable from retirement fund 130.5 130.5 – – –
 Advances to employees 95.5 95.5 – – –
 Other receivables 19.4 19.4 – – –
Other noncurrent assets - – – –
 Security and other deposits 1,161.1 1,158.1 – – 3

P12,919.1 P11,482.2 P367.7 P39.5 P1,029.7
*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

2011
Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due or 

ImpairedTotal A B C
(In Millions)

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash 

on hand) P6,485.4 P6,485.4 P– P– P–
Receivables:
 Trade 2,250.4 1,249.8 159.2 12.0 829.4
 Receivable from retirement fund 137.7 137.7 – – –
 Employee car plan receivables* 136.7 136.7 – – –
 Advances to employees 100.4 100.4 – – –
 Other receivables 20.9 20.9 – – –
Other noncurrent assets - 
 Security and other deposits 1,069.7 1,069.7 – – –

P10,201.2 P9,200.6 P159.2 P12.0 P829.4

*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Jollibee Group using internal credit ratings, as 
shown below:

A   - For counterparty that is not expected by the Jollibee Group to default in settling its obligations, 
thus, credit risk exposure is minimal.  This counterparty normally includes financial institutions, 
related parties and customers who pay on or before due date.

B   -  For counterparty with tolerable delays (normally from 1 to 30 days) in settling its obligations 
to the Jollibee Group.  The delays may be due to cut-off differences and/or clarifications on 
contracts/billings.

C   -  For counterparty who consistently defaults in settling its obligations, but with continuing 
business transactions with the Jollibee Group, and may be or actually referred to legal and/or 
subjected to cash before delivery (CBD) scheme.  Under this scheme, the customer’s credit line 
is suspended and all subsequent orders are paid in cash before delivery.  The CBD status will 
only be lifted upon full settlement of the receivables and approval of management.  Thereafter, 
the regular credit term and normal billing and collection processes will resume.

The aging analyses of receivables are as follows:

2012
Neither 

Past Due 
nor Past Due but not Impaired (Age in Days)

Total Impaired 1-30 31-60 61-120 Over 120 Impaired
(In Millions)

Receivables:
 Trade P2,714.8 P1,688.1 P286.9 P64.0 P74.8 P340.9 P260.1
 Employee car plan receivables* 143.3 143.3 – – – – –
 Receivable from retirement fund 130.5 130.5 – – – – –
 Advances to employees 95.5 95.5 – – – – –
 Other receivables 19.4 19.4 – – – – –
Other noncurrent assets - 
 Security and other deposits 1,161.1 1,158.1 – – – – 3.0

P4,264.6 P3,234.9 P286.9 P64.0 P74.8 P340.9 P263.1
*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial 
position.

2011
Neither 

Past Due 
nor Past Due but not Impaired (Age in Days)

Total Impaired 1-30 31-60 61-120 Over 120 Impaired
(In Millions)

Receivables:
 Trade P2,250.4 P1,421.1 P192.8 P115.0 P156.5 P200.3 P164.7
 Receivable from retirement fund 137.7 137.7 – – – – –
 Employee car plan receivables* 136.7 136.7 – – – – –
 Advances to employees 100.4 100.4 – – – – –
 Other receivables 20.9 20.9 – – – – –
Other noncurrent assets - 
 Security and other deposits 1,069.7 1,069.7 – – – – –

P3,715.8 P2,886.5 P192.8 P115.0 P156.5 P200.3 P164.7
*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial         
position.

Liquidity Risk
The Jollibee Group’s exposure to liquidity risk refers to the risk that its financial liabilities are not serviced in 
a timely manner and that its working capital requirements and planned capital expenditures are not met.  
To manage this exposure and to ensure sufficient liquidity levels, the Jollibee Group closely monitors its 
cash flows.  

On a weekly basis, the Jollibee Group’s Cash and Banking Team monitors its collections, expenditures and 
any excess/deficiency in the working capital requirements, by preparing cash position reports that present 
actual and projected cash flows for the subsequent week.  Cash outflows resulting from major expenditures 
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are planned so that money market placements are available in time with the planned major expenditure.  
In addition, the Jollibee Group has short-term cash deposits and has available credit lines with accredited 
banking institutions, in case there is a sudden deficiency.  The Jollibee Group maintains a level of cash and 
cash equivalents deemed sufficient to finance the operations.  No changes were made in the objectives, 
policies or processes of the Jollibee Group during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

The Jollibee Group’s financial assets, which have maturity of less than 12 months and are used to meet its 
short-term liquidity needs, are cash and cash equivalents and receivables amounting to P8,848.6 million 
and P2,750.3 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2012 and P6,655.3 million and P2,388.6 million, 
respectively, as of December 31, 2011.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Jollibee Group’s financial liabilities based on the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows as of December 31:

2012
Within 1 Year 2–3 Years 4–5 Years Total

Trade payables and other current liabilities* P10,142,953,727 P– P– P10,142,953,727
Long-term debt (including current portion) 4,725,260,141 751,985,098 146,995,124 5,624,240,363
Liability for acquisition of businesses 

(including current portion) 168,984,534 79,551,944 – 248,536,478
P15,037,198,402 P831,537,042 P146,995,124 P16,015,730,568

*Excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates.

2011
Within 1 Year 2–3 Years 4–5 Years Total

Trade payables and other current liabilities* P8,851,593,469 P– P– P8,851,593,469
Short-term debt 923,670,000 – – 923,670,000
Long-term debt (including current portion) 806,816,334 3,904,007,733 157,167,330 4,867,991,397
Liability for acquisition of businesses 

(including current portion) 110,072,000 145,144,000 70,144,000 325,360,000
P10,692,151,803 P4,049,151,733 P227,311,330 P14,968,614,866

*Excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates.

Capital Management
Capital includes equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

The primary objective of the Jollibee Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong 
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.  
The Jollibee Group has sufficient capitalization. 

The Jollibee Group generates cash flows from operations sufficient to finance its organic growth.  It 
declares cash dividends representing about one-third of its consolidated net income, a ratio that would 
still leave some additional cash for future acquisitions.  If needed, the Jollibee Group would borrow money 
for acquisitions of new businesses.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Jollibee Group’s debt ratio and net debt ratio are as follows:

Debt Ratio

2012 2011
Total debt (a) P20,097,472,797 P18,659,293,599
Total equity attributable to equity holders  

of the Parent Company 21,160,238,680 19,518,762,522
Total debt and equity attributable to equity 

holders of the Parent Company (b) P41,257,711,477 P38,178,056,121

Debt ratio (a/b) 49% 49%

Net Debt Ratio
2012 2011

Total debt P20,097,472,797 P18,659,293,599
Less cash and cash equivalents 8,848,591,584 6,655,312,875
Net debt (a) 11,248,881,213 12,003,980,724
Total equity attributable to equity holders  

of the Parent Company 21,160,238,680 19,518,762,522
Total net debt and equity attributable  

to equity holders of the Parent Company (b) P32,409,119,893 P31,522,743,246

Net debt ratio (a/b) 38% 38%

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities31. 

The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities, 
by category and by class, as of December 31.  There are no material unrecognized financial assets and 
liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012 2011
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents P8,848,591,584 P8,848,591,584 P6,655,312,875 P6,655,312,875
Receivables:
 Trade 2,454,625,503 2,454,625,503 2,085,662,144 2,085,662,144
 Employee car  plan receivables* 143,329,998 157,196,713 136,737,225 152,335,294
 Receivable from retirement fund 130,494,012 130,494,012 137,745,214 137,745,214
 Advances to employees 95,502,388 95,502,388 100,368,090 100,368,090
 Other receivables 19,419,000 19,419,000 20,940,239 20,940,239
Other noncurrent assets - 
 Security and other deposits 1,161,089,780 1,230,027,510 1,069,719,992 1,133,286,665

12,853,052,265 12,935,856,710 10,206,485,779 10,285,650,521
AFS Financial Assets
Investments in club shares and shares 

of public utility companies 128,149,438 128,149,438 120,649,438 120,649,438
P12,981,201,703 P13,064,006,148 P10,327,135,217 P10,406,299,959



2012 2011
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities** P10,142,953,727 P10,142,953,727 P8,851,593,469 P8,851,593,469
Short-term debt – – 900,000,000 900,000,000
Long-term debt (including current portion) 5,427,456,416 5,515,503,960 4,720,044,020 4,738,001,401
Liability for acquisition of businesses 

(including current portion) 245,828,745 248,022,444 317,097,289 321,130,578
Derivative liability 22,782,819 22,782,819 – –

P15,839,021,707 P15,929,262,950 P14,788,734,778 P14,810,725,448

*   Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial       
     position.
**Excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates.

Financial Instruments Carried at other than Fair Value  
Management has determined that the estimated fair value of security and other deposits, noncurrent 
portion of employee car plan receivables, long-term debt and liability for acquisition of businesses 
(including noncurrent portion) are based on the discounted value of future cash flows using applicable 
rates as follows:

2012 2011
Security and other deposits 2.01%–5.50% 1.72%–7.64%
Employee car plan receivables 1.95%–4.11% 1.66%–5.08%
Long-term debt (including current portion) 1.01%–2.89% 1.78%–2.64%
Liability for acquisition of businesses (including current portion) 0.84%–3.90% 1.57%–2.11%

AFS Financial Assets
The fair value of investments that are traded in organized financial markets are determined by reference 
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at reporting date.

Unquoted AFS financial assets are carried at cost less any impairment in value.  These financial assets are 
equity shares of private entities and are not traded in an active market, hence their fair value cannot be 
determined reliably.

The Jollibee Group does not have the intention to dispose these financial assets in the near term.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Jollibee Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities	

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded  	
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value  	
that are not based on observable market data

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Jollibee Group’s AFS financial assets mainly consist of shares in public 
utility companies that are no longer quoted in an active market.  As a result, the Jollibee Group did not 
recognize any gain or loss from fair value measurement in the Jollibee Group statement of comprehensive 
income.  The Jollibee Group believes that the investments are not impaired and will continue to carry them 
until they are redeemed by such public utility companies.

The Jollibee Group used Level 2 in determining and disclosing the fair value of the derivative liability.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and 
out of Level 3 fair value measurements during the year.

Events after the Reporting Period32. 

Dividend Declaration
On April 11, 2013, the BOD approved a regular cash dividend of P0.65 a share of common stock to all 
stockholders of record as at May 7, 2013.  Consequently, the cash dividend is expected to be paid out by 
May 30, 2013.  The cash dividend is 12.1% higher than the P0.58 regular dividend a share declared in April 
2012.

Appropriation of Retained Earnings
On April 11, 2013, the BOD approved the appropriation of additional retained earnings amounting to 
P5,200.0 million to be used for future expansion and support the Company’s growth strategy.

Projects Timeline Amount
Acquisition of businesses 2013-2018 P2,600,000,000
Capital expenditures 2013-2018 2,600,000,000

P5,200,000,000

Non-cash Transactions33. 

The Jollibee Group’s principal non-cash transaction under financing activities pertains to the extension of 
the terms of two short-term loans that have both matured in 2011 totaling P1,500.0 million, combined to 
form a new loan which are now due to be paid in 2013, under a new loan agreement.

The Jollibee Group’s non-cash transaction under investing activities pertains to the formation of joint 
ventures with 50% equity interest in SuperFoods Group and 54% equity interest in BK Group through 
advances given prior to 2012.



InVESTORS INFORMATION

StockholderS InquIrIeS
 Inquiries regarding dividend payments, account status, address 

changes, stock certificates and other pertinent matters may be 

addressed to the Company’s registrar and transfer agent:

 Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation

 Stock Transfer Office

 Ground Floor, West Wing

 Grepalife Building 

 221 Senator Gil Puyat Avenue

 Makati City

 Telephone:  (632) 892-4156

Sec Form 17-A
 The financial information in this report, in the opinion of 

Management, substantially conforms with the information 

required in the “17-A Report” submitted to the Securities and 

Exchange Commission. Copies of this report may be obtained 

free of charge upon written request to the Office of the 

Corporate Secretary.

compAny heAdquArterS
 10/F Jollibee Plaza Building

 No. 10 Emerald Avenue

 Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Philippines 1605

 Telephone:  (632) 634-1111

 Facsimile:  (632)  633-9504

 Website:  www.jollibee.com.ph

common Stock
 Jollibee’s common stock is listed and traded in the Philippine Stock 

Exchange with the ticker symbol “JFC.”

 It is one of the companies which comprise the PSE Composite Index.

AnnuAl Stockholder’S meetIng
 The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting will be held on June 28, 2013 at 

2:00 P.M., (registration starts at 1:00 P.M.) at the Philippine Stock 

Exchange Auditorium, Ground Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange 

Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.
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Jollibee Plaza Bldg.
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